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CHAIRMAN’S INTRODUCTION 

It is my pleasure to introduce our annual report  
and accounts for 2019/20.

At the time of writing this introduction, our staff 
and communities are facing up to the significant 
challenges that come with the COVID-19 pandemic. 
The progression of this Coronavirus is unclear but it has 
placed significant pressure on our services as we have 
readied the organisation to cope with the virus. What 
is undeniable is that COVID-19 has and will continue 
to put significant further pressure on our staff -just as 
we were coming out of a challenging winter. While we 
cannot predict how the pandemic will impact on us, I 
have no doubt that our staff will continue to do their 
very best to support our communities with high quality 
and compassionate care. This is true of those who 
will be treating people who have tested positive for 
the virus as well as those vital members of staff who 
enable care to happen by providing support services. 

One of the issues that has really struck home it 
the way our response to this virus has resulted in 
a significant shift in how we work together. The 
transformation opportunities are huge and wide-
ranging. Relationships have been built and extended 
with partners, not only within the NHS but with local 
government, Universities and the voluntary sectors. 
Our clinicians and patients have used increased 
levels of technology and have seen the benefits. 
Bureaucracy has been challenged and overcome (for 
now at least!) and new models of working have been 
developed. So the opportunity to improve and use 
our resources more efficiently is a real one. There 
is (and will continue to be) much focus on how we 
learn from our own experiences and those of others 
locally, regionally, nationally and (hopefully in due 
course) internationally. I hope that the respect and 
fondness of carers and the NHS will be sustained and 
that this (combined with increased focus on the job 
security the NHS can offer) will improve recruitment 
and retention of wonderful staff. I am also hopeful 
that, nationally, there will be increased focus on the 
importance of developing key industries within the 
UK and increasing capacity within the NHS. 

The last few months have been completely focused 
on managing our response to COVID-19 but of 
course this report covers the whole financial year. I 
have said for the last few years that the NHS faces 
an ongoing issue of demand out stripping the 
resource available and this year was no exception. 
The Trust continued to face high levels of demand 

on our services and that has had an impact on our 
adherence to the nationally set target framework. 
Delivering access targets is of course important and 
I understand that having to wait, for example, a 
long time to receive an assessment or treatment is 
frustrating. I am satisfied that in these circumstances 
a clinical assessment is undertaken in order to 
minimise any potential risk. Going forward, it will be 
interesting to see whether the new ways of working 
we have embraced could fundamentally change the 
way that people access care in hospitals and what 
impact this may have on some of the targets for 
healthcare that have been in existence for some time.

What remains clear to me though is the incredible 
pride I feel in our staff, who in spite of these 
challenges, have worked tirelessly to deliver services 
within our resources and have improved both access 
to, and the quality of our service.

In previous annual reports I have mentioned the 
importance of transforming our services and the part 
that technology has to play. We procured a new 
system from US-based company Epic to support our 
own transformation programme MY CARE and we 
made excellent progress during 2019 and early 2020 
to get MY CARE ready for training and launch in June 
2020. 

In the context of COVID-19, the Board of Directors 
has reviewed the impact this situation will have and 
has taken the decision to continue the momentum of 
MY CARE in a more limited way that does not impact 
on frontline care and to reschedule the going live 
date for MY CARE from 27 June 2020. 

Your Board remains confident, however, that 
following implementation, we will be able to further 
improve the quality and safety of our services.

North Devon District Hospital is the most remote 
hospital in mainland England and this brings 
significant challenges. The RD&E and NDHT 
entered into a unique Collaborative Agreement in 
2018 to support NDHT to provide leadership and 
management support to address its challenges. 
Under the terms of this Agreement the Trust agreed 
to provide leadership and management support to 
NDHT with a joint Chairman and Chief Executive and 
several other shared senior posts. 
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Your Board was conscious of the significant pressures 
that our Trust is facing and the demands which we 
had already placed on our leadership team. The 
Board decided, however, that it should support 
neighbouring trusts to ensure that the highest quality 
healthcare services possible are consistently provided 
across Devon.

A key early focus of the Collaborative Agreement 
between Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation 
Trust (RD&E) and Northern Devon Healthcare Trust 
(NDHT) was to oversee and expedite the required 
improvements in Maternity services and I was pleased 
to see CQC’s acknowledgement of improvements in 
North Devon’s Maternity services with the rating for 
well-led going from ‘requires improvement’ in 2017 
to ‘good’ in 2019. 

The collaboration with RD&E has allowed NDHT to 
take a different approach to creating really attractive 
posts for senior doctors, ensuring that staff have 
fulfilling careers and services are more resilient. The 
benefit and learning is not one way. Those of us who 
came from RD&E have been incredibly impressed 
with how NDHT have filled gaps by thinking in a 
creative, problem-solving way for example. 

We are building the confidence our regulators have 
in us and in 2019 the Trust was notified that NHS 
Improvement no longer considered NDHT to be a 
‘challenged provider’

This year, as part of that agreement, an options 
appraisal was undertaken to look at the longer term 
solutions to the challenges faced by NDHT and what 
the best organisational form would be to work to rise 
to these challenges. I’d like to thank everyone who 
took part in this work and shared their views with us; 
your involvement is key to us understanding how we 
deliver the services needed and how we ensure those 
services are safe, high quality and sustainable, and 
provide good access to our communities, for years to 
come.

Following this work the Boards of RD&E and NDHT 
agreed in December 2019 that we will explore joining 
together on a more formal basis and as we move 
into 2020/21 the Boards will be working together to 
determine next steps and this work continues.

The national funding settlement for the NHS was 
welcome but I take the view that, alone, it will not 
deliver the financial and operational recovery the NHS 
needs. Devon has one of the most challenged health 
economies in the country and it is important that we 
all take responsibility for improving productivity and 
ensuring there is a fair allocation of national resource 
for our population in Devon. The Devon Sustainability 

and Transformation Partnership continues to go 
from strength to strength in developing a joined 
up way of addressing some of these key challenges 
although I recognise that we need to do more to 
ensure sustainability. For me, the route to recovery 
is not to cut or reduce services but to transform 
them. I do believe we can do more for less. The right 
capital investment, properly spent on technology for 
example will allow us to direct our resources where 
they are needed most.

I believe that the most significant issue we face in 
the NHS is not money, but workforce. We have a 
shortage of more than 100,000 staff across the NHS 
and unless managed carefully this gap will continue 
to grow. The RD&E and our fellow trusts are trying 
to plug the gap however they can to ensure we 
are delivering safe care. The uncertainty faced as a 
result of Brexit has not helped to ensure we have the 
workforce we need.

There is no magic solution to help the NHS meet the 
demand it faces. Prevention and early intervention 
are extremely important and help people to lead 
healthy lives, but they don’t stop people from getting 
ill eventually, nor do they address the fact that with 
an ageing population, people need care for longer. 
As demand continues to increase and we continue to 
experience workforce challenges, things are going to 
get tougher for the NHS.

Finally, I’d like to take the opportunity to thank 
our staff, our volunteers, the Council of Governors 
the community at large, and my Board colleagues, 
colleagues across the health and care system and 
our Devon partners for their efforts over the last 
12 months. I’d also like to recognise the difference 
that the charitable giving from our local community 
makes to patients, thank you to everyone who has 
donated and fund raised.

The fantastic work detailed in this annual report 
shows what we can do when we work together in 
challenging times. It has been an incredible privilege 
to stand as RD&E’s Chairman. Thank you.

 

James Brent 
Chairman
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PERFORMANCE REPORT: OVERVIEW 
The purpose of the Overview is to provide a short 
summary that provides readers with sufficient 
information to understand the organisation, its 
purpose, the key risks to the achievement of its 
objectives and how it has performed during the year. 

The RD&E is a Foundation Trust and, as such, we 
are legally required to produce an Annual Report 
and Accounts. We are obliged, by our regulators, 
to follow a clear structure and to ensure we include 

certain mandated information that sets out how we 
have performed during the preceding financial year 
and how we have used the resources available to 
us. This is right and proper as an organisation that 
spends taxpayers’ money and provides key healthcare 
services to the community as a Foundation Trust. Our 
focus in preparing this report has been to make sure 
we give a true and accurate account of our work over 
the year.

INTRODUCTION BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
I am delighted to be providing an overview of our 
performance over the course of the financial year 
2019/20.

As this report is being compiled, the NHS is facing 
a serious crisis as it gears up in the face of a 
devastating global pandemic. The pandemic has 
had a profound impact on the RD&E as we have 
reacted at pace to reshaping our work to ensure 
we readied ourselves to provide care for those 
infected, to contain the virus as best we could and 
protect the most vulnerable people. In my time in 
the NHS we have never faced an issue of this scale 
and seriousness as we have radically changed what 
we do in short order to respond to the acute needs 
of people affected by the virus whilst at the same 
time scaling back the care we offer to non COVID-19 
patients. 

At the same time, it is also increasingly clear that 
the remedies imposed to contain the pandemic have 
their own short, medium and long term costs on 
the health, welfare and wellbeing of the community 
we serve. The immediate impact in terms of excess 
deaths particularly on the vulnerable has been 
shocking and devastating for the people and their 
loved ones who have succumbed to this virus. To 
make matters worse, we know that the impacts 
on the community will last long after the virus has 
been contained or defeated. Tragically, it is also 
becoming clear that the virus has had a much heavier 
toll on groups of individuals – whether that is the 
BAME community or those with other comorbidities 
–exacerbating already well ingrained – albeit 
unacceptable – health inequalities. 

Across the RD&E our teams are working tirelessly to 
ensure patient and staff safety remains the number 
one priority throughout the heightened response 
to COVID-19. On behalf of the Board of Directors, 

I would like to thank everyone for the fabulous 
response to this challenging situation and for 
everything our staff are doing to keep our patients 
and each other safe. I am also heartened by the 
significant progress that has been made in the way 
we are working much more closely with our partners 
in a way that has really started to bring down the 
barriers between health and social care. If, at the 
end of this pandemic, a new deal can be forged to 
better bring together health and social care, then we 
will be in a much stronger position should we face a 
situation like this in the future. 

I am conscious that our Annual Report and Accounts 
needs to cover the whole year but there are two 
other positive issues I would like to comment on.

As a result of the pandemic we have inevitably 
needed to scale back our normal services. However 
we have continued to reach out to patients using 
video or telephone consultations. We have found 
that this is a service that is not only more efficient 
and equally as effective but, in the circumstances, 
it has been largely embraced by our patients. For 
many years we have discussed the need to move to 
a more modern, streamlined and efficient way of 
working using new technologies and, potentially, the 
pandemic might now see the sea change in attitudes 
that in normal times would have taken much longer. 
Besides this, we have also seen other innovations that 
in normal times would be harder to embed and our 
focus must, even in the midst of this pandemic, be in 
ensuring that the transformation we have been able 
to put in place becomes the new normal.

We all know that the NHS is an institution that 
enjoys widespread support from the majority of the 
population. Over many years, the NHS has been 
seen by most people as being an aspect of British 
society that they can be proud of. What has been 
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truly heartening for me and my colleagues is that this 
support for the NHS and the values it upholds has 
manifested itself in many ways during the crisis we 
now face. Whether that is through the clapping for 
carers, the donations to the NHS of food and treats, 
whether that is through the amazing fundraising 
efforts and voluntary help we and others in the NHS 
have benefited from. The support we have received 
from the community during this period has been 
amazing and has helped to keep us going through a 
difficult and stressful time. 

In 2018 we secured funds and NHS Improvement 
approval to start our new MY CARE Programme. 
MY CARE is a hugely exciting clinical transformation 
programme that will change the way we deliver 
healthcare and services in the future moving away 
from inefficient paper-based processes and systems 
to make it easier for staff to provide even safer and 
more compassionate, personalised care. 

Prior to the COVID-19 outbreak, MY CARE was in an 
exceptionally strong position and heading towards 
a successful go live on 27 June 2020 – this was 
endorsed by external organisations and Epic partners. 
This has taken a huge effort over the previous 20 
months from the MY CARE Programme Team and 
Divisional Teams who, together, have made this 
possible. On behalf of the Board of Directors I would 
like to express our thanks for everyone’s hard work 
on MY CARE. This way of transforming our care 
remains fundamental and, although we have had to 
pause the programme, we remain in a good position 
to get this over the line during the next financial year.

Our partnership with the Northern Devon Healthcare 
Trust (NDHT) has continued to go from strength 
to strength this year. The Collaborative Agreement 
between the two organisations began formally in 
2018 and involved the RD&E providing leadership and 
management support to NDHT. The collaboration has 
already enhanced clinical standards – in maternity, 
for example – and improved community relations. 
During the year we announced that the NDHT and 
RD&E Boards have agreed to explore joining together 
on a more formal basis. Both Boards agreed that 
this process must begin with the premise that any 
new arrangement must be beneficial to people in all 
the communities served by both Trusts and that it is 
supported by NHS regulators.

The move is the next step in a long-standing 
partnership between the two organisations. The 
RD&E has supported the delivery of acute services 
in Northern Devon for a number of years through 
clinical networking arrangements to ensure patients 
in Northern Devon have local access to specialist 

care. As part of the Collaborative Agreement, there 
was a commitment to undertake an appraisal of the 
best way of structuring the relationship to ensure 
the continued delivery of clinically and financially 
sustainable services. The two Boards are absolutely 
committed to providing the best possible services for 
our local populations and focusing on securing equal 
outcomes for our patients. As we explore joining 
together more formally, we want to make sure we 
take the best of both of our approaches and ideas 
forwards. We have continued to work together 
to determine the next steps and this will begin by 
extending the Collaborative Agreement beyond June 
2020 to allow the appropriate processes, including 
conversations with NHS regulators, to be completed.

We continue to receive positive results from a 
number of surveys, with our patients and staff highly 
rating their experiences. 

The annual Care Quality Commission (CQC) Inpatient 
Survey looked at the care of 706 in-patients who 
were discharged from the RD&E in July 2018. Patients 
assessed the Trust on a variety of areas during their 
stay, including the time it took for patients to get a 
bed on the ward, the care received from clinical and 
non-clinical staff and their overall views of the care 
and services provided by the Trust. Overall, around 
half of the RD&E’s scores were in the top 20% of all 
Trusts who were surveyed, with the RD&E rated as 
the highest scoring Trust in many key areas.

The CQC independently regulates health and social 
care services and last rated the RD&E’s services in 
2015, giving an overall Good rating. Now it has 
once again given the Trust its second highest rating 
after it inspected several high-profile RD&E services 
including Emergency and Urgent Care, Outpatients 
and Community.

Our staff have demonstrated a high level of 
resilience, despite meeting considerable challenges 
over the last year, according to the latest national 
NHS Staff Survey. Responses to the wide-ranging 
survey of our staff remained positive, with 72% of 
RD&E staff saying they would recommend the Trust 
as a place to work – well above the 64% average for 
Combined Acute and Community Trusts nationally. 

85% of RD&E staff reported that they would be 
happy with the standard of care provided by the 
Trust if a friend or relative needed treatment, 
compared with an average of 71% in similar trusts 
across England. 

Our partnership with the University of Exeter 
continues to flourish:
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 ● A £6million Government award will enable 
Exeter’s globally-renowned diabetes research to 
expand to the next level, enabling even more 
benefit to patient care. The major investment 
is part of the Government’s modern Industrial 
Strategy. The award to the University of Exeter, 
working in partnership with the RD&E is designed 
to take areas of research which are excellent yet 
relatively small, and enable them to build to the 
next level. 

 ● We are set to reduce energy costs by £800,000 
a year, following a £7million investment in 
sustainable energy measures. The project will see 
state-of-the-art energy technology installed at five 
sites across Exeter, helping the RD&E to cut its 
energy costs by 17 per cent.

 ● Work is also under way to construct a cutting-
edge new imaging centre expected to rapidly 
accelerate dementia research and improve 
healthcare.

 ● The new Mireille Gillings Neuroimaging Centre 
will form part of the University of Exeter Medical 
School clinical research infrastructure. It will 
transform research and diagnosis of dementia and 
other neurological diseases, funded by part of a 
£10 million donation from the Dennis and Mireille 
Gillings Foundation. The new building, located 
at the RD&E will help accelerate clinical trials for 
potential dementia treatments over the next five 
years. The centre is the latest example of the close 
partnership working between the University of 
Exeter and the RD&E.

As part of our wider Digital Strategy we have 
implemented a number of significant Information 
Services. The ICE GP Order Communications System 
links our GP practices directly to our pathology 
laboratories, meaning that test requests are made 
electronically and results are made available directly 
to the GPs. The plan is for all GP sites being fully 
live by the end of May. In addition, we have used 
Artificial Intelligence to enhance our ability to 
analyse lung images within our radiology service 
and set up an automated pharmacy dispensing 
and management system. We have also upgraded 
our Insight Web (PACS) within the Cardiology 
department. This granted Cardiology the self-
sufficiency to refer urgent imaging to other Trusts 
within the peninsula, therefore improving patient 
care and safety, resulting in a quicker and smoother 

process in referring cardiology patients. 

As set out later in this report, prior to the pandemic, 
our performance against some of the national targets 
was not where we would want them to be. I am 
aware that behind the statistics and performance 
data are real people who have not received the 
treatment they need in the timescales set out by 
government. While we have continued to work hard 
to address this issue and we clinically assess to guard 
against harm, I am more than aware that waiting can 
be a cause of frustration. 

Inclusion is fundamental to the approach the 
organisation takes to organisational development, 
culture change, service improvement, and public 
and patient engagement. Over the last year we have 
worked hard to put in place a new inclusion strategy 
that I am proud to say that I lead on behalf of the 
Board. To me, this is an important issue and one 
which I am passionate about. Prior to the pandemic, 
we had agreed a programme of work to help make 
a big leap forward on this agenda. Like other areas, 
we have had to recalibrate to ensure we helped to 
manage the diversity and inclusion issues that have 
arisen during the pandemic but I am hopeful that 
we can get back on track with our exciting agenda 
during the coming year. 

I’d like to pay a heartfelt tribute to our staff during 
this exceptionally challenging time. Our winter 
period was long and many staff were already weary 
even before the coronavirus pandemic. Despite 
this, as always, through valiant efforts, incredible 
determination and professionalism and with a keen 
focus on our patients, our staff have continued 
to deliver exceptional care. I am extremely proud 
of the care and service we have delivered in these 
unprecedented times. I would like to thank our 
people, our volunteers, our Governors and our Board 
for working together to deliver great care to the 
people who need it.

 

Suzanne Tracey 
Chief Executive
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retained its overall rating of ‘Good’, previously given 
to us following the full CQC inspection in 2015. 
At a time of ongoing and increasing pressures on 
the NHS, this is a strong achievement and reflects 
well on the quality of the services provided to 
the people and communities in Exeter, east and 
mid Devon. In addition, the Trust maintained its 
‘Outstanding’ rating in the ‘Caring’ domain and the 
CQC report highlighted numerous examples of a 
“positive culture” and staff caring for patients with 
“kindness and dignity”. The CQC rated leadership 
and management at the Trust as ‘Good’, highlighting 
that the leadership team have the experience, 
capacity, capability and integrity to manage a well-led 
organisation and that the Trust is fully engaged and 
working effectively with system partners as part of 
the Devon STP. 

The Trust has responsibility for Eastern Devon’s 
Community Services and many of the services run in 
the Community Hospitals in East Devon enabling the 
Trust to offer more efficient and joined-up integrated 
care. Working together with health and care 
partners and local communities, the RD&E is better 
placed to meet people’s needs to ensure a hospital 
stay happens only when necessary and with more 
people kept well at home and supported within their 
community. The integration of care services is part of 
a wider ambition to establish a place-based system 
of care that promotes independence, prevention and 
citizen wellbeing. This system places the needs of 
the individual and their family firmly at the centre, 
supporting them to live the life they want to lead. 

ABOUT THE RD&E 
With over 9,000 staff, the RD&E manages a large 
acute teaching hospital, twelve community hospitals 
and provides community services to a core population 
of over 450,000. 

The RD&E has a long and proud history dating back 
over 250 years. The Trust has earned an international 
reputation as a recognised provider of high quality 
healthcare services, innovation, research and 
education. We are nationally and internationally 
recognised for excellence in a number of specialist 
fields including the Princess Elizabeth Orthopaedic 
Centre, the Centre for Women’s Health (maternity, 
neonatology and gynaecology services), Cancer 
Services, Renal Services, Exeter Mobility Centre and 
Mardon Neurorehabilitation Centre. 

As a teaching hospital, the RD&E delivers 
undergraduate education for a full range of clinical 
professions; is established as a leading centre for 
high quality research and development in the South 
West peninsula and is the lead partner for the 
University of Exeter College of Medicine and Health. 
This exciting and productive relationship allows us 
to do outstanding and globally recognised research 
together. 

The RD&E became one of the first Foundation Trusts 
in 2004 and this status, together with accountability 
to local citizens through our membership and 
governors, is an important way of connecting with 
the people and communities we serve. Last year, and 
following a routine announced and limited inspection 
by the Care Quality Commission (CQC), the RD&E 
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OUR YEAR
Christopher Bennett suffered from painful 
osteoarthritis in his hip. After trying to settle his 
pain with non-operative measures, he came to 
the conclusion that his quality of life was affected 
enough to warrant surgery. Following his procedure, 
Christopher quickly completed all physio goals and, 
after a discussion with his family, physio team and 
doctors, it was decided that he was well enough to 
return home the same evening.

Typically, patients who undergo hip replacement 
surgery spend an average of around three nights 
in hospital to recover. With the introduction of day 
case hip replacement surgeries, it means that eligible 
patients are able to return home and begin recovery 
in their own environments much faster.

While day case surgery can be a good choice for 
some patients, they are not suitable for everyone and 
depend on a variety of factors. These include whether 
the patient is otherwise fit and healthy, whether or 
not they have a strong support system at home and if 
they have other medical conditions which may affect 
their recovery.

Matt Wilson, Consultant Orthopaedic Surgeon at 
the RD&E, explained: “It is fairly clear that the best 
place for patients to recover and rehabilitate is in the 
familiar surroundings of their own homes and the 
aim of the RD&E Exeter Hip Unit team is to facilitate 
patients in going home as soon after their surgery 
as practically possible. For certain patients, this may 
mean going home on the same day and we are 
pleased to have helped Mr Bennett get home to his 
family only eight hours after surgery.

“Day case hip replacement is not suitable for 
everyone and no patient will ever be pressured 
into going home the same day. However, for those 
patients who are able to mobilise early and are keen 
to begin their recovery as soon as possible, we are 
pleased to be able to help.”

RD&E Ward Housekeepers won 
national sustainability award

Ward Housekeepers from the RD&E fought off the 
competition to win a national award at the NHS 
Sustainability Awards in May.

Jason Maddocks, Kevin Brown, Michelle Penna, Mary 
Drinkwater and Amanda Lawrence, who all work as 
Ward Housekeepers at the RD&E, won the ‘Waste’ 
award, which recognises trusts that have:

Spring

Care Quality Commission maintained 
RD&E rating as ‘Good’ following 
inspection

A Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspection in 
January 2019 found that the RD&E has a “strong 
caring culture” with staff committed to putting 
patients’ needs first.

The RD&E maintained its ‘Good’ rating from the 
CQC – with some services showing improvements 
-after the CQC carried out a rigorous but routine and 
announced inspection of many of the Trust’s acute 
and community services earlier in 2019.

Its inspection report highlighted numerous examples 
of a “positive culture” at the RD&E and staff caring 
for patients with “kindness and dignity” as well as 
clinical excellence.

RD&E Chief Executive Suzanne Tracey paid tribute 
to the workforce, saying: “Our staff work very hard 
each day in positive, well-run teams and they are 
incredibly committed to the needs of patients we 
serve. I’m delighted this has been highlighted in the 
CQC’s report and I would like to thank all of them 
publicly for everything they do and the lengths to 
which they go to deliver consistently safe, high-
quality services, often in challenging circumstances.

“As always we are keen to learn where we can 
make further improvements to the quality of care 
we provide so we will now study the CQC’s detailed 
findings carefully and work with team leaders to 
build on the strengths identified and act on any 
issues raised where it is clear we need to.

“Overall, however, this is a fantastic result at a time 
of ongoing and increasing pressures on the NHS and 
reflects well on the quality of the services we provide 
to the people and communities in east and mid 
Devon.”

RD&E celebrated first day case hip 
replacement surgery

In May, a patient became the first ever at the RD&E 
to undergo day case hip replacement surgery, after 
being discharged just eight hours after surgery.
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 ● Reported an increase in recycling of waste, waste 
segregation, clinical waste, etc.

 ● Reported a reduction in overall waste in supplies 
packaging, printing, etc.

 ● Reported an increase of financial savings made 
through reductions in waste.

To achieve this, the team came up with a range of 
simple, achievable changes that could be made at 
ward level which would reduce waste, reduce cost 
and have a positive impact on the planet. These 
included switching from single-use orange juice 
cartons to reusable tumblers and large cartons, which 
would result in a saving of over £40,000 per year 
across all wards. The team also began bulk-buying 
cereal, biscuits and sugar which would save over 
£30,000 per year across all wards.

Summer

Patients highly rated the RD&E in CQC 
annual inpatient survey

Patients at the RD&E highly rate the services provided, 
according to the Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
annual inpatient survey results released in June.

The results looked at the care of 706 in-patients who 
were discharged from the RD&E in July 2018. Patients 
assessed the Trust on a variety of areas during their 
stay, including the time it took for patients to get a 
bed on the ward, the care received from clinical and 
non-clinical staff and their overall views of the care 
and services provided by the Trust.

Overall, around half of the RD&E’s scores were in 
the top 20% of all Trusts who were surveyed, with 
the RD&E rated as the highest scoring Trust in the 
following areas:

 ● If there were enough nurses on duty throughout 
their stay

 ● If patients had confidence and trust in other 
clinical staff treating them (e.g. physiotherapists, 
speech therapists and psychologists)

 ● Whether their discharge was delayed

 ● How long that delay was

Em Wilkinson-Brice, (former) Chief Nurse and Deputy 
Chief Executive, said: “We are really pleased with 
these results which highlight the hard work and 
dedication of our staff who provide the best possible 
care to our patients. We particularly value the results 

of the inpatient survey as they come directly from our 
patients and shows how they feel about the care and 
services that we provide.

“As with all surveys, we will take the results on board 
and look for any areas where we can improve.”

RD&E invested £7 million in new 
energy technology 

The RD&E invested £7 million in sustainable energy 
measures in May 2019 to try and reduce energy costs 
by £800,000 a year.

The project, delivered by Centrica Business Solutions, 
will help the RD&E to cut its energy costs by 17 per 
cent through the introduction of state-of-the-art 
energy technology at five sites across Exeter.

Design and construction is expected to be completed 
in 2020. It includes the installation of a new 1.5MW 
combined heat and power unit that will generate 
power onsite at Wonford Hospital, as well as roof 
mounted solar panels at Wonford and Heavitree 
Hospitals and Mardon Neuro-Rehabilitation Centre in 
Exeter.

Wonford and Heavitree Hospitals will also benefit 
from new LED light fittings and improvements to 
the air conditioning systems, while Mardon Neuro-
Rehabilitation Centre will profit from the installation 
of new energy-efficient boilers.

Once complete, it will reduce annual emissions by 
more than 2,200 tonnes of carbon dioxide – the 
equivalent to taking more than 1,450 cars off the 
road. 

The work is part of the RD&E’s wider sustainability 
programme to help it lower energy costs and 
become a greener organisation with a smaller carbon 
footprint. 

Incredible RD&E staff celebrated at 
annual awards ceremony

Outstanding staff at the RD&E were celebrated for 
their achievements and exceptional care at the Trust’s 
annual award ceremony in June 2019.

The People’s Choice Awards, which were a new 
part of the Trust’s extremely popular Extraordinary 
People awards scheme, was the first opportunity for 
a wider audience to get involved. Members of the 
public, patients and staff were all invited to nominate 
and then vote for the finalists who they felt most 
deserved to win. 
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The awards, held at Exeter University’s Great Hall, 
were hosted by comedian John Ryan. Guests were 
entertained by the Bristol Reggae Orchestra and 
given the opportunity to write notes of thanks 
to other RD&E staff at an interactive graffiti wall, 
courtesy of Miss C’s Graffiti Academy.

Our incredible winners were:

 ● People’s Award -Non-Clinical: Iain Jamieson, 
Maintenance Assistant, Estates

 ● People’s Award -Clinical: Gemma Forster, 
Apprentice Health Care Assistant, Exmouth 
Community Hospital

 ● People’s Award -Team: Yarty Day Case

 ● People’s Award – Innovation: Anaesthetic 
Theatre Team

 ● Governors’ Volunteer Award: Steve Orme, 
Myra Banks and Melanie Tennant

RD&E Chief Executive, Suzanne Tracey, said: “As 
ever, it is very humbling to attend the award 
ceremonies that we hold here at the RD&E and 
to listen to the inspirational stories of our staff 
going above and beyond to provide exceptional 
care. I’m always extremely proud of the hard 
work and exceptional care that our staff give, 
which is evidenced by the high number of brilliant 
nominations. 

“Huge congratulations to all of our fantastic winners 
and nominees!” 

Autumn

Construction began on £10million 
Mireille Gillings Neuroimaging Centre

Work began in October 2019 to construct a 
cutting-edge new imaging centre expected to 
rapidly accelerate dementia research and improve 
healthcare.

The new Mireille Gillings Neuroimaging Centre will 
form part of the University of Exeter Medical School 
clinical research infrastructure. It will transform 
research and diagnosis of dementia and other 
neurological diseases, funded by part of a £10 
million donation from the Dennis and Mireille Gillings 
Foundation. The centre is expected to double the 
number of dementia drugs in development, through 
innovative use of new brain-scanning technology and 
techniques and has the potential to benefit patients 
globally.

The new building, located at the RD&E, will help 
accelerate clinical trials for potential dementia 
treatments over the next five years. The centre is 
the latest example of the close partnership working 
between the University of Exeter and the RD&E.

Suzanne Tracey, Chief Executive at the RD&E, said: 
“We are pleased to be working with the University of 
Exeter and with the generous support of the Dennis 
and Mireille Gillings Foundation to build a new 
Neuroimaging Centre that is set to play an important 
role in helping to better understand and tackle one of 
the most difficult health issues we face as a society: the 
growth in the numbers of people affected by dementia. 
The 3T MRI unit will provide state of the art facilities 
so our patients will get the very best. The new facility 
will also underline that Exeter is becoming one of the 
leading centres for dementia research in the UK.”

RD&E nurse received prestigious CNO 
Silver award in recognition of major 
contributions to patients

A cancer nurse at the RD&E received one of the 
country’s top nursing awards for her contributions in 
improving patient care in October.

Tina Grose, Lead Cancer Nurse at the RD&E, received 
a prestigious Chief Nursing Officer (CNO) Silver 
Award by Ruth May, CNO for NHS England and NHS 
Improvement (NHSE/I), during a visit to the Trust.

Announced earlier in 2019, the CNO Silver award is 
designed to recognise major contributions to patients 
and the profession for nurses and midwives.

Tina was nominated by Zita Martinez, Head of 
Midwifery and Assistant Director of Nursing at the 
RD&E, who said: “Tina has an unwavering and 
enduring compassion and, even under the most 
challenging of circumstances, never loses sight of the 
fundamental needs of patients, their families and the 
wider workforce.”

Patients highly rated cancer services at 
the RD&E

Patients being treated for cancer at the RD&E highly 
rate the services they receive, according to results 
published by a national survey in October 2019.

The annual National Cancer Patient Experience Survey 
is designed to monitor national progress on cancer 
care; provide information to drive local improvements 
and to inform the work of groups supporting cancer 
patients, including the voluntary sector.
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The survey was completed by over 1300 patients at 
the RD&E who had received a cancer diagnosis and 
attended the hospital in April, May or June 2018. 
Questions included whether patients had been given 
information about support groups; if they had been 
sensitively told that they had cancer and if patients 
were able to discuss any worries or fears with staff.

Overall, the RD&E was rated 8.9 by patients when 
asked to score their care on a scale of zero (very 
poor) to 10 (very good). The Trust also rated above 
the national average on:

 ● 90% of patients said that they were always 
treated with dignity and respect 

 ● 81% of patients said that they were involved as 
much as they wanted to be in decisions about 
their care and treatment

 ● 90% said that it had been ‘quite easy’ or ‘very 
easy’ to contact their clinical nurse specialist

 ● 93% said that they were given the name of a 
clinical nurse specialist who would support them 
through their treatment

One patient commented: “Since being diagnosed with 
cancer, I have been treated in a thoroughly professional, 
competent and friendly way. I have absolutely no 
complaints with my treatment. Furthermore, the link 
between my local surgery and the hospital is, to all 
intents and purposes, absolutely seamless.”

Winter

NDHT and RD&E agreed to explore 
joining together on a more formal 
basis

In December 2019, the Boards of Northern Devon 
Healthcare NHS Trust and the Royal Devon and 
Exeter NHS Foundation Trust agreed that the two 
organisations will explore joining together on a 
more formal basis. Both Boards agreed that this 
process must be based on the premise that any 
new arrangement is beneficial to people in all the 
communities served by both Trusts and this premise 
is supported by NHS regulators. 

Suzanne Tracey, joint Chief Executive of NDHT 
and the RD&E, said: “The starting point for both 
organisations is the clear view that wherever you 
live – whether that is in rural Northern Devon, in 
the centre of Exeter, or on the borders of Somerset 
and Cornwall -we have a shared duty, as part of the 

National Health Service, to ensure that people have 
good access to high quality care and, in particular, 
A&E and supporting services when they need them. 

“We recognise that both organisations face some 
significant challenges. We both need to transform 
with the use of technology and recruit and retain 
the workforce needed to deliver high quality services 
to our patients. We both need to improve our 
performance against some of the key targets on 
accessing health services. We need to do this in a 
clinically and financially sustainable way. 

“That is why we now need to explore whether 
working together on a more formal basis provides 
us with a better opportunity to address these 
challenges, making the best use of our collective 
resources to meet the health needs of the local 
population. Clearly, any new arrangement between 
the two organisations must be appropriately 
supported by NHS Improvement/NHS England.” 

The organisations have agreed that a Collaborative 
Agreement should be extended beyond June 
2020 to allow the appropriate processes, including 
conversations with NHS regulators, to be completed. 
The Trusts have emphasised their commitment to 
keeping staff and the community informed and 
engaged as this process develops.

Smiles all around at RD&E Charity 
launch

There were smiles all around in January 2020 as the 
RD&E officially launched the RD&E Charity.

The event, kindly hosted by Arbuthnot Latham 
in Southernhay, Exeter, was well received with 
attendance from David Fursdon, HM Lord-Lieutenant 
of Devon; Peter Holland, the Lord Mayor of Exeter 
and a number of local business people.

Attendees were given the opportunity to hear more 
about the charity and how they will be able to get 
involved and support their local Trust. The RD&E 
Charity exists to raise money for a wide range of 
activities over and above what the NHS is able to 
provide to make a real difference to patients, their 
families and the amazing staff who treat them.

The charity’s new brand reflects the idea that people 
want to demonstrate their gratitude -whether that is 
through a smile or by donating money to the charity.

Suzanne Tracey, Chief Executive at the RD&E, said: 
“The event went extremely well and really established 
the rebrand of the RD&E Charity. This is a really 
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positive move for the RD&E and I look forward 
to seeing the impact the charity will have on our 
patients, their families and our fantastic staff.”

Ian Roome, Head of Fundraising, said: “The event 
was a great success and we’re very much looking 
forward to continuing this momentum with our 
fundraising activities. I’d like to say a big thank you 
to everyone who came and particularly Arbuthnot 
Latham for donating the venue and refreshments.”

See the future at the RD&E

The RD&E hosted a preview of the future way 
of delivering care and services through the MY 
CARE Expo event in February 2020 with patients, 
Foundation Trust members, the public, staff and STP 
Partner organisations all invited to attend.

The patient open day took place in the Peninsula 
Medical School Lecture Theatre on the RD&E 
Wonford site on 22 February 2020. There were 
demonstrations of the new electronic patient record 
system implemented through MY CARE as well as 
the new patient portal called ‘My Care’, which will 
revolutionise the way patients and clinical staff can 
keep track of individuals’ care records, any time and 
in any place. For patients, being able to view their 
care record in the comfort of their own home, or via 
their tablet if away from home will be available to 
individuals for the first time.

MY CARE will improve the experience of people 
– patients, members of the public and our staff. 
As a result, individuals will have access to real-
time information, delivery of care will be smoother 
by removing every day frustrations faced by both 
patients and staff alike. In summary, MY CARE will 
enable patients to be seen in the best place by the 
most appropriate clinician reducing unnecessary 
hospital visits or extended stays.

Professor Adrian Harris, Executive Medical Director 
and Deputy Chief Executive, said: “For the population 
served by the RD&E, MY CARE will revolutionise 
their access to healthcare. What excites me the most 
about MY CARE is the patient portal which allows 
people to really begin to control their own health.”
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OUR STRATEGY 

 ● namely, that we want to be at the forefront 
of change, informed by the best research and 
evidence based practice, and;

 ● working with and alongside our partners to make 
the big changes that now need to happen.

The Board maintained its existing strategic intent:

“We will be a leader in transforming the health 
and care system, working in partnership to connect 
people, services, communities and voluntary groups 
to meet the needs of the communities we serve. 
In doing so, we will continue to provide safe, high 
quality, seamless services delivered with courtesy and 
respect.”

As part of the refresh process, the Board also agreed 
that our values of fairness, honesty, openness 
& integrity, respect & dignity, and inclusion & 
collaboration should remain constant. The strategy 
emphasised that the Trust is a values-driven 
organisation with its values actively guiding what we 
do and how we do it, the way we work as a team, 
our recruitment, our decision-making and the way 
in which we treat each other and our patients. The 
strategy underlined that our values apply to all of us 
equally and underpin everything we do as we work 
together to provide care for our communities.

Our corporate objectives have remained the same: 
We will: LISTEN to people and continually improve 
what we do. We will do this by building on our 
track record of providing safe, high quality services 
delivered with courtesy and respect. 

We will:

 ● Ensure we maintain high quality services for the 
people and communities we serve

 ● Make sure that our services are safe as well as 
clinically and financially sustainable

 ● Keep improving at all levels -from using the latest 
technological advances through to the small but 
important changes to improve patient experience

 ● Recognise our responsibility to the community, 
which includes listening and responding to the 
views of our Trust Members and Governors and 
the public.

 ● Engage with people to co-design and deliver 
sustainable services

Two years ago, the Trust’s Board of Directors (Board) 
reviewed and refreshed its corporate strategy to 
ensure that it captured the Trust’s strategic ambitions 
in a fast changing external context.

The challenges faced by NHS providers like the RD&E 
are now well understood: the demand for services 
has and continues to grow every year. This is, in part, 
because of advances in healthcare which means 
that people are living longer often with multiple 
conditions. At the same time, we know that there 
remain entrenched health inequalities in England 
with people who are more affluent enjoying 19 more 
years in good health than those who are poorer. 
These inequalities in health outcomes are mirrored 
in Devon which is often perceived as a prosperous 
county. Despite recent increases in funding for the 
NHS, there remains a gap between rising demand 
and the resources available. 

The strategy refresh sought to provide a clear 
roadmap for the Trust so that it could continue 
to provide and deliver high quality, safe care to 
people who require hospital services amidst an 
ongoing challenging environment. It highlighted the 
challenges facing the organisation and the wider 
NHS, but sought to identify the opportunities within 
the emerging context. In particular, the strategy 
placed emphasis on the need for a person-centred 
approach to help people to stay well and supported 
for longer, so they need the NHS less and later in life. 
In addition, it identified the need for people to do 
more to look after their own health and wellbeing 
and set out that, when people do become unwell, 
the Trust will work with its partners to provide help 
so that they can remain independent in their own 
home for longer, avoiding hospital services wherever 
possible. At its heart was the view that continuing 
to deliver care and services in the same way, without 
fundamental transformation, was not a sustainable 
situation and that more innovative changes in how 
care and services were organised and delivered was 
required.

The strategy set out a radically new direction for 
the way in which health and care services need to 
be organised and delivered in Devon with much 
greater emphasis on striking a balance between a 
system focused on detecting and treating illnesses, 
with one that also predicts and prevents poor health. 
The strategy highlighted that the Trust would take a 
leading role within the county to make these changes 
happen. In particular, the Board wanted to underline 
the organisation’s strategic intent:
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 ● Listen to our staff and engage them to collectively 
influence, design, shape and test new ways of 
working and organising ourselves

We will: CONNECT people, communities and services 
so that we can work together to improve health and 
wellbeing for everyone We will do this by focusing 
on wellness, prevention and ill-health management, 
seeing patients as people and empowering them to 
be in control of their own care. 

We will:

 ● Work better to identify the current and future 
needs of our local communities

 ● Aim to minimise the length of stay in hospital and 
maximise the potential for rehabilitation

 ● Shift our focus from “patients” to “people”, and 
from “What is the matter with you?” to “What 
matters to you?”

 ● Increase delivery of outpatient and same-day 
services closer to where they are needed

 ● Work with social care and GPs to improve co-
ordination and make services easier to navigate

 ● Help connect and support people, services, 
community initiatives and voluntary group 
together within a local system of care

We will: INNOVATE so we can continue to grow 
our world-class specialisms, working with partners 
and our patients to push forward the best medical 
research. We know that patients have better 
outcomes by being involved in clinical trials. The Trust 
is already nationally and internationally recognised 
for excellence in a number of specialist fields such as 
Diabetes, Orthopaedics and Genomics.

Thanks to our long-standing partnership with the 
University of Exeter and its Medical School (UEMS), 
we have developed first class training, research 
and development capabilities. These ensure we 
are able to embed and offer the latest clinical care, 
technologies and medicines to transform the lives of 
our patients and their families. 

We will meet this objective by:

 ● Building our research capability in order to 
enhance our clinical care as well as improve our 
reputation and our financial position

 ● Establishing academic departments where there is 
success in leading externally-funded research and 
develop staff to take part in research activities

 ● Increasing the numbers of patients taking part in 
clinical trials in all departments

 ● Strengthening our links between the Trust and 
the University of Exeter

 ● Using new technologies and practices to 
transform what we do

The Board is clear that whilst we need to continue 
to deliver first rate care in our acute and community 
settings, delivering hospital-based care is insufficient 
to meet the complex challenges we face.

Delivering our strategy requires both a sea change 
in our practices, our ways of working and our 
culture as well as a significant shift in the attitudes 
and expectations of the public. It needs to take into 
account that the causes of good and poor physical 
and mental health are often the result of wider 
issues concerning environment, housing, economic 
opportunities, underlining why the Trust cannot meet 
the challenges alone. Tackling the issues we face will 
involve working together in collaboration with, in 
particular, social services, local government, health 
organisations, GPs, the voluntary sector, as well as 
our people and communities. In addition, tackling 
the issues we face as an institution can only really 
be tackled by working together as a system and the 
STP and emerging Integrated Care Systems (ICS) are 
key to helping the NHS in Devon collectively define a 
new of delivering integrated health and care to the 
population of the county. 

Over the last year the Trust has focused on delivering 
the strategy by setting out clear plans and priorities 
for the next two financial years that moves us 
towards the vision we set ourselves. A senior group 
of clinicians and mangers developed a single, 
integrated plan for the next two years – essentially 
“One Plan” – that enables us to plan and put in place 
today whilst building for tomorrow. The “One Plan” 
Programme supports the delivery of the Corporate 
Strategy and Future Model of Care and sets out 
what we are going to focus on over the next two 
years to best meet the issues we face so that we 
continue delivering great care, and the efficiency 
and effectiveness of services while at the same time 
shifting our focus towards a new way of organising 
and delivering care services. The plan defines what 
will be delivered, by when, and also clarifies who is 
accountable. What’s more, it ensures we align our 
resources in a way that achieves what we set out to 
do. 

In developing our plans, we have made sure we 
have taken into account the NHS ten year plan that 
was launched at the beginning of 2019 and which 
sets out an ambitious programme of work to make 
the health service fit for the future, saving hundreds 
of thousands of lives, and adding 5 years to life 



Page 14

Annual Report 2019/20

expectancy by 2030. The Strategic Delivery Group 
(SDG), comprised of the most senior clinical and non-
clinical leaders across the Trust are accountable for 
the delivery of the Plan and report to the Board of 
Directors on a monthly basis.

The One Plan focused on four key programmes of 
work:

 ● Urgent Care 

 ● Productivity

 ● Service Delivery Networks 

 ● Delivery of MY CARE – a digitally enabled clinical 
transformation programme
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ONE PLAN – DELIVERY IN YEAR ONE (2019/20)
improve theatre utilisation and will inform further 
redesign work for how day cases and outpatients are 
delivered.  

To support clinical teams, a pharmacy robot has 
been introduced that has automated a number of 
processes to streamline the medicines supply services 
and ultimately deliver improvements in patient care 
across the Trust. The robot has allowed the pharmacy 
department to maximise space by using a more 
efficient and accurate storage system with better 
stock management and hold over 30,000 packs of 
medicines.

Service Delivery Networks:

The RD&E has worked with other NHS providers 
and primary care to enable greater collaboration 
between clinical teams to support operational delivery 
across all sites in Devon through service delivery 
networks. Through working on clinical pathways 
such as neurology, dermatology and cardiology, the 
organisations in the network have established shared 
clinical leadership, pathways, and resources. These 
models will improve the access and standardisation of 
care across the network, and therefore improve the 
quality and experience of care in Devon.

This early work heralds the collaborative approach, 
involving all Partners and stakeholders in the co-
design of services and clinical pathways for the 
future.

MY CARE:

As mentioned earlier, MY CARE is a hugely exciting 
digitally enabled clinical transformation programme 
that will significantly change the way we deliver 
healthcare and services in the future. At the centre 
of MY CARE are people – patients, carers, relatives 
and staff. It is the largest, and most complex, single 
programme of work undertaken by the Trust will 
enable care and services to be delivered in a clinically 
and financially sustainable way. More importantly it 
will improve the experience and outcomes of people. 
It will deploy state of the art technology moving 
away from inefficient paper-based clinical pathways, 
processes and systems to make it easier for staff 
to provide even safer and more compassionate, 
personalised care as well as empowering patients to 
manage their health and long term conditions more 
effectively. 

During 2019/20 each of the four key programmes of 
work made significant progress including:

Urgent Care:

The Trust has introduced a Same Day Emergency 
Care (SDEC) service that has increased the number of 
patients turned around within the same day leading 
to improved outcomes and experience for the patient 
and a reduction in emergency admissions.

An Acute Hospital at Home Service has also been set 
up to allow patients to return home to continue their 
treatment where it is safe to do so whilst remaining 
under the care of an acute consultant. This will have 
impacted length of stay for patients but as the service 
is new this information is still being collated.

The Early Supported Discharge (ESD) Service for 
COPD has been expanded and rolled out across all 
localities to build upon the success of the existing 
ESD service and to provide an equitable service for 
patients. This enables patients to return home earlier 
in their recovery with support from the service and to 
reduce their length of stay.

The team have also set up an Admissions Avoidance 
service which supports people with COPD through 
proactive management in the community, and where 
an urgent need arises, provides access to rapid 
treatment to prevent admissions.

Productivity:

The Productivity Programme was established to focus 
on a number of key areas of clinical and operational 
productivity to support the Trust’s Cost Improvement 
Programme. During 2019/20 the Trust has 
redesigned its nursing and Allied Health Professions 
(AHP) bank offer to provide a standardised approach 
to induction and care standards that has improved 
care as well as led to a reduction in agency spend 
of £300k. For medical staffing a new recruitment 
system has been introduced that has consolidated a 
number of existing systems to improve the process 
for medical recruitment as well as led to recurrent 
VAT saving. 

Work has also focused on a theatre development 
programme that has established specialist level data 
packs to enable clinical staff to benchmark their 
services and share best practice across the Trust. 
This is being used by clinicians and managers to 
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It will put in place the foundations for a new model 
of care to maintain the health and wellbeing of 
patients, their family and carers. Implementation of 
a comprehensive electronic patient record (EPR) will 
transform the way care and services are delivered. For 
example, it will replace traditional paper patient notes 
and mean that for the first time ever, every aspect of 
a person’s care – including relevant history, current 
medications and latest test results and more – will 
be available in a single interactive electronic patient 
record, updated in real time.

Patients will also be able to see this information and 
connect with their clinicians online via a secure App 
or website portal. This revolutionary programme 
spells a welcome end to wasteful paper-chasing, 
remove frustrations for staff who have had to sign in 
and out of multiple systems, complete a plethora of 
forms, remove fragmented care and stop the need 
for patients having to repeat the same information 
to different people. Crucially, it will mean even safer 
and even higher quality care. 

Launched in June 2018, the Programme made great 
progress during 2019 and early part of 2020 heading 
towards a successful planned go live in June 2020. 
The successful outcome of the 120 Day Go Live 
Readiness Assessment, and external and independent 
feedback reaffirmed the confidence that the MY 
CARE go live would be successful.

However, as a result of COVID-19, in March 2020 the 
Board took the decision to delay the MY CARE going 
live date until it was safe to do so. At the same time 
the Board recognised the strategic importance of MY 
CARE and requested that the forward momentum of 
MY CARE be maintained until an alternative go live 
date could be confirmed. 

To support the Trust’s workforce in delivering all 
four programmes of work, the Trust has invested 
in building the skills and capabilities of staff. A 
significant number of staff have been trained in 
Quality Improvement techniques and tools, with a 
number also being training in Project Management. 
As well as enabling delivery of the four programmes, 
this training and development has built the capacity 
and the capability of the organisation and has 
equipped staff with the confidence and skills to lead 
change in their area and support the aims of the 
corporate strategy.
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KEY ISSUES AND RISKS 
Quality 

Continued financial constraints and the delivery 
of CIP have the potential risk of impacting on the 
quality of the service. The risk mitigation centres on 
the robust quality assurance framework which is in 
place, incorporating a balance of hard, empiric data 
and soft intelligence which alerts relevant levels of 
clinicians and managers throughout the Trust to any 
deteriorate in quality.

Finance

The presence of COVID-19 undoubtedly creates the 
key issue and risk facing the Trust in 2020/21, not 
just from a clinical and operational viewpoint but also 
from a financial perspective.

The Trust Board agreed to a draft operational plan 
submission on 5 March 2020 for the 2020/21 
financial year. Following this however the impact of 
COVID-19 caused NHSE/I to suspend the planning 
process in order that organisations could focus on 
the operational impact of COVID-19. In line with the 
Trust’s Standing Financial Instructions and Standing 
Orders, the Trust Board agreed to a provisional 
budget for 2020/21 in March 2020, however it was 
accepted that the final budget / plan was likely to be 
significantly different.

NHSE/I have removed some financial risk from 
Trusts by committing to fund all costs for the first 
four months (April-July) of 2020/21. It is not clear 
on the level of funding for the remainder of the 
year; however given that Trusts will not be able to 
operate at normal capacity, it is likely that income 
will be funded on a block basis rather than based on 
actual patient activity under a Payment by Results 
(PbR) basis. Provider Sustainability Funding (PSF) will 
no longer be paid to Trusts relating to financial and 
operational performance. Instead prior to COVID-19 
it was expected that Financial Recovery Funding (FRF) 
was to be paid to the majority of Trusts in deficit. 
It is unclear currently whether this will still apply in 
2020/21.

Any plan agreed with the Trust and NHSE/I for 
2020/21 will be agreed as part of a wider plan 
established for the whole Devon population, driven 
by the Devon Sustainability and Transformation Plan 
(STP). The STP for Devon seeks to respond to some 
of the key challenges facing the county, primarily the 
ability to deliver financially and clinically sustainable 

The Trust’s key strategic risks are captured in its 
comprehensive Board Assurance Framework (BAF) 
which is regularly updated and reviewed by the 
Board. The BAF identifies key risks and mitigating 
actions to the support the achievement of the Trust’s 
three strategic objectives. 

Operational 

The demand and capacity planning process is 
undertaken annually, in order to plan the allocation 
of resources and support the delivery of key 
organisational targets. The planning process takes 
into account circumstances known or reasonably 
predicted at the start of the year, however there 
remain risks to the delivery of key performance 
indicators, principally due to changes which happen 
throughout the year. These include but are not 
limited to: 

 ● The impact of Coronavirus throughout 2020/21 
depending on how changes to social isolation 
measures impact upon the disease prevalence and 
the demand for health services 

 ● Changes to service provision at local acute trusts 
which could result in increased demand on clinical 
services 

 ● Unanticipated increases in General Practitioner or 
other referrals, particularly in Cancer specialties 
requiring urgent 2-week outpatient appointments 
and subsequent diagnostics 

 ● Changes in the urgent care landscape, such as 
the provision of 111 services, Minor Injury Units 
(MIU), Walk-in Centres (WIC), access to primary 
care and support for patients with urgent mental 
health issues 

 ● Severe adverse weather affecting capacity 

 ● Major infection control outbreaks, such as the 
high levels of flu experienced in 2014/15 and 
2017/18

 ● Unplanned workforce availability such as the 
junior doctors’ industrial action during 2014/15 
and 2015/16 In the event of events such as 
those listed above, further discussions with 
commissioners, providers and regulators will take 
place to minimise the risk to performance
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services in the face of increasing demand from a 
growing and ageing population. The Devon STP aims 
to address the financial challenge whilst improving 
health outcomes for people in an equitable way 
through shifting our model of care to provide more 
effective joined up services in, or closer to, people’s 
homes and thereby reducing reliance on bed-based 
care. 

The inability to access government borrowing over 
recent years has been a key concern for the Trust. 
For 2020/21 the Devon STP has been allocated a 
capital envelope which all organisations must operate 
within (£80.3m). Given the significant level of capital 
requirement for 2020/21, in particular relating to the 
My Care programme and the level of Estates backlog 
requirement in most of the Devon STP organisations, 
there is a high risk that some critical strategic capital 
investments may not be able to take place due to the 
restrictions on capital expenditure.

During 2019/20 the Trust achieved cost improvement 
savings of £13.6m (against a target of £22.0m), 
however on a recurring basis only £5.2m was 
achieved. This means that the £16.8m shortfall 
will still be required to be delivered in addition 
to any additional requirement for 2020/21. As a 
result of COVID-19 it is unclear whether there will 
be sufficient clinical and management capacity to 
deliver savings in 2020/21, however it is clear that 
we cannot lose the momentum of new ways of 
working that have been required such as outpatient 
attendances via video conferencing and phone 
appointments. 

KPMG have identified a significant Value for Money 
risk primarily due to the Trust continuing to operate 
with an underlying deficit, and in order to help 
support delivering savings going forward the Trust 
plans to strengthen the Project Management Office 
resources to deliver greater recurrent CIP savings as 
well as the benefits from MY CARE.

Going Concern statement

After making enquiries, the directors have a 
reasonable expectation that the NHS foundation trust 
has adequate resources to continue in operational 
existence for the foreseeable future. 

For this reason, they continue to adopt the going 
concern basis in preparing the accounts.

For further details, please see Note 1 to the Accounts.
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EVENTS SINCE THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
In a letter on 17 March 2020, Simon Stevens, 
Chief Executive of NHS England wrote to all NHS 
organisations to “initiate the fastest and most far 
reaching repurposing of NHS services, staffing and 
capacity in our 72-year history.” This report covers 
the initial period of the response to the COVID-19 
pandemic and the significant impact this has on the 
Trust’s work. Since the end of the reporting period, 
the pandemic has continued although the scale of 
the expected infection rate in the region was lower 
than anticipated. 

In summary, the Trust, in response to the pandemic 
has dynamically planned and implemented a robust 
and comprehensive programme of change in order 
to keep patients safe. The Incident Management 
Framework and surge plans provided a high degree 
of confidence that the Trust can provide safe, 
effective care for emergency patients. In addition, 
while it is not the direct responsibility of the acute 
sector, the Trust has implemented measures to 
support the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 
and Devon County Council in the care of patients at 
home or in care homes. 

A considerable range of measures have been 
implemented to prioritise, treat and protect the 
welfare of elective patients. These have been 
designed and implemented by clinically led teams 
and provide good assurance that every effort is 
being made to optimise patient safety. At the time 
of writing a group has been established to plan and 
implement the redesign and long-term recovery of 
services in a timely but consistent manner. 

In May 2020 the Board reviewed the planning work 
and approved a recommended new go live date 
of 10 October 2020 for the implementation of MY 
CARE. Feedback from frontline teams across the 
Trust indicates the majority share the Board’s view 
that MY CARE will be a fundamental enabler to our 
recovery plan, and will be helpful on many levels. The 
focus now is to complete the implementation of MY 
CARE whilst ensuring patient and staff safety remain 
paramount. 
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PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS 
Performance Management and 
Assurance 

The Trust Performance Assurance Framework (PAF) 
enables assurance to be provided that performance, 
including safety and quality indicators, is effectively 
monitored and reported, thereby supporting 
managers and clinicians to deliver the required 
targets. Monthly PAF meetings, chaired by the 
Deputy Chief Operating Officer, with support from 
the Interim Chief Nurse, Director of Operational 
Finance, and Deputy Director of People, take place 
with each of the four Clinical Divisions. At the 
meetings, divisional and specialty level dashboards 
are reviewed, covering a detailed set of indicators 
across safety and quality, performance, operational 
efficiency, workforce, finance and a wide array of 
supplementary information. The reports prepared 
for the meeting also support the Clinical Divisions to 
undertake their own assessments of performance, as 
well as providing an outline of actions to address any 
key issues. The actions identified by the Divisions are 
tested and challenged in the meetings. 

At the heart of the Trust’s PAF is the alignment of 
monitoring and performance from service line and 
ward level through to Board. The monthly Integrated 
Performance Report (IPR) to Board includes a wide 
range of national and local performance indicators 
grouped under the following themes: 

 ● Quality & Safety 

 ● Activity & Flow 

 ● Operational Performance 

 ● Patient Experience 

 ● Our People 

 ● Finance 

These are accompanied by narrative detailing the 
contributory issues, the actions planned to restore 
performance, the timeframes in which the actions are 
to be undertaken, and identification of any key risks. 
The integration of these indicators within a single 
report provides an opportunity for triangulation of 
indicators and themes that is made explicit within the 
accompanying narrative and overview to the report.

A selection of key indicators from the Trust’s “Ward 
to Board” dashboard are included within the Quality 
& Safety section of the Integrated Performance 
Report each month. This dashboard incorporates 
indicators relating to process and outcome measures 

which underpin the delivery of safe, high quality care, 
including pressure ulceration, falls, patient nutrition, 
complaints, venous thromboembolism and staffing 
levels. A detailed analysis of performance against 
each of these metrics at divisional level alongside 
indicators specific to the provision of Community 
Services is provided to the Board on a quarterly 
basis, with narrative provided where necessary at 
ward level in the event of any outliers. This approach 
thereby provides triangulation at a more granular 
level, minimising the risk that Trust-wide performance 
could mask individual areas of concern. 

The Trust continues to use the Connecting Care 
methodology to support the delivery of good 
performance. Connecting Care enables teams 
to work together in a more joined-up approach, 
supporting staff to find new and better ways of 
working, from making small changes that make 
a difference to much larger scale improvements. 
Connecting Care also provides a systematic way 
of working together using a set of continuous 
improvement tools and techniques that has been 
rolled out across the Trust over the last four years and 
is now used in all divisions.

NHS Improvement Single Oversight 
Framework 

A performance framework has been established by 
NHS Improvement to help ensure that Trusts meet 
NHS Constitutional Standards, with a particular focus 
on each of 

 ● the 4-hour Emergency Department Waiting Time 
Standard, 

 ● the 62-day Waiting Time Standard for patients 
referred by a GP or a cancer screening service 
with suspected cancer, 

 ● the 18-week Referral to Treatment Waiting Time 
Standard, and 

 ● the 6 –week Diagnostic Waiting Time Standard 

The Single Oversight Framework is closely aligned to 
the Care Quality Commission’s (CQC) standards, and 
replaced Monitor’s Risk Assessment Framework and 
the Trust Development Authority (TDA) Accountability 
Framework. It applies to both NHS Trusts and NHS 
Foundation trusts irrespective of their legal form, and 
in 2018/19 was extended to cover NHS-controlled 
providers. The Single Oversight Framework is based 
on the principle of earned autonomy. 
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The Framework is designed to help NHS providers 
attain, and maintain, Care Quality Commission 
ratings of ‘Good’ or ‘Outstanding’ and NHSI 
segment providers based on the level of support 
each provider needs across the five themes of quality 
of care, finance and use of resources, operational 
performance, strategic change and leadership and 
improvement capability.

Each trust is segmented into one of the following 
four categories:

Segment 1

Providers with maximum autonomy: no potential 
support needs identified. Lowest level of oversight; 
segmentation decisions taken quarterly in the 
absence of any significant deterioration in 
performance.

Segment 2

Providers offered targeted support: there are 
concerns in relation to one or more of the themes. 
We’ve identified targeted support that the provider 
can access to address these concerns, but which they 
are not obliged to take up. For some providers in 
segment 2, more evidence may need to be gathered 
to identify appropriate support.

Segment 3

Providers receiving mandated support for significant 
concerns: there is actual or suspected breach of 
licence, and a Regional Support Group has agreed 
to seek formal undertakings from the provider or the 
Provider Regulation Committee has agreed to impose 
regulatory requirements.

Segment 4

Providers in special measures: there is actual or 
suspected breach of licence with very serious and/or 
complex issues. The Provider Regulation Committee 
has agreed it meets the criteria to go into special 
measures.

The current assessment for the RD&E is segment 2 
(Providers offered targeted support).

The Single Oversight Framework retains an emphasis 
on the importance of leadership and improvement 
capability within NHS organisations, and an 
expectation that providers will engage constructively 
with local partners to build shared understanding of 
local challenges and patient needs, and to design 
solutions that will drive improvements in the care of 
the local population. 

 As outlined above, the Framework retains its focus 
on core performance metrics relating to access to 
services. Performance improvement trajectories 
were agreed between providers, commissioners 
and regulators for 2019/20. Delivery of each of the 
performance improvement trajectories has been 
monitored closely throughout the course of the year.

Financial measures also play a key part in the Single 
Oversight Framework, and focus on sustainability, 
efficiency and control. The RD&E’s Use of Resources 
rating as at quarter 4 2019/20 is a ‘3’ (see detailed 
assessment below) which compares to a plan of ‘1’. 
The deterioration in the UoR has been caused by an 
increase in the level of deficit delivered in 2019/20 
due mainly to Digital income not being received 
during the year and a shortfall on savings delivered.

Area Metric
2019/20 Scores 2018/19 Scores

Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1

Financial 
Sustainability

Capital service capacity 4 4 2 1 1 1 2 2

Liquidity 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Financial Efficiency I&E margin 4 4 3 2 1 2 3 3

Financial Controls
Distance from financial plan 4 3 1 1 1 1 1 1

Agency spend 2 2 3 2 3 3 3 2

Overall Scoring 3 3 2 1 1 2 2 2
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Overview of Performance 2019/20 

2019/20 was a challenging year for the achievement of performance targets at the RD&E. Performance in 
respect of elective waiting times targets has remained challenging throughout 2019/20, as demand has 
remained high, and in some areas continued to grow more quickly than the availability of resources. Demand 
in the first half of the year was significantly higher than planned, however this eased during the second half. 
This change in demand, combined with a Trust-wide focus on delivering key performance indicators led to 
improvements within the delivery of the 4-hour A&E standard, number of open pathways on RTT waiting list, 
the number of patients waiting on longer than 52 weeks for treatment and the six-week diagnostic standard. 

A summary of performance against key performance indicators is shown in the table below. 

Indicator Measure
Standard / 

Target 
2018/19 2019/20

Infection 
Control

Meet the C.Diff objective

30  
(2018/19)

31  
(2019/20)

15  
(13 of which were 

agreed to be 
unavoidable)

33  
(hospital onset)

14  
(community onset, 

hospital apportioned)

Meet the MRSA objective

0  
(2018/19)

0  
(2019/20)

2 0

18-week 
RTT 

% admission – incomplete pathways 92%
81.8%  

(March 2019) 
73.1% 

(March 2020)

Total number of open pathways 

30,251  
(2018/19)

34,293  
(2019/20)

34,278 33,279

Cancer 
Access

Urgent GP referrals seen within 2 
weeks – all cases 

93%
83.2%  

(span of year)
77.2% 

Breast cancer symptomatic referrals 
seen within 2 weeks

93% 94.5% % 61.7% 

Cancer treatment started within one 
month of diagnosis

96% 94.7% 94.2% 

Cancer treatments started within 2 
months of urgent GP referral 

85% 73.5% 71.3% 

Waiting 
Times

A&E maximum waiting times of 4 
Hours (Eastern Devon) 

95%
93.2%  

(March 2019) 
86.5%  

(March 2020)

DTOC Delayed Transfers of Care N/A
39.1  

(March 2019)
48.0  

(March 2020)

The impact of COVID-19 on performance in 
2019/20

Significant management activity to manage the local 
impact of the Coronavirus pandemic took place 
throughout most of the final quarter of 2019/20, 
however there was little impact on performance until 
mid-March 2020, when the Trust began to receive 
admissions of patients with confirmed COVID-19 
and the Government introduced social isolation 
measures. Since then the impact has been profound, 

significantly reducing demand for non-Covid services 
but at the same time reducing the capacity of the 
Trust and the wider NHS to provide planned levels of 
capacity. 

In some areas, such as the number of DTOC and 
the delivery of the 4-hour A&E target, the impact 
has been extremely positive and system working 
and reduced demand has facilitated significant 
improvements. With regards to elective care, the 
impact of Government actions to introduce social 
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isolation has led to very significant reductions 
in activity and waiting times for diagnostics and 
treatment have increased considerably. 

In order to reassess the requirements for service 
provision and provide services that meet the needs 
of the public for non-COVID care, whilst at the same 
time ensuring capacity to treat COVID patients on an 
ongoing basis, a Trust-wide group called Redesign 
and Long-Term Recovery has been established. At 
the time of writing this report, the group is in its early 
stages, however it will be crucial to the development 
of services and shaping the approach and making 
progress towards the delivery of key performance 
standards in 20/21.

Infection Control: Clostridium difficile 

In April 2019, the national definition for Trust 
apportioned cases of clostridium difficile changed. 
Previously it reflected cases identified on or after 
day 4 of admission, and in April 2019 expanded 
to include cases identified on or after day 3 of 
admission, and cases with a community onset but 
with a discharge from hospital in the previous 28 
days. 

The number of cases of Clostridium difficile for 
2019-20 was 33 hospital onset cases (i.e. cases 
identified on or after day four of admission where 
the day of admission is day one), and 14 cases 
identified following discharge in the last 28 days. All 
47 cases have been investigated, and forty four were 
deemed unavoidable. In three cases associated with 
potentially contributory lapses in care, inappropriate 
antimicrobial prescribing was identified as an 
issue. For two of the three cases this inappropriate 
prescribing was not associated with prescribers in this 
organisation. The prescribers in primary care have 
been made aware of the issue. 

Infection control: MRSA

There have been no cases in 2019/20. 

Emergency Department Maximum Waiting 
Time of Four Hours from Arrival to Admission, 
Transfer or Discharge (excluding Walk in Centre 
activity), and Ambulance Handover Delays 

In line with providers both regionally and nationally, 
the Trust remained challenged during 2019/20 to 
deliver the ED maximum waiting time of four hours 
target. This was principally due to the following 
factors: 

 ● Workforce shortages, primarily amongst the 
junior doctor and middle grade rotas, resulting in 

significant pressure upon ED services as a result of 
vacancies creating regular gaps in both rotas 

 ● Challenged flow throughout the hospital resulting 
in exit block in ED, impacting on the ability to see 
patients within ED in a timely way 

 ● Continued pressure from high levels of patients 
attending ED with mental health needs requiring 
inpatient psychiatric beds.

The Medical Divisional Team is currently developing 
plans for the delivery of the 4-hour A&E standard, 
which meets the ongoing needs for COVID and non-
COVID patients, and which also capitalises upon the 
significant gains through system wide innovation 
seen over the past two months. 

62–Day Wait for First Treatment (All 
Cancers) 

Performance against the key performance indicators 
relating to cancer patients has remained challenging 
in 2019/20 primarily as a result of two significant 
issues. Within the Endoscopy Unit, challenges 
with nursing and medical staff availability due 
to unplanned absence led to reduced capacity 
throughout much of the year. The second issue has 
been high levels of demand for cancer services, with 
referral increases of as much as 13.8% in some key 
services such as Head & Neck, which has put pressure 
on the delivery of the national standards. Plans are in 
place across all areas to improve performance as the 
Trust moves into 2020/21.

Average Number of Patients reportable 
as a Delayed Transfer of Care (DTOC) 

DTOCs remain a significant pressure on NHS acute 
services and reducing their levels has continued to be 
a significant focus for the Trust and system partners 
throughout 2019/20. Against a challenging backdrop 
of continuing reductions in nursing care home 
bed capacity across the Eastern Devon locality and 
recruitment and retention within the private sector 
domiciliary care market, a range of initiatives have 
been undertaken during the year including: 

 ● Further development of the Urgent Community 
Response model to focus on discharge, and 
admission avoidance 

 ● Recruiting additional support workers to support 
the domiciliary care market 

 ● Streamlining transfers from the acute hospital to 
the community hospital 
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 ● increasing the workforce to enable an improved 
7-day service in community, which will include 
nursing, therapy, and additional staff to 
undertake “night sits” for patients requiring 
additional support following hospital discharge as 
one of the “winter schemes” 

 ● Undertake tests of change, which places a social 
worker, nurse or therapist on the wards who 
require most support for complex discharge 

18 Weeks Referral to Treatment (RTT) 
Incomplete Pathways 

Overall compliance with the 18-week target 
deteriorated across 2019/20, with Trust performance 
falling from 81.8% in March 2019 to 73.1% in 
March 2020 as a result of capacity constraints 
combined with continued referral growth. Despite 
the growth in referrals seen earlier in the year, the 
total number of patients on incomplete pathways fell 
over the course of 2019/20 from 34,278 in March 
2019 to 33,279 in March 2020. 

Significant progress was made during 2019/20 in 
reducing the numbers of patients waiting longer than 
52 weeks for treatment, as a result of a programme 
combining increased capacity on site, alongside 
increased use of the independent sector. Delivery of 
the year-end trajectory agreed with commissioners 
and regulators in respect of long waiting patients 
was, in early March, forecast to be surpassed. The 
commencement of social isolation and the standing 
down of elective activity in mid-March 2020 as a 
result of the COVID-19 pandemic, however, resulted 
in it being necessary for treatment for a significant 
number of patients to be delayed. At the time of 
writing this report in late Spring 2020 a programme 
enabling treatment for all patients to be resumed 
according to clinical priority and urgency, whilst 
maintaining national guidelines to prevent onwards 
transmission of COVID-19, was being implemented. 
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performance and forward plan. Governors have 
a range of statutory powers as well as significant 
influence over the Trust; they appoint the Chair 
and the Non-Executive Directors and ratify the 
appointment of the Chief Executive.

The Board of Directors of the RD&E is ultimately 
and collectively responsible for all aspects of the 
performance of the Trust. The Board of Directors’ role 
is to:

 ● Provide effective and proactive leadership of the 
Trust within a framework of processes

 ● Take responsibility for making sure the Trust 
complies with its Licence, its constitution, 
mandatory guidance issued by NHSI, relevant 
statutory requirements and contractual 
obligations

 ● Set the Trust’s vision, values and standards of 
conduct and ensure the Trust meets its obligation 
to its members, patients and other stakeholders 
and communicates them to these people clearly

 ● Set the Trust’s strategic aims at least annually, 
taking into consideration the views of the Council 
of Governors

 ● Be responsible for ensuring the quality and safety 
of healthcare service, education, Training and 
research delivered by the Trust

 ● Ensure that the Trust exercises its functions 
effectively, efficiently and economically

 ● Develop procedures and controls which enable 
risk to be assessed and managed

 ● Take decisions objectively in the interests of the 
Trust

 ● Take joint responsibility for every decision of the 
Board, regardless of their individual skills or status

 ● Share accountability as a unitary Board

 ● Constructively challenge the decisions of the 
Board and help develop proposals on priorities, 
risk, mitigation, values, standards and strategy.

The Board of Directors has both Executive and 
Non-Executive Directors (NEDs). All Non-Executive 
Directors are independent. It is a unitary Board 
which means that both Executive and Non-

ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT 

Directors’ Report

The RD&E is a NHS Foundation Trust that is 
constituted as a public benefit corporation. Its 
governance structure is founded on a constitution 
that is approved by the regulator, NHSI. The 
constitution sets out how the organisation will 
operate from a governance perspective and what 
arrangements it has in place, including its Committee 
structures and procedures, to enable the Trust to 
be governed effectively and within the legislative 
framework. The Trust’s constitution incorporates the 
legal and statutory requirements necessary to govern 
the Trust. In addition, Monitor (NHSI) has developed 
a Code of Governance which all Foundation Trusts 
must comply with (or explain if they choose not 
to comply). This details the necessary governance 
structures and processes that Foundation Trusts 
should have in place.

Essentially, there are three basic components to the 
RD&E’s governance structure:

 ● The Membership

 ● The Council of Governors

 ● The Board of Directors

Members of the RD&E consist of members of the 
general public who choose to apply for membership 
and Trust staff (unless they opt out). Members are 
located in a defined number of constituencies.

Members elect Governors and can stand for election 
themselves.

The Council of Governors (CoG) consists of elected 
public Governors, staff Governors and appointed 
individuals from key stakeholder organisations (as 
defined in the constitution). Governors help bind 
the Trust to its patients, service users, staff and 
stakeholders. Governors are unpaid and volunteer 
part-time on behalf of the Trust. They are not 
Directors and therefore do not act in a directional 
capacity as their role is very different. The Trust 
Chairman is chair of both CoG and the Board of 
Directors.

Governors are the direct representatives of local 
communities. They collectively challenge the Board 
of Directors and hold them to account for the Trust’s 
performance, as well as presenting the interests 
of Foundation Trust Members and the public and 
providing them with information on the Trust’s 
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executive Directors share the same liabilities and 
joint responsibility for every decision of the Board. 
In so doing, Board members bear full legal liability 
for the operational and financial performance of 
the Trust. The Chief Executive is the nominated 
Accounting Officer and is responsible for the overall 
organisation, management and staffing of the NHS 
Foundation Trust, for its procedures in financial and 
other matters, and for offering appropriate advice to 
the Board on all matters of financial propriety and 
regularity.

In carrying out their role, Directors need to be able 
to deliver focused strategic leadership and effective 
scrutiny of the Trust’s operations, and make decisions 
objectively and in the interest of the Trust. The 
Board of Directors will act in strict accordance with 
the accepted standards of behaviour in public life, 
which include the principles of selflessness, openness, 
honesty and leadership (The Nolan Principles).

The Board of Directors is legally accountable for 
services provided by the Trust and is responsible for 
setting the strategic direction, having taken account 
of the views of the Council of Governors, and of the 
overall management of the RD&E.

The Board is led by the Non-Executive Chairman. In 
addition, there are six Non-Executive Directors who, 
together with the Chairman, form a majority on the 
Board. The Executive Directors manage the day-to-
day operational and financial performance of the 
Trust.

The Board normally meets to conduct its core 
business at least ten times a year. At these 
meetings it takes strategic decisions and monitors 
the operational performance of the Trust, holding 
the Executive Directors to account for the Trust’s 
achievements.

Board Meetings

The papers for the monthly Public Board meeting 
and the approved minutes of the previous meeting 
are published on the Trust’s website in advance of 
the Board meeting. In advance of the legislation 
compelling NHS Foundation Trusts to hold their 
Board meetings in public, the RD&E decided in June, 
2012, to move to public Board meetings that were 
accessible to the public. These are meetings that 
take place in the public arena rather than public 
meetings, although members of the public have the 
opportunity to ask questions at the end of the public 
section of the meeting. Items of a confidential nature 
are discussed by the Board in private in a monthly 
confidential meeting. The issues discussed in the 

closed sessions tend to be commercial in-confidence 
issues that may impede the conduct of the Trust’s 
business if they were to be aired publicly. The 1960 
Act on Admission to public Meetings is used by the 
Board to help determine which topics are discussed 
privately and, over the course of the year, the Board 
has sought to discuss the majority of its business 
in the public session. In addition to its ten formal 
Board meetings, the Board also holds a number of 
development and strategy sessions.

The framework within which decisions affecting 
the work of the Trust are made are set out in the 
Trust’s published Standing Orders, Standing Financial 
Instructions and Scheme of Delegation, copies 
of which may be viewed on the Trust’s website 
(www.rdehospital.nhs.uk) or on request from the 
Foundation Trust Secretary.

The composition of the Board is in accordance 
with the Trust’s Constitution and the Policy for 
the Composition of NEDs on the Board. The Board 
considers it is appropriately composed in order to 
fulfil is statutory and constitutional function and 
remain within the NHSI’s Licence. In consultation with 
Governors, it has, through its recruitment of NEDs, 
been able to maintain a good quality and effective 
Board that is appropriately balanced and complete.

There is a clear division of responsibility between the 
Chairman and the Chief Executive. The Chairman 
heads the Board, providing leadership and ensuring 
its effectiveness in all aspects of its role, and sets 
the Board agenda. The Chairman ensures the Board 
receives appropriate information to ensure that 
Board members can exercise their responsibilities and 
make well-grounded decisions. The Chief Executive 
is responsible for running all operational aspects of 
the Trust’s business, assisted by the team of Executive 
Directors.

The Chairman and all Non-Executive Directors meet 
the independence criteria laid down in Monitor’s/
NHSI’s Code of Governance (Provision A.3.1). The 
Board is satisfied that no direct conflicts of interest 
exist for any member of the Board. There is a full 
disclosure of all Directors’ interest in the Register of 
Directors’ Interest which is available on the Trust’s 
website or upon request from eh Foundation Trust 
Secretary. Directors and Governors may appoint 
advisors to provide additional expertise on particular 
subjects if required.

The Board of Directors is accountable to the 
membership via the Council of Governors (COG). 
The Chairman informs the COG about the work and 
effectiveness of the Board at each Council meeting.
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The Business of the Trust is conducted in an open 
manner and annual schedules of meetings for the 
Board of Directors and COG are published 12 months 
in advance. 

Board Focus

Over the year the RD&E Board has led and governed 
the organisation successfully. Its focus has been 
on ensuring a sustainable and safe clinical financial 
service. A clear governance and management system 
is in place. The Board reviews in detail the Trust’s 
safety, quality, financial and operational performance 
at every Board Meeting.

Some of the key issues the Board focused on during 
the year included discussions and debates on: 

 ● Operational Performance

 ● Corporate Strategy

 ● Strategic discussions

 ● Devon Sustainability and Transformation Plan 
(STP)

 ● Integrated Care Systems (ICS)

 ● NHS and Devon System Long Term Plan

 ● Peninsula Clinical Services Strategy 

 ● Collaborative Agreement with Northern Devon 
Healthcare Trust (NDHT)

 ● Board Assurance Framework

 ● Clinical Pathway Transformation enabled by 
Electronic Patient Record (EPR) (MY CARE 
Programme)

 ● Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspection report

 ● Governance

 ● Operational Capacity

 ● Workforce including deep dives into sickness 
absence

 ● Responding to and Learning from Deaths 
quarterly reports

 ● Seven Day Services Board Assurance Framework

 ● Patient, Visitor and Staff travel

 ● Inclusion

 ● Mental Health

 ● Research and Development

 ● Infection Prevention and Control

 ● Staff and Patient Survey results

 ● Cancer performance

 ● Cardiology performance

 ● Board Development

 ● Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and Response

 ● Devon Flow Coaching Academy

 ● Patient Stories

 ● Recruitment of a Joint Chair 

 ● The Board met as the Corporate Trustee

Outside Interests

The Board regularly updates is Register of Directors’ 
Interests to ensure that each member discloses 
details of company directorships or other material 
interest in companies which may conflict with their 
management responsibilities. Board members also 
have an opportunity at the start of each meeting to 
declare any interests which might impede their ability 
to take part in discussions and Directors are aware 
that such a declaration would be permissible at any 
time during a meeting, dependent on the issue being 
discussed and the potential for any conflict to arise. 
The Directors’ Register of Interests is available from 
the Foundation Trust Secretary (01392 404551) or on 
the Trust website: www.rdehospital.nhs.uk/trust/ft/
documents and Directors can be contacted via e-mail 
at rde-tr.foundationtrust@nhs.net

Board Effectiveness and Evaluation

The Board continued to develop its effectiveness 
during the year primarily through its programme of 
‘development days.’ Development days are seminar 
sessions that allow the whole Board to explore a 
range of issues and topics and develop and discuss 
ideas outside the formal setting of the Board. In 
addition, the Board held seminar and development 
sessions on the days in which the formal Board 
sessions took place.

These seminars and development sessions enable the 
Board to examine issues in more detail, to explore 
key strategic issues as well as develop the capacities 
of the Board collectively. These sessions are vital to 
continuously improve the performance of the Board 
and to ensure that the Directors are able to discuss 
and debate key issues confronting the Trust in real 
depth. The issues discussed over the last year include: 
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 ● MY CARE seminar sessions and demonstrations

 ● Information Governance: Data Security and 
Protection Training

 ● Sessions with the STP, CCG and South Devon and 
Torbay NHFT leadership

 ● Session on Domiciliary Care with Devon County 
Council

 ● Session with the University of Exeter in order to 
continue to build the partnership

Board Development Days

 ● Several of the Board Development Days focussed 
on ‘pure Board development’ facilitated by an 
external provider

 ● Joint Development Days with the Council of 
Governors (this is also noted in the Governor 
section of the report):

 ● an update on the Devon Long Term Plan and 
STP and a Peninsula Clinical Services Strategy 
update. There was also an update on the 
collaborative agreement with Northern Devon 
Healthcare Trust

 ● deaf awareness session, a session for 
Governors and NEDs on Governance, the role 
of the NED and the role of the Governors 
and the importance of listening and effective 
questions facilitated by NHS Providers, a MY 
CARE update

The Chairman undertook appraisals for all NEDs. 
The process used a system that was co-designed 
and agreed by the Appraisals Working Group, 
a group made up of the Chairman, the Senior 
Independent Director and the Governors who sit on 
the Nominations Committee. The process involved 
a questionnaire aimed at the specific role of Board 
members that was used as part of a 360 degree 
feedback by fellow NEDs, Executive Directors and 
Governors.

Feedback on the performance of the NEDs was 
considered by the Chairman and fed back to the 
NEDs in appraisal meetings. Feedback on the 
performance appraisals was provided in written 
form and verbally to the Nominations Committee 
and an overview of the appraisals was discussed 
with the COG. All the appraisals undertaken were 
favourable with all NEDs performing at or above 
the expected level. In the event of concerns being 
identified through the appraisal process, this would 
be managed in line with the appropriate Human 
Resource policy.

A similar process was undertaken for the Chairman. 
In this case the process was led by the Senior 
Independent Director. Feedback on the appraisals 
was provided by the Chief Executive to the 
Remuneration Committee (RC). The Chairman 
undertook an appraisal of the Chief Executive and 
the results of this were fed back to the RC.

Quality Governance Reporting

We have put in place a rigorous approach to 
governing the quality of our services. More details 
about these arrangements are included in the Annual 
Governance Statement (pages 81-86 of this report).

Well Led

The Trust’s approach to Well Led is outlined within 
the Accountability Report (page 25-32) and also 
within the Annual Governance Statement (pages 81-
86)

The last independent review of the Trust’s Well Led 
Framework was undertaken by the Care Quality 
Commission as part of a full routine inspection in 
January, 2019. The Trust received a ‘Good’ rating for 
Well Led and an overall rating of ‘Good’ for the full 
Inspection.

Foundation Trust Code of Governance

The Royal Devon and Exeter Foundation Trust has 
applied the principles of the NHS Foundation Code 
of Governance on a comply or explain basis. The NHS 
Foundation Trust Code of Governance, most recently 
revised in July 2014, is based on the principles of the 
UK Corporate Governance Code issued in 2012.

Signed:

Suzanne Tracey 
Chief Executive

Date: 24 June 2020 
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SUMMARY BOARD ATTENDANCE 2019/20 
P = Public 
C = Confidential

Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19

P C P C P C P C C P C

Mr J Brent P P P P P P P P P P P

Mr P Adey P P P P P P P P A P P

Mrs J Ashman P P P P P P P P P P P

Prof C Bones

Mrs J Cooper P P P P P P A A

Mr P Dillon P P P P P P P P A P P

Mrs H Foster P P P

Prof A Harris P P P P P P P P P P P

Prof J Kay P P A A P P A A P P A

Prof H Khalil

Mr S Kirby P P P P P P P P P P P

Dr S Knowles P P P P P P P P P P P

Mr A Matthews A A P P A A P P P P P

Mr D Thomas

Mr C Tidman P P P P P P P P P P P

Mrs S Tracey P P A A P P P P P P P

Prof E Wilkinson-Brice P P P P P P P P A A P

P = Public 
C = Confidential
EC = Extraordinary Confidential

Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20

P C P C EC C P C P C EC P* C

Mr J Brent P P P P P P P P P P P P

Mr P Adey P P P P P P P P P P P P

Mrs J Ashman P P P P P P P P P P P P

Prof C Bones P P P A P P P P P P

Mrs J Cooper

Mr P Dillon P P P P P P P P P P P P

Mrs H Foster P P P P P A P P P P P P

Prof A Harris P P P P P P P P A A P P

Prof J Kay P A P P P P P P P P P P

Prof H Khalil P P A A P P P P P P

Mr S Kirby P P P P P A P P P P P P

Dr S Knowles P P P A

Mr A Matthews P P P P P P P P P P P P

Mr D Thomas P P P P P P P P P P P P

Mr C Tidman P P P P P P P P P P P P

Mrs S Tracey P P P P P P P P P P P P

Prof E Wilkinson-Brice

J Cooper left the Board on 2 August 2019 Key: P = Present A = Apologies 
H Foster joined the Board on 5 August 2019
E Wilkinson-Brice left the Board on 27 Sept
D Thomas joined the Board on 28 Sept
C Bones and H Khalil joined the Board on 18 November 2019
S Knowles left the Board on 27 November 2019
*Due to coronavirus a public meeting was not held



Page 30

Annual Report 2019/20

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
He was appointed as Principal (later Executive Dean) 
of Henley Business School, publishing a book on the 
causes of the 2008 financial crash, which won the 
UK’s Management Book of the Year Prize in 2012. 
He has held a number of non-executive roles in the 
public and private sector.

In 2011 he established an e-commerce consulting 
business in Exeter that has grown rapidly and now 
supports a number of leading brands from offices 
in Exeter, London and New York. He is a past Chair 
of the Trustee Board for the Terrence Higgins Trust 
and is the current Chair of the Chartered Institute of 
Legal Executives. Chris is a member of the Audit and 
Governance Committees. 

Peter Dillon, Vice Chair

Peter joined the Trust in July 2013. After more than 
two decades at Deloitte and running his own financial 
advisory business, Peter is now Finance Director at The 
Rivers Trust, a national charity for education about 
and improvement of the UK’s rivers. Until November 
2015 Peter was also a Non-Executive Director in 
the Devon & Cornwall Housing Group, a social and 
affordable housing provider. Peter was previously 
chair of the Patient Experience Committee and now 
chairs the Audit Committee and the Trust’s Charity 
Sub-Committee. Peter was appointed Vice Chair on 1 
September 2018. He is also a member of the MY CARE 
Programme Board and the Workforce Strategy Group. 

Janice Kay CBE, Senior Independent Director

Janice joined the Trust in April 2014. She is Provost 
of the University of Exeter and Deputy to the Vice 
Chancellor. She line manages the University of Exeter 
Medical School among other key roles. She holds a 
number of national positions in Higher Education, 
including the HEFCE Strategic Advisory Committee 
on Quality, Accountability and Regulation. Janice was 
appointed Senior Independent Director in April 2017.

Hisham Khalil, Non-Executive Director  
(Non-voting Board Member)

Hisham joined the Trust in November 2019. Hisham 
is the Head of the Peninsula Medical School, 
Faculty of Health, University of Plymouth. He is also 
a Consultant ENT Surgeon, University Hospitals 
Plymouth NHS Trust with an interest in Rhinology and 
Endoscopic Skull Base surgery. Hisham completed 
his surgical training in North Wales and the South 
West of England. He is the ENT South West Peninsula 
Clinical Research network lead and a Non-Executive 
Director, University Hospitals Plymouth, NHS trust.

Non-Executive Directors

James Brent, Chairman

James joined the Trust in May 2012 and is both 
Chairman of the Board of Directors and Council of 
Governors. He was an investment banker for twenty-
five years and established Akkeron Group which has 
key business activities in hotels, urban regeneration 
and leisure. He is also Chairman of Hawksmoor 
Investment Management Limited, a private client 
investment and fund management group. He has 
combined his commercial ventures with a desire to 
contribute in a range of public sector settings as well, 
for example previously as Chairman of Plymouth City 
Development Company and of Plymouth University.

James was appointed as Chairman of Northern 
Devon Healthcare NHS Trust on 1 July 2018.

Simon Knowles, Non-Executive Director 
(September 2017 – November 2019)

Simon joined the Trust in September 2017. He has 
wide experience as a clinician and director in the 
UK and Australia, working in the public, academic 
and commercial sectors. Until recently he was a 
non-executive director to a clinical commissioning 
group and a specialist advisor to the Care Quality 
Commission. He has a particular interest in using 
innovation and improvement science to help deliver 
“joined up” health and social care.

Jane Ashman, Non-Executive Director

Jane joined the Trust in April 2014. A Social Worker 
by profession for 34 years and a passionate believer 
in the integration of Health and Social Care, Jane was 
a Director of Social Services for nine years until 2009. 

As well as her Non-Executive Director role at the 
RD&E, until recently Jane was the independent Chair 
of two Safeguarding Adult Boards and undertook 
Serious Case Reviews and Domestic Homicide 
Reviews for other agencies when the need arises.

Jane is the Chair of the Trust’s Organ Donation 
Group and Patient Experience Committee and is a 
member of the Governance Committee.

Chris Bones, Non-Executive Director

Chris joined the Trust in November 2019. He started 
his career in Human Resources and held senior roles 
reporting to the Board in both Diageo and Cadbury 
Schweppes.
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Hisham is a National Teaching Fellow and a Principal 
Fellow of the Advance Higher Education. He has a 
Doctorate Degree in Otolaryngology and is a Fellow 
of the Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons 
in Glasgow. He is also an External Assessor for 
the Irish Medical Council and a General Medical 
Council Associate. Hisham has been committed to 
the learning and teaching of undergraduate and 
postgraduate students and trainees in Medicine, 
Dentistry and Nursing. Outside medicine, Hisham has 
an interest in poetry and landscape photography. 
Hisham is a member of the Governance Committee.

Steve Kirby, Non-Executive Director

Steve joined the Trust in September 2017. Following 
a period in the NHS, he worked internationally 
in health, running hospitals before moving to 
consulting. As a Partner at KPMG and then Ernst 
& Young, he has consulted to a wide range of 
government and health organisations both in the UK 
and overseas. He has worked at all levels on a wide 
variety of health projects and programmes, including 
large system reorganisations, regulatory issues, and 
“at the coal face” helping to develop services or 
dealing with failing organisations. He was one of the 
two EY partners who undertook the administration of 
Mid Staffs NHS FT. Steve was appointed as Chair of 
the Governance Committee in September 2018 and 
is a member of the Audit Committee.

Alastair Matthews, Non-Executive Director

Alastair joined the Trust in October 2018. He has 
broad strategic financial and commercial experience 
gained in both the private and public sectors. He is 
currently Chief Financial Officer at the University of 
Plymouth. Prior to that he spent 8 years as Finance 
Director and Deputy CEO at the University of 
Southampton NHS Foundation Trust. He has been 
Finance Director at Ordnance Survey, including 
being a member of HMT’s Financial Reporting 
Advisory Board, and spent 6 years as VP Finance and 
Administration at Computer Sciences Corporation.

He qualified and worked with Price Waterhouse in 
Bristol and then Southampton on a broad range 
of assignments across many sectors. Alastair is a 
member of the Trust’s Audit Committee.

Executive Directors 

Suzanne Tracey, Chief Executive Officer

Suzanne joined the NHS in 1993 having qualified as 
an accountant with Price Waterhouse. She held the 
post of Director of Finance/Deputy Chief Executive at 
Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust since 

2002 before joining the RD&E to take up the role of 
Director of Finance in 2008 and subsequently Deputy 
Chief Executive/Chief Financial Officer. Suzanne 
was appointed Chief Executive in 2016. She is also 
the Chair of the Healthcare Financial Management 
Association (HFMA) Provider Faculty and past 
President of the HFMA. 

Suzanne was appointed as Chief Executive of 
Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust (NDHT) on 
18th June 2018.

Professor Adrian Harris, Executive Medical 
Director/Deputy Chief Executive

Adrian has been the Executive Medical Director since 
April 2015. Prior to his appointment, Adrian served 
as Associate Medical Director for the Surgical Services 
Division and previously held the role of Director of 
the Emergency Department, spanning 12 years. 
Adrian has seen healthcare from both a primary and 
secondary care perspective, having trained as a GP 
before spending the last 22 years as a consultant 
Emergency Physician. He is an Honorary Associate 
Professor in Healthcare Leadership and Management 
at the University of Exeter Medical School.

In his spare time, Adrian is a practicing sports 
physician and is the Head of Sports Medicine for the 
Exeter Chiefs Rugby Football Club and intermittently 
works for the English Rugby Football Union (RFU).

Pete Adey, Chief Operating Officer

Pete qualified as a nurse in 1988, subsequently 
working at Hammersmith Hospital on a number 
of medical speciality wards prior to progressing 
to Senior Nurse. He joined the RD&E in 1995 and 
undertook roles as Divisional Manager in a number 
of services including Child and Women’s Health, 
Cancer Services, Radiology and Pathology prior to 
his appointment as Deputy Chief Operating Officer 
in 2012. Pete was formally appointed as Executive 
Director of Operations in March 2016. From March 
2017 has assumed the role of Chief Operating 
Officer. 

Pete was also appointed as interim Chief Operating 
Officer at Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust from 
August 2018.

Chris Tidman, Chief Financial Officer/Deputy 
Chief Executive

Chris joined the Trust in September 2017, having 
worked in a number of senior NHS roles in the 
West Midlands across Acute, Mental Health and 
Commissioning sectors and as Director of Delivery 
and Improvement for NHSI. After graduating in 
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high dependency care. A firm interest in facilities 
management alongside nursing resulted in Em taking 
the post of Director of Nursing and Facilities at Derby 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust prior to coming 
back to Exeter. During her time at the RD&E, Em has 
undertaken numerous roles as well as the role of 
Chief Nurse, including Chief Operating Officer for a 
time and lead for the Trust’s five year Transformation 
Programme focused on delivering, in partnership 
with local agencies, a new model of care to facilitate 
population health and wellbeing. In recognition of 
the close working partnership between the Trust and 
Plymouth University, Em was appointed Associate 
Professor Faculty of Health and Human Sciences. She 
is also an Honorary Associate Professor in Healthcare 
Leadership and Management at the University of 
Exeter Medical School. Em was in the first cohort of 
the national NHS Leadership Academy Aspiring Chief 
Executive programme, completing it in February 
2017.

Julie Cooper, Interim Director of People 
(September 2018 – September 2019) 

Julie joined the NHS in 1990, working in community 
trusts in the midlands before becoming Director of 
HR in 2003 at the Walsall provider of community and 
mental health services. During her time there, the 
Trust rose to the top ten of the NHS league table for 
staff survey results and finished first in the region for 
the Improving Working Lives initiative. As Director 
of Workforce and OD in a Birmingham PCT, she 
saw the Trust win the HSJ Workforce Development 
Award in 2010 for its apprenticeship scheme. 
A spell at the Department of Health followed, 
where she contributed to the development of the 
governance framework and role outlines for the 
governing body of CCGs. In recent years, Julie has 
worked as an independent consultant, managing a 
portfolio of assignments and supporting numerous 
NHS organisations in senior interim roles and with 
specialist consultancy services throughout the country 
including Gloucestershire, Liverpool, Manchester and 
Leeds.

1991, Chris took his first CFO position in 2005 at 
South Birmingham Primary Care Trust before joining 
Birmingham and Solihull Mental Health Foundation 
Trust as Director of Resources and leading them to FT 
status in 2008. Chris joined Worcestershire Acute in 
2011 as Director of Resources / Deputy CEO. 

Chris has taken on strategic change projects, 
including major PFI hospital moves, EPR and IT 
change programmes, and developing strategic clinical 
partnerships with neighbouring providers. Chris has 
been part of the NHS Top Leaders programme and 
was also HFMA Chair for the West Midlands in 2015.

Hannah Foster, Director of People

Hannah joined the Trust in August 2019, coming to 
the NHS from Flybe, the Exeter-based airline, where 
she was Director of People. Prior to her Flybe role, 
Hannah also held top strategic posts for the Church 
of England and global educational provider Pearson, 
helping both organisations develop key culture 
and organisational growth programmes. As well as 
strategic and business acumen, Hannah brings a 
strong voluntary and charitable ethos to both the 
Royal Devon & Exeter NHS Foundation Trust and the 
Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust.

Hannah actively supports a number of charities, 
including being a Trustee of Exeter homeless support 
charity St Petrock’s, and she is a member of the 
Greater Exeter Skills Board.

Dave Thomas, Interim Chief Nurse

Dave is an experienced nurse of over 30 years, having 
originally trained in Buckinghamshire. He specialised 
in Trauma Nursing in his early career and has utilised 
these skills in both NHS and military roles throughout 
his career. Dave moved to the South West in 2000, 
where he has held a number of roles, including one 
of the first male Modern Matron roles, and later a 
regional role in service redesign and change. Dave 
has been at the RD&E for the last six years and took 
up the post as Interim Chief Nurse following a spell 
as the Interim deputy to this role.

Dave is also the champion for the veterans and 
employer relationships with the Military and recently 
assisted the Trust to achieve the Gold Employer rating 
for the Ministry of Defence employer recognition 
scheme.

Em Wilkinson-Brice, Deputy Chief Executive/
Chief Nurse (July 2010–September 2019)

Em joined the RD&E in July 2010 after qualifying 
as a nurse in 1992 in Exeter. She subsequently 
worked in Oxford specialising in Cardiology and 
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
APPOINTMENTS

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are 
appointed by the Council of Governors (CoG) 
acting on the recommendation of the Nominations 
Committee, which is a committee of the CoG.

The Chairman chairs the Committee when 
appointing Non-Executive Directors. 

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are 
initially appointed for three year terms, as approved 
by the CoG. Re-appointments for a further three 
years can be made, subject to satisfactory appraisal 
and the approval of the CoG. Consideration of 
extension beyond six years is subject to rigorous 
review, in line with the agreed process.

During 2019 two NEDs, Jane McCluskey and Simon 
Knowles resigned from their posts. Therefore two 
appoints were made: Professor Chris Bones and 
Professor Hisham Khalil.

Membership of Nominations Committee  
(as at 31 March 2020)

 ● Chairman of the Trust – James Brent (Chair)

 ● Lead Governor -Peta Foxall

 ● Tony Ducker (Exeter & South Devon)

 ● John Murphy (Exeter & South Devon)

 ● Barbara Sweeney (East Devon, Dorset & Somerset 
& Rest of England)

 ● Kay Foster (East Devon, Dorset & Somerset & Rest 
of England)

 ● Michael James (Mid, North, West Devon & 
Cornwall)

 ● Marcus Pipe (Mid, North, West Devon & Cornwall)

 ● Hazel Hedicker (Staff)  

 ● Angela Shore (Appointed)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Non-Executive Director Remuneration Committee 
(NEDRC) comprises six Governors and is chaired by 
the Lead Governor. The Committee is supported by 
the Associate Director of People.

Recommendations for any changes to remuneration 
for the Chairman and other Non-Executive Directors 
are made by the NEDRC for consideration by the 
Council of Governors at a general meeting. During 
the year 2019/20, the Committee met on 30 May 
2019 and 16 January 2020. Following its meeting 
on 30 May 2019, it made a recommendation to the 
CoG at its 3 June 2019 meeting that the current rate 
of remuneration for NEDs (£13,039) was satisfactory; 
that the current number of days commitment for 
NEDs (3-4 days per month) was sufficient; that 
the 2% cost of living increase be applied to NED 
remuneration, from 1 April 2019 (this would take the 
level of remuneration to £13,300) and to change the 
mileage rate to 45p per mile for the first 10,000 miles 
and drop to 25p per mile thereafter (as per HMRC 
rules). This was approved by the Council. In respect 
of the Chairman, it recommended that the 2% cost 
of living increased be applied to his remuneration 
from 1 April 2019. This was approved by the CoG at 
its June 2019 meeting, with the CoG noting that the 
Chairman did not wish to accept the increase. 

At its meeting on 16 January 2020, the Committee 
reviewed its Terms of Reference for subsequent 
approval by the CoG at its meeting on 2 March 
2020. It discussed the remuneration level and terms 
and conditions for the recruitment of a new Chair. 
It discussed the remuneration level and terms and 
conditions for Non-Executive Directors. 

Membership of NEDRC  
(as at 31 March 2020)

 ● Peta Foxall (Lead Governor and Chair of the 
NEDRC)

 ● Hazel Hedicker (Staff Governor)

 ● Barbara Sweeney (East Devon, Dorset, Somerset 
and the Rest of England)

 ● John Murphy (Exeter and South Devon)

 ● Marcus Pipe (Mid, North, West Devon and 
Cornwall)

 ● Phil Twiss (Appointed Governor)
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ENHANCED QUALITY GOVERNANCE REPORTING 
 ● Venous thromboembolism (VTE) for 93.9% of 

patients

 ● Nutritional needs for 89.8% of patients

Monitoring Improvement in Quality

The Trust adopts a balanced scorecard approach to 
monitoring quality, presented through the Board’s 
Integrated Performance Report (IPR). The Governance 
Committee has a comprehensive oversight of the 
quality and safety of care, including all inpatient, 
outpatient areas and community services.

The Trust’s Clinical Quality Assessment Tool (CQAT) 
forms part of the monthly Home, Community, 
Hospital framework where key quality and safety 
indicators are reported and monitored. Furthermore 
a quarterly drill down is also presented to the Board 
of Directors where Divisions report by exception 
any ward / department/ service that flags on the 
framework.

In addition the Trust uses the Performance Assurance 
Framework (PAF) to provide assurance that 
performance, including quality and safety indicators 
are effectively monitored and reported to support 
managers to achieve the required indicators. 

Service Improvements

Home

Urgent Community Response Teams (UCR)

UCR teams support people for an average of ten to 
twelve days in order to avoid unnecessary hospital 
admission, or to support discharge home from 
hospital. At the point of discharge the number of 
patients who were fully independent remained 
consistent at 48%. The number of patients who 
required care homes following the intervention of the 
UCR team reduced from an average of 6% in Quarter 
2 to 2.89% in Quarter 3. 

The UCR approach has not been developed in 
isolation, but has benefited from the support 
of health professionals throughout the Trust’s 
community teams, working to a common goal of 
preventing unnecessary hospital admissions. This 
approach saw over 650 admissions prevented in 
Quarter 2.

Patient Care

The Trust, as a public benefit corporation remains 
inextricably linked, through the Council of Governors, 
to our members. The demographic information we 
hold about our members suggests that there is a 
reasonable correlation with the demographics of the 
wider population. To this end we have sought to 
involve and engage our members to seek their views 
on strategic direction, on service improvements or 
changes and on improving patient experience as a 
reasonable proxy for the population served by the 
Trust.

The Governors and members contribute to the quality 
agenda in a variety of ways, including:

 ● Three Governors as members of the Patient 
Experience Committee (PEC)

 ● Governors participating in the patient-led 
assessments of care environment

 ● All Governors identifying yearly priorities with a 
quality perspective.

Performance Against Key Healthcare 
Targets

The Trust has continued to work towards delivering 
the key national health care targets relating to quality 
throughout 2019/20.

The Trust monitors quality through a wide suite of 
metrics through its internally developed Ward to 
Board framework. The Home, Community, Hospital 
framework is fully embedded across all clinical 
Divisions within the Trust. This incorporates process 
and outcome metrics across a range of domains 
relating to quality of care including tissue viability, 
nutrition, infection control, falls and delivery of harm 
free care.

On average in 2019/20 the Trust: 

 ● Delivered harm free care within the hospital on 
94.9% of occasions

 ● Achieved a hand hygiene compliance rate of 
89.9%

 ● Undertook risk assessments for the likelihood of;

 ● Developing pressure ulcers for 95.1% of 
patients

 ● Falls for 91.2% of patients
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Community

Intermediate Care Approach

The Trust’s community hospitals continue to support 
people to regain as much independence as possible 
whilst in hospital through the adoption of the 
Intermediate Care Approach. Work to embed this 
approach started in 2018-19, and the introduction 
drove an average reduction in length of stay of 
five days across the three community hospitals. 
This reduction enabled an additional capacity of 
28% in the community hospital setting, resulting in 
more patients rehabilitating closer to home. From 
late Quarter 2 and Quarter 3 2019/20 a cohort of 
patients with complex needs resulted in an increase 
in the length of stay, however the evidence continues 
to demonstrate a commitment to the principles 
of Intermediate Care, with bed occupancy rates 
between 96 – 98%.

Hospital

Chest Trauma Unit

Patients experiencing chest trauma require 
complex nursing skills such as advanced analgesia 
management, intensive physiotherapy and 
advanced thoracic nursing skills. A chest trauma 
audit was conducted in 2018, and as a result of 
this improvements to the pathway were made 
throughout 2019. This has included improving team 
education and competencies, increasing the nursing 
establishment and networking with Derriford Trauma 
Centre.

Further work included the development of a Chest 
Trauma Team consisting of consultants, pain clinical 
nurse specialists, matrons and physiotherapists 
working together with the shared goal of improving 
care and outcomes for patients with a chest trauma.

Outcomes for patients have included specialised 
assessments by a dedicated team on admission, an 
improvement in chest injury trauma scores and a 
reduction in the percentage of patients developing 
medical complications as a result of the initial chest 
trauma.
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PATIENT SURVEYS
Over the last year a number of surveys have been 
reported which demonstrate the effectiveness of our 
services. These include:

 ● National Inpatient Survey Results 

 ● National Children and Young Peoples Survey 
Results

 ● National Cancer Survey Results.

 ● National Urgent Care Survey Results

National Inpatient Survey 

The national inpatient survey consulted with a sample 
of 1250 consecutively discharged patients during 
2019. The response rate for this survey was 58%. 

What went well?

Half of the Trust’s scores are in the top 20% range 
for Trusts surveyed nationally. These included: 

68% of respondents felt that there we always or nearly 
always have enough nurses on duty to care for them?

84% of respondents reported having confidence 
and trust in other clinical staff treating them (e.g. 
Physiotherapists, speech therapists, psychologists)

68% of respondents reported that on the day they 
left hospital their discharge was not delayed for any 
reason.

Areas for improvement

 ● 42% of patients reported being disturbed by 
noise at night. An action plan has been developed 
which includes the monitoring of noise levels in 
departments to prompt staff to be quiet

 ● Many patients said that they would like to be 
more involved in decisions made about their care. 
The Trust continues to review methods by which 
staff can involve patients in decisions about their 
care and treatment. 

National Children and Young People 
Survey

The national survey of children and young people 
uses three different questionnaires: 

 ● The 0-7 questionnaire; completed by the parent 
or carer

 ● The 8-11 questionnaire; completed by both the 
child and parent or carer

 ● The 12-15 questionnaire; completed by both the 
young person and parent or carer.

The trust consulted with 1250 children, young 
people and their families with the overall response 
rate for the Trust being 33% an improvement when 
compared to 26% in the previous 2016 survey.

What went well?

The Trust scored in the highest 20% nationally when 
communicating with families, management of pain 
and the positive impact that our staff themselves 
have on care. 

Could do better?

A number of the amber areas relate to the ‘hospital 
ward’, environment and facilities. Bramble children’s 
ward is currently reviewing its estate with plans 
being developed to enhance patient flow and child 
and family experience. Areas rated as red have been 
reviewed in the first instance and prioritised for 
action. These include:

 ● Did the hospital give you a choice of admission 
dates?

 ● If you used the hospital Wi-Fi, was it good enough 
to do what you wanted?

 ● For most of their stay in hospital what type of 
ward did your child stay on?

National Cancer Survey

The survey sampled 1,828 patients and saw a 73% 
response rate. The national response rate is 64%.

In 2018 Trust cancer services received an overall 
rating of 8.94 out of 10 on a scale of zero (very poor) 
to 10 (very good).

What went well?

Overall the introduction to the pathway; questions 
1–16 continues to perform well with 5 questions 
remaining in the top quartile, although the question 
relating to length of time waiting for diagnostic tests 
remains good at 88% compared to 90% in 2017.

The Living With and Beyond Cancer (LWBC) agenda, 
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Type 1 Service – Emergency 
Department

There is improvement to the Trust’s scores when 
compared with the other Trusts. Most scores are 
in the top-20% of Trusts and four are the highest 
achieved. Just seven scores are in the mid-range and 
there are none in the bottom-20%. The Trust scored 
better than most Trusts for 6 questions, about the 
same for 30 questions with no questions where the 
Trust scored worse than most other Trusts.

What went well?

 ● Arrival. This section of the survey explores two 
key issues; waiting for care to be handed over 
to the Emergency Department and privacy when 
patients are discussing their condition with the 
receptionist. Results are positive in this section 
and in relation to privacy the Trust was the 
highest rated. 

 ● Doctors and Nurses. The survey demonstrates 
that patients felt they had enough time to 
discuss their condition with the doctor or nurse 
who was treating them. Their clinician explained 
the condition and treatment to the patient in a 
way that they could understand. Patients also 
reported that staff discussed any anxieties or 
fears regarding their condition or treatment and 
that they had confidence in the doctor or nurse 
treating them.

Overall this survey demonstrated good outcomes for 
patient experience and this has been celebrated and 
shared with staff.

In 2016 an area for improvement in the emergency 
department was to improve the privacy for patients 
when discussing their details on arrival in the 
department. Work was undertaken to improve this, 
and the improved scores in this area in 2019 survey 
indicates that this has been welcomed by those 
attending the department.

What could be better?

24.4% of patients identified issues with obtaining 
help from staff in the ED. This is a new question in 
the survey and it is not clear whether it relates to 
patients in the treatment areas of ED such as minors, 
majors or resus, or if it relates to patients in the 
waiting room. For patients who have moved into the 
clinical areas a call bell system is in place for patients 
to summon assistance. Patients in the waiting area 
are overseen by the triage nurse although at night 
this is not always possible and reception is often 

continues to reflect improvements surrounding the 
supportive aspects of care, with questions 20, 21, 
22, and 23 all improving and remaining in the top 
quartile These ensure that when in contact with 
hospital services patients were informed about the 
following:

 ● Information about specific support groups 
available in the community.

 ● Information about the impact living with cancer 
could have on day to day activities.

 ● Information on getting financial support and 
direct help.

 ● Patients were informed they were entitled to free 
prescriptions.

Could be better?

Despite being in the top percentile for 2 out of 3 
questions in regards to home care and support 
offered to patients, the oncology teams are keen 
to improve this further. The Living With & Beyond 
(LWBC) leads are working with the community, 
particularly GP’s and Macmillan practice nurses to 
develop a plan to improve overall communication and 
sign posting across the health community.

Further scrutiny is required to understand a reduction 
in scoring for information given to patients in 
regards to radiotherapy. This scoring has decreased 
from 60% in 2017 to 56% in 2019 despite the 
introduction of a therapeutic radiographer reviewing 
patient cohorts at the end of their treatment plan. 

National Urgent Care Survey

The survey was previously only conducted within 
the Emergency Department but this year has been 
split between Type 1 and Type 3 services. A type 1 
service is defined in the report as a ‘major, consultant 
led A&E Department with full resuscitation facilities 
operating 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.’ A type 
3 service is defined in the report as an ‘A&E/minor 
injury unit with designated accommodation for 
the reception of accident and emergency patients. 
The type 1 service (Emergency Department) survey 
randomly sampled 950 patients who provided a final 
response rate for the Trust of 37.39%.

The type 3 service (Minor Injury Unit) survey randomly 
sampled 420 patients. The final response rate for the 
Trust was 42%.
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 ● Overall -it seems evident that the positive results 
in the rest of the survey have contributed to the 
high overall patient experience score for the Trust. 
This has been shared with staff. 

What could be better?

The survey recommendations ask that practitioners 
within the MIU ensure that they take time to ask 
about and address any anxieties or fears patients 
may be experiencing. 18.9% of respondents felt this 
wasn’t adequately addressed. This has been relayed 
to the team for reflection.

47.2% of respondents did not feel that discharge 
plans took their home and family circumstances into 
account. This has been addressed with the team as 
an item for reflection and action.

Learning from Patient Feedback

Intermediate Care Approach

Here, David shares his story of how Intermediate Care 
is helping people to get back on their feet:

David preferred his own company and enjoyed being 
at home with his steam railway and collection of 
WWI and WWII books. So being on a community 
hospital ward with other people and lots of activity 
was certainly out of his comfort zone. Initially he 
didn’t want to engage in rehabilitation, losing all 
motivation to even get out of bed and he often 
got frustrated with everyone who tried to give him 
encouragement David needed help from at least two 
people at a time with everything from being hoisted 
to move and personal care.

David’s health had been on the decline and he was 
struggling to remain independent at home. A further 
knock to his confidence and ability to look after himself 
came when he needed a pacemaker fitted meaning 
the need for long-term residential care was a growing 
concern. Although David didn’t think it at the time, he 
was a perfect candidate for intermediate care -tailored 
rehabilitation and re-ablement support to regain his 
independence and prepare him to return home safely.

By understanding David’s anxieties and what 
mattered to him, the intermediate care team worked 
with him to build his confidence and help develop 
goals that made sense to him in order to increase 
involvement. Through daily interaction and providing 
lots of reassurance and encouragement the team 
worked with him to help achieve independence e.g. 
managing his own medication and build strength 
to walk with supervision. Every aspect of care and 

the point of contact for patients requiring help or 
information. Action is being taken by the department 
to ensure that patients are aware of how to summon 
assistance whilst in the waiting room. This is 
alongside work that enables patients to see waiting 
times within the department 

9.1% of respondents reported feeling that staff were 
talking to each other about them as though they 
weren’t there. This action has been explored through 
embedding care rounds that are undertaken by 
our care champion consultant and members of the 
executive and non-executive team who participate. 
Following the survey there is also recognition that 
further work is required in terms of communication 
between speciality teams and the department. 

11.6% of respondents raised issues regarding the 
cleanliness of the department. ED is subject to regular 
audit of the clinical areas and all staff are informed at 
induction that it is everyone’s responsibility to ensure 
that areas are kept as clean as possible. There have 
been previous campaigns to encourage patients to 
put their rubbish in bins rather than on the floor and 
this remains an ongoing issue for the Department.

Type 3 Service – Minor Injury Unit

The Trust’s scores are positive when compared with 
the other Trusts surveyed. Scores are either in the 
mid-60% or the top-20% of Trusts. In addition, 
the Trust has three of the highest scores achieved, 
including overall experience.

What went well?

Specific positive recommendations have been made 
and are as follows;

 ● Arrival; patients report being given enough 
privacy when discussing their condition with the 
receptionist. 

 ● Seeing the Health Professional; patients felt 
that they had enough time with their health 
professional whilst visiting the minor injury unit, 
and that their condition and treatment was 
explained in a way which is meaningful and they 
could understand. Patients also reported that they 
had confidence in their health professional.

 ● Your Care and Treatment; 93.7% of patients 
reported they felt as involved as they wanted to 
be in decisions about their care and treatment. 
This was the highest percent for any trust in the 
survey. 
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rehabilitation was tailored to David’s needs from 
using different walking aids and moving to a bay 
where others patients were walking to help with his 
motivation through to finding a chair he could sit in 
comfortably so he didn’t stay in bed all day.

The difference in David from when he first started 
out on his rehabilitation journey is remarkable. 
David said: “I couldn’t lift my arm before, I had a job 
getting up and I wasn’t walking – it was chaos! I still 
have pain in my hip that brings tears to my eyes, but I 
have changed. Now I’ve got the determination to do 
it and am doing much more for myself. It’s thanks to 
the lovely care and wonderful people who work their 
hearts out”.

The Trust continues to identify effective ways 
of learning from patient feedback, and increase 
the strength of the patient voice throughout 
the organisation. We continue to utilise our 
“Demonstrating Difference” approach, which reports 
on service changes as a result of feedback. This is 
reviewed in the monthly Divisional Performance 
Assurance Frameworks, through the Patient 
Experience Committee (PEC) and via Board of 
Director reports.

In the past year we have developed a partnership 
with a “Critical Friend” from the University of Exeter 
to develop patient stories as part of our ongoing 
approach to gathering feedback. David’s story, 
above, was presented to the Board of Directors in 
July 2019. 

Complaints Handling

The complaints and concerns performance 
for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 
shows an overall increase of 25% (361) in the 
numbers received when compared to the same 
period for 2017-2018 (288). The percentage of 
acknowledgements sent within the target time 
was 96%. During the same period, the Trust also 
received 843 concerns which is similar to the number 
received (848) for 2017/18. In total, there were 1204 
complaints and concerns received from 1 April 2018 
to 31 March 2019 which is an overall increase of 6% 
on the total number (1136) for the previous year. 

The Trust’s rate of complaints remains low, despite 
the increase in the number of complaints. Of the 
890400 patient interactions with the hospital during 
2018/19, there were 1204 (0.13%) complaints 
registered with the Trust. This rate is unchanged from 
2017/18 complaint rate.

 All feedback from patients and their families is used 
to help us further improve our services. A detailed 
analysis on patient experience including complaints 
is presented on a quarterly basis to the PEC. The 
Committee ensures that learning from complaints 
and Demonstrating Difference examples are shared.

The top themes for complaints (not including 
concerns) received by the RD&E are in line with the 
national themes as shown below for 2018-19. It is 
not possible to provide direct comparison figures for 
previous years as the Trust had been using their own 
subject headings prior to 2018. These were amended 
during 2018 to reflect the KO41 subjects. 

Theme 2018-19

Clinical Treatment 16.2%

Communication 10.0%

Patient Care 9.8%

Values & Behaviours 9.2%

Examples of these themes include:

Clinical Treatment

 ● An Orthopaedic patient was concerned that a 
procedure was undertaken which they had not 
agreed to. The reasons for this were explained to 
the patient post-operatively, but regret expressed 
that the patient did not recall this, which was 
most likely to have been caused by the effects of 
the General Anaesthetic.

 ● An ophthalmology patient was concerned that 
they experienced post-surgery complications and 
there was an issue with equipment in theatre. It 
was noted that the equipment was in a different 
packaging which caused confusion to the staff 
but this did not impact on the outcome of 
surgery. The theatre sister has now arranged 
training to ensure all staff are fully familiar with all 
equipment and packaging which may be used.

Communication

 ● Concerns were raised regarding the discharge 
arrangements for a 93 year old lady. Lack of 
communication with her relatives resulted in her 
going home to a cold house with no food. As a 
result of this concern, questions about food have 
now been added to the discharge checklist. This 
alteration was to be implemented as soon as the 
form completed the required governance approval 
processes. The issues were also discussed at the 
Therapy staff meeting and all staff have been 
reminded of the need to check food, heating and 
keys with the patient. 
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 ● An issue was raised regarding the lack of 
communication for a patient who was awaiting 
surgery. The report from the Divisional 
investigation confirmed we were awaiting the 
patient’s case being discussed at the Regional 
Multidisciplinary Team Meeting (MDT), but had 
not been advised that the responsible Consultant 
based at a different hospital was on a period 
of extended leave. It has now been fed back 
to the Regional MDT the importance of having 
more than one point of contact. Furthermore, it 
was also highlighted to the different specialties 
involved in this time of treatment within the Royal 
Devon and Exeter Hospital the need for effective 
communication, as it is often the case that this 
condition is diagnosed by one specialty and the 
treatment is undertaken by another. Additionally, 
as a result of the issues raised, a Specialist Nurse 
also ensured appropriate literature is available for 
patients diagnosed with this specific condition.



Page 41

Annual Report 2019/20

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS 
plans nationally has been inevitably delayed by the 
coronavirus pandemic. However, the following 
themes, while still in draft form therefore, have 
been agreed in principle. In light of the coronavirus 
pandemic, the plan will be subject to change. 

Our vision is: “Equal chances for everyone in Devon 
to lead long, happy and healthy lives”.

Together we will:

 ● Work with communities to identify priorities 
and tackle the root causes of problems such as 
domestic abuse, homelessness and mental ill 
health

 ● Provide a dedicated centre for planned operations 
and treatments in Devon, to reduce the number 
of cancellations 

 ● Coordinate care among GPs, community teams, 
hospitals and mental health services so that 
people get properly joined-up care

 ● Create a dedicated, major diagnostic centre in 
Devon to reduce waits 

 ● Invest in computer systems and technology that 
can be used by all doctors and nurses, regardless 
of location or which organisation they work for 

 ● Reorganise our care so that fewer people need to 
travel outside Devon

 ● Work to tackle the physical health inequalities 
experienced by people with mental illness, 
learning disabilities and/or autism

 ● Enhance our prevention programmes to support 
people to stay well, with an early focus on 
diabetes and hypertension

 ● Establish clinical networks across the peninsula so 
that, together, hospitals can provide the services 
needed – starting with cardiac services, pathology, 
stroke and neurology 

 ● Improve access to psychological therapies, and 
put comprehensive support in place for young 
people up to the age of 25

 ● Actively promote careers in health and social care, 
to attract the workforce we need and to reduce 
our reliance on expensive agency staff

 ● Transform our maternity and perinatal care to give 
women more choices and more joined-up care 

Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership (STP)

Three local authorities, seven NHS organisations and 
one Community Interest Company joined forces in 
October 2016 to create the single Devon STP. Since 
the summer of 2018, Dame Suzi Leather has been 
the Devon STP independent chair.

The STP mission was to achieve the triple aim of 
improving:

1. Our population’s health and wellbeing

2. The experience of care

3. The cost effectiveness of spending per head of 
population 

The STP has taken a more focused approach 
on fewer priorities for 2019/20, to deliver high 
impact transformational changes and make best 
use of system resources. It has also made detailed 
preparations for the Integrated Care System. 

The RD&E works closely with other local 
organisations to offer more integrated care, closer 
to home. We are an integral part of the Devon 
Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP), 
and from 1 April 2020 became part of the Integrated 
Care System for Devon, known as Together for 
Devon. The STP has drawn up a draft Long Term 
Plan, following the parameters set out in the NHS 
Long Term Plan and tailored to meet the needs of 
Devon. The Long Term Plan is intended to meet the 
growing challenges of providing healthcare and social 
care when demand is dramatically increasing. By 
2030 there will be 37 percent more people aged over 
75. This is good news, but we need to act now to 
ensure we can meet their needs within the funding 
we have available. 

Eight out of ten of our hospital beds are used for 
emergencies. With the ageing population, the 
number of beds available for routine, planned 
treatment and surgery would reduce to zero. We 
already know too many planned operations are being 
postponed at times when all the hospital beds are 
needed for urgent care, that people are waiting too 
long for diagnostic tests and that there are too many 
having to go outside Devon for the services they 
need. 

After extensive engagement with the population, 
we worked with our partners to draw up the Long 
Term Plan to tackle these issues. Publication of these 
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 ● Reduce the length of time people stay in hospital, 
particularly stays of over 14 days and those 
where there is no clinical need for people to be in 
hospital

“Together for Devon” sets out a New Deal for 
Devon, where services are built around the individual, 
who with support also takes some responsibility for 
improving their own health and wellbeing. 

The STP’s plans for integrated care are dependent on 
digital technology. The STP digital strategy underpins 
the CCG and wider community endeavour to 
transform care in Devon, allowing health and social 
care professionals access to information, and giving 
patients the opportunity to participate in their health 
and care. 

During the year, partners in the STP have begun 
implementing the agreed Digital Blueprint for Devon, 
which envisages a fully integrated and interoperable 
clinical digital system. This will make vital information 
available across primary, secondary, community and 
social care as well as in hospices and care homes. 

With funding under the national Health System Led 
Investment in Provider Digitisation amounting to 
£8.8million over three years, Devon is pursuing this 
goal. Work is under way on a single electronic patient 
record (EPR) system for Devon hospices, system wide 
access to primary care information, and system-
wide integration of the EPRs in Devon, as well as 
paperless working across the Torbay health and care 
community. 

Community Conversations

Working in collaboration with providers, 
commissioners, GPs, third sector organisations and, 
most importantly, communities themselves, we 
continued to develop and strengthen our Community 
Conversation approach: connecting and listening 
to people in the places they live to help shape the 
future of heath and care services. Importantly, from 
the outset, we ensured we positioned ourselves as 
just one of many partners contributing to a broader 
approach to health and wellbeing in “place” and 
a key focus has been to help create the necessary 
conditions for communities to play the leading 
role in identifying need and working out how best 
to articulate this as well as considering their own 
strengths and assets. 

The Community Conversations, which now take 
place in ten market towns, have evolved in different 
ways, with different contributors and at different 
paces. Each is at its own stage of maturity and 
with many now morphed into existing community 

networks or established as new entities – all of which 
are being led by the community. For a number of 
places, the output from these ongoing conversations 
has been the development of community-led, co-
owned and co-produced plans to develop the right 
mix of bespoke interventions targeted at the specific 
needs of local citizens (and which seek to address the 
wider determinants of health and wellbeing), and the 
coordination of existing assets and connections that 
currently support people in their communities.



Page 43

Annual Report 2019/20

DISCLOSURES
Statement as to disclosure to auditors 

The Annual Report and Annual Accounts have been 
approved by each individual who is a Director at the 
time. 

Disclosure to Auditors and Further 
Disclosures

So far as each Director is aware, there is no relevant 
audit information of which the RD&E’s External 
Auditor is unaware. Each Director has taken all the 
steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in 
order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit 
information and to establish that the RD&E’s external 
auditor is aware of that information.

After making enquiries, the Directors have a 
reasonable expectation that the RD&E has adequate 
resources to continue in operational existence for 
the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue 
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the 
accounts.

If management wishes to use the services of the 
Trust’s external auditor for any non-audit purposes, 
we demonstrate why this is appropriate. The Deputy 
Chief Executive/Chief Financial Officer will provide 
professional advice on the appropriateness of such 
an arrangement and the Audit Committee keep 
under review the level of non-audit services provided 
by the External Auditor taking into account relevant 
guidance. The safeguard is in place to ensure 
independence. 

Income disclosures required by Section 
43 (2a) of the NHS Act 2006

The Trust has complied with Section 43 (2a) of 
the NHS Act 2006 (as amended by the Health and 
Social Care Act 2012). The Trust’s income from the 
provision of goods and services for the purposes 
of the health service in England is greater than its 
income from the provision of goods and services for 
any other purposes.

Income generated from the provision of goods and 
services for any other purposes is used by the Trust to 
provide healthcare services.
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REMUNERATION REPORT 
performance data provided by the Chairman for 
Chief Executive and the CEO for the executive 
team. The decision was made to consider awards 
for all Executive roles purely in the context of their 
respective roles within the Trust with consideration 
for additional responsibilities arising from the 
management contract with North Devon Hospital 
Trust being considered separately. Approval was 
sought and gained from NHSI and the Department of 
Health and Social Care for all recommended salaries 
that already exceeded the £150k threshold. 

This review resulted in changes to the salaries of 
three executives: the Chief Executive Officer, Medical 
Director and the Chief Operating Officer. Two further 
Executive positions exceeded the threshold for the 
first time and approval was sought, those were The 
Chief Financial Officer and The Director of People. 
In all of these cases an element of the total award 
made included a specific payment in recognition 
of the additional responsibilities arising out of 
their respective NDHT Board responsibilities and 
accountabilities. 

In accordance with HM Treasury guidance the 
Chief Executive Officer’s contract includes a clause 
permitting 10% of salary to be clawed back if 
performance is not considered to be satisfactory. The 
AFC Framework agreement allowed for a 1.7% pay 
rise to AFC staff and this was used as the base mark 
for the considerations on VSM pay.

Attendance at RC meetings in 2019/20

NAME
5 

April 
2019

29 
April 
2019

12 
July 
2019

21 
Aug 
2019

4  
Oct 

2019

13 
Jan 

2020

J Brent P P P P P P

J Ashman P A P P P A

C Bones P

P Dillon P P P A P A

J Kay P P P P P P

H Khalil A

S Kirby A P P P P P

S Knowles A P A P P

A Matthews P A P P P P

Senior Managers Remuneration Policy 

The RC completed the review of the Remuneration 
Principles and Application 2018 at the July 2019 
meeting. These are: 

The membership of the Remuneration Committee 
(RC) consists of the Chairman and all the Non-
Executive Directors. During the year, the Committee 
was chaired by Professor Janice Kay as the Senior 
Independent Director and Mr Stephen Kirby was 
appointed as Deputy Chair of the RC. The Chief 
Executive and, as necessary, other Executive Directors 
are invited to attend the meetings in an advisory role 
but are excluded on issues directly relevant to them 
by the Chair of the Committee. The Committee is 
supported by Mark Sowden, Associate Director of 
People. 

There have been a number of changes to 
membership of the RC during 2019-20. Simon 
Knowles resigned as a Non-Executive Director on 
27 November 2019, having reached the end of his 
term of office and his last meeting as a member of 
the Committee was on 4 October 2019. Following 
the appointment of Professor Christopher Bones and 
Professor Hisham Khalil as Non-Executive Directors 
from 18 November 2019, Professor Bones’ first 
meeting attended was 13 January 2020, however 
Professor Khalil was not in attendance on the 13 
January 2020.

The Committee’s main purpose is to set rates of 
remuneration, terms and conditions of service for 
the Chief Executive and Executive Directors i.e. 
those persons in senior positions having authority 
or responsibility for directing or controlling the 
major activities of the Trust. Since completion of 
the Senior Management Review in 2014 the role of 
the Committee has extended to also include direct 
reports to the Executive Directors who moved to 
‘spot’ salaries outside national terms and conditions 
within the review of the Trust’s senior management 
arrangements. Non-Executive Director and Chairman 
Remuneration is dealt with by the Non-Executive 
Director Remuneration Committee (NEDRC, see page 
33).

In-year remuneration decisions

The RC, taking into account the three-year pay deal 
awarded to staff on Agenda for Change (AfC) terms 
and conditions of employment, undertook a review 
of all salaries subject to RC review. 

Decisions were made in accordance with the 
Remuneration Principles as set out below and 
took into account the results of an extensive 
benchmarking exercise of comparator trusts, national 
median data provided by NHSI and individual 
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Key principles 

1.  The Committee understands that its approach 
must strike an appropriate balance with its duty 
to ensure the effective stewardship of public 
resources. The Committee understands that 
senior level positions in the Trust operate in a 
regional/ national context and that remuneration 
for these positions is primarily determined by 
the market. In order to remain competitive and 
attract and retain high calibre staff, the salaries of 
senior staff must be regularly reviewed to ensure 
that they remain broadly competitive and that the 
salaries offered to incumbents do not degrade 
over time so that they are out of line with 
comparable Trusts. Nevertheless, the Committee 
will avoid paying more than is necessary to 
recruit, retain and motivate high calibre Executive 
Directors and Very Senior Managers* and will 
take positions that are publicly defensible.

2.  The Committee’s approach to remuneration will 
seek to position the Trust in a way that it is able 
to attract, retain and motivate Executive Directors 
and Very Senior Managers of sufficient calibre to 
maintain high quality, patient-centred healthcare 
and effective management of the Trust’s 
resources. 

3. In reaching its determinations, the Committee 
will take proper account of National Agreements, 
for example Agenda for Change, and guidance 
issued by the Government, the Department of 
Health and the NHS market rates for comparable 
roles in comparable organisations. 

4.  The Committee will treat all people with equality 
and fairness when determining remuneration.

5.  The Committee will be rigorous in ensuring that 
potential conflicts of interest are recognised and 
avoided. Executive Directors and Very Senior 
Managers will not be involved in deciding their 
own remuneration package. 

6.  On an annual basis, the Committee will consider 
the remuneration packages of all Executive 
Directors and Very Senior Managers bearing in 
mind the performance of the Executive Directors 
and Very Senior Managers in fulfilling their duties 
and in regard to the overall performance of the 
Trust (as set out in Appendix A). The objectives 
set for the Executive Directors at appraisal and 
the progress against these will be shared with the 
Committee.

7.  The Committee will consider external benchmark 
comparison data on the pay and conditions of 
Executive Directors and Very Senior Managers 

in comparator Foundation Trusts annually. 
This work will be undertaken on behalf of the 
RC by the Associate Director of People. The 
process followed for benchmarking can be 
found at Appendix A. The Committee will make 
judgements on where it wants to position its 
relative remuneration package for Executive 
Directors and Very Senior Managers. The RC will 
treat comparator data with caution not least so as 
to avoid undue pay inflation. 

8.  The Committee will seek to apply the principles 
fairly and transparently and on the basis of data 
and advice from competent external bodies/
consultants or senior HR advisor as necessary. 
The Committee understands that it will use the 
data it gathers and the framework set out in the 
principles to exercise the necessary judgment on 
pay and reward issues. The Committee will ensure 
that remuneration reflects the extent of the role 
and responsibilities of individual posts and their 
contribution to the organisation and will be based 
on judgements relating to: 

 ● Market rates for comparable roles in 
comparable organisations 

 ● Interpretation of the data from an agreed 
comparator group 

 ● The size and scope of the role in question

 ● Advice from the Chairman of the Trust in 
relation to the Chief Executive 

 ● Information from the Chief Executive in 
relation to the Executive Directors and Very 
Senior Managers 

 ● Affordability 

 ● Other NHS pay settlements 

 ● Wider implications that may arise from setting 
the remuneration packages of Executive 
Directors and Very Senior Managers in relation 
to pay levels determined through national 
agreements within the NHS 

 ● Performance against set objectives 

 ● Any other factors deemed appropriate 

9.  The Committee will seek to achieve broadly 
standardised terms and conditions for example 
on notice periods for all posts which fall within 
the scope of the principles. RC has resolved to 
move towards a situation in which there is a 
higher degree of conformity (a notice period of 
six months).
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10. The Committee will be transparent in the 
application of its remuneration principles. It is 
a requirement that details of the remuneration 
package for Board Directors are recorded in the 
Trust’s Annual Report.

11. The Trust recognises that the RC has the 
authorised responsibility to apply its independent 
judgement on matters within its remit within the 
wording and the spirit of the agreed principles. 
However, there may be times when a different 
approach is required which steps outside the scope 
of the principles and in these cases, particular care 
must be taken and clear justification must be given 
and recorded. Some circumstances which may 
require flexibility include temporary promotions; 
atypical employment conditions; specific issues 
related to individuals etc. The Committee will 
reserve the right to recruit an Executive Director 
or Very Senior Manager on a salary below the 
market value in cases where a development plan 
would enable the employee to reach the minimum 
standards to undertake the role at a satisfactory 
level. The Committee also reserves the right to pay 
additional payments to Executive Directors and 
Very Senior Managers when deemed necessary 
because of exceptional circumstances. The 
occasions when additional payments are required 
will be limited. When considering using additional 
payments, the RC will need to be able to fully 
justify and explain why it has opted to take this 
course of action. It would only normally consider 
such action on the basis of a clear business case. 
Special care must be taken to ensure that the use 
of additional payments is completely transparent 
and that consideration has been given to the 
impact on pay inflation among Executive Directors 
and Very Senior Managers as well as to guard 
against accusations of bias or arbitrary practice. 

12. The Committee will on an annual basis (in line 
with the Committee’s work plan) ensure effective 
succession planning is in place for the Executive 
Directors and receive assurance from the Chief 
Executive that effective succession planning is in 
place for Very Senior Managers. 

 * Very Senior Managers = anyone grade 8D and 
above who is not on Agenda for Change or on a 
Consultant pay grade.

Scope 

1.  The principles will apply to the pay, awards 
and terms of employment of the Trust’s Chief 
Executive and Executive Directors and Very Senior 
Managers and include the following components: 

 ● the core salary 

 ● any supplementary payments to the Director 
over and above the core salary in recognition 
of extraordinary factors such as matching 
market forces in recruitment; exceptional 
performance etc.; 

 ● additional non-pay benefits over and above 
the core salary including pensions, vehicle/
lease car issues, mobile phones and other such 
benefits; 

 ● the terms and conditions in regards to 
issues (such as notice periods, conditions 
attached at recruitment stage for professional 
development for example) etc.; 

 ● arrangements for termination of employment 
and other contractual terms. 

2.  On an annual basis the Committee will consider 
whether any issues have emerged which require 
consideration of any adjustments to existing 
remuneration packages such as:

 ● at the beginning of a process to recruit a 
replacement Executive Director or Very Senior 
Manager ;

 ● when issues concerning national inflationary 
uplifts within the NHS need to be considered 
on an annual basis;

 ● when changes are made to the size and scope 
of Executive Director or Very Senior Manager 
portfolios.

Remuneration Principles and 
Application 2019

Process for benchmarking Executive Director 
salaries 

Each year the Committee will agree a number of 
trusts, typically 10-12, of a similar type, turnover, 
FTE, CQC rating and any other factor considered 
appropriate at that time and will establish the salary 
data for comparable executive director roles within 
those trusts as a primary source of benchmark data. 
In addition this will be completed for neighbouring 
trusts as directed by the Committee. 

Each year NHS Providers complete a survey of 
remuneration paid to executive and non-executive 
directors of all trusts and foundation trusts operating 
in the UK. Typically between 140 and 150 trusts 
complete the return and data is collated into the 
annual dashboards. The data is sorted by trust size 
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based on FTE and the largest group, median FTE, 
will be used to provide an additional source of 
benchmark data for comparison purposes. 

The final set of data is that used by NHSI as 
benchmark data for very large trusts, i.e. those with a 
turnover of over £500m. NHSI provide median, upper 
and lower quartile data when publishing this data. 

The Associate Director of People will also provide 
some analysis of the benchmarking data, history of 
individuals pay awards and any other data regarding 
current or planned NHS pay awards to inform the 
Committee.

The Committee will use these sources of benchmark 
data to inform the discussion to decide remuneration 
for all Executive Director positions. 

Process for benchmarking Very Senior Manager 
salaries 

Benchmarking data for Very Senior Managers as 
defined in these principles is significantly more 
difficult to establish.

In advance of Very Senior Manager remuneration 
reviews, the Associate Director of People will write 
to each of the benchmark trusts identified as the 
peer group for Executive Director remuneration 
reviews seek benchmark comparators. It must be 
recognised that different trusts may have significantly 
different management and leadership structures 
and direct comparison of roles is often very difficult. 
Trusts operating within the peninsula will also be 
approached irrespective of relative size to provide a 
local benchmark. The Associate Director of People 
will also provide some analysis of the benchmarking 
data, recent history of individual pay awards, current 
Executive Director Remuneration and any other data 
regarding current or planned NHS pay awards to 
inform the Committee during the review of Very 
Senior Manager packages. 

The Chief Executive completes a formal annual 
performance review for all Executive Directors and 
the Chairman reviews the performance of the 
Chief Executive. These reviews are reported to RC 
and, whilst the Trust does not currently operate a 
performance related pay scheme, these reviews are 
considered as a part of the review of remuneration. 

The Executive Directors are appointed on permanent 
contracts and have a six-month notice period. 

The Trust follows Agenda for Change (AfC) 
principles in calculating severance packages for 
redundancy. The redundancy payment will take the 
form of a lump sum, dependent on the employee’s 

reckonable service at the date of termination of 
employment. The lump sum will be calculated on 
the basis of one month’s pay for each complete 
year of reckonable service, subject to a minimum of 
two years’ continuous service and a maximum of 24 
years’ reckonable service being counted. Fractions 
of a year of reckonable service will not be taken into 
account. For those earning over £80,000 per year 
(full time equivalent) the redundancy payment will be 
calculated using notional full-time annual earnings 
of £80,000, prorated for employees working less 
than full time. No redundancy payment will exceed 
£160,000 (pro-rata).

In accordance with the Agenda for Change Terms 
and Conditions of Employment Executive Directors 
shall not be entitled to redundancy payments or early 
retirement on grounds of redundancy if: 

 ● they are dismissed for reasons of misconduct, 
with or without notice; or 

 ● at the date of the termination of the contract 
have obtained without a break, or with a break 
not exceeding four weeks, suitable alternative 
employment with the same or another NHS 
employer; or 

 ● unreasonably refuse to accept or apply for 
suitable alternative employment with the same or 
another NHS employer; or 

 ● leave their employment before expiry of notice, 
except if they are being released early; or

 ● they are offered a renewal of contract (with the 
substitution of the new employer for the previous 
NHS one); or 

 ● where their employment is transferred to another 
public service employer who is not an NHS 
employer. 

The new component to the remuneration package 
which was introduced during the year 2018/19 
and which applies only to the executives that have 
specific board roles at NDHT arising as a result of the 
management agreement remains in place.

The payments of between £10k and £19k are to 
recognise the increased responsibility that is created 
by holding accountable office roles on the NDHT 
board as well as the Board. 

This pays a fixed amount per annum for the duration 
of the agreement and this is reported in the 
remuneration tables on the next page.
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Directors Remuneration 2019/20
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There were no annual performance-related bonuses 
or long-term performance-related bonuses paid to 
any individual in the financial year. 

There are no benefits in kind reported this year 
relating to the mileage allowance paid over and 
above the HM Revenue & Customs allowance for 
Executive Directors as this is now taxed at source. 

The Payment Settlement Agreement with HMRC 
under which Non-Executive Directors official mileage 
was paid and the Trust made payments for Tax and 
NI based on grossed up figures ceased with effect 
from 31st March 2019, as per HMRC regulations. All 
Non-Executive mileage over HMRC threshold is now 
taxed at source. 

The remuneration shown in the ‘Recharges to 
Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust’ column for J 
Brent, P Adey, H Foster, A Harris and S Tracey ( Plus 
J Cooper up to date of resignation) relates to their 
roles as Directors under a collaborative agreement 
with Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust (NDHT), 
which commenced on 18 June 2018. 

The final column discloses the net total remuneration 
for each Director in respect of their duties for the 
Royal Devon & Exeter NHS Foundation Trust.
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Directors’ Remuneration 2018/19
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There were no annual performance-related bonuses 
or long-term performance-related bonuses paid to 
any individual in the financial year. 

The benefits in kind relate to the mileage allowance 
paid over and above the HM Revenue & Customs 
allowance for Executive Directors. For Non-Executive 
Directors official mileage is paid under a Payment 
Settlement Agreement (PSA) with HMRC, and 
the Trust makes payments for Tax and NI based 
on grossed up figures. Other remuneration for C 
Tidman relates to HMRC scheme approved relocation 
costs and for S Tracey a compensatory payment for 
expenses incurred.

The remuneration shown in the ‘Recharges to 
Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust’ column for 
J Brent, P Adey, J Cooper, A Harris and S Tracey 
relates to their roles as Directors under a collaborative 
agreement with Northern Devon Healthcare NHS 
Trust (NDHT), which commenced on 18 June 2018. 
The final column discloses the net total remuneration 
for each Director in respect of their duties for the 
Royal Devon & Exeter NHS Foundation Trust.

Ratio between highest paid director 
and median remuneration received by 
employees of the Trust

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the 
relationship between the remuneration of the highest 
paid director in their organisation and the median 
remuneration of the organisation’s workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid 
director in the organisation in the financial year 
2019-20 was £155k-£160k (2018-19, £145k 
-£150k). This was 5.3 times (2018-19, 5.1 times) the 
median remuneration of the workforce, which was 
£29.7k (2018-19, £28.7k). 

In 2019-20, 36 (2018-19, 76) employees received 
remuneration in excess of the highest-paid director. 
Remuneration ranged from £160k to £217k (2018-
19, £150k to £242k). 

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated 
performance-related pay and benefits-in-kind. It does 
not include severance payments, employer pension 
contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value 
of pensions. The calculation is based on the full-time 
equivalent staff of the Trust at the reporting period 
end date on an annualised basis. Where there is a 
sharing arrangement, it is cost to the entity of an 
individual that identifies them as “highest paid” and 
not the total of that individual’s remuneration. 

A proportion of the remuneration for the Chief 
Executive, Medical Director, Director of People 
and Chief Operating Officer are recovered from 
Northern Devon Healthcare Trust under the terms 
of the Management Contract and as a result Chris 
Tidman is the highest paid Director for the purposes 
of the calculation. The three-year national pay deal 
is responsible for the change in median pay for 
employees.

2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000

Band of highest paid 
Director -as above

155-160 145-150

Median remuneration 
received by employees 
within the Trust

29.7 28.7

Ratio 5.3 5.1

Pension related benefits for defined 
benefit schemes: 

The amount included is the annual increase 
(expressed in £2,500 bands) in pension entitlement 
determined in accordance with the ‘HMRC’ method. 
The HMRC method derives from s229 of the Finance 
Act 2004, but is modified for the purpose of this 
calculation. In summary the increase in value is 
calculated as follows: 

(20 x PE) + LSE) – (20 x PB) + LSB) -employee 
contributions. 

 ● PE is the annual rate of pension that would be 
payable to the director if they became entitled to 
it at the end of the financial year; 

 ● PB is the annual rate of pension, adjusted for 
inflation, that would be payable to the director if 
they became entitled to it at the beginning of the 
financial year; 

 ● LSE is the amount of lump sum that would be 
payable to the director if they became entitled to 
it at the end of the financial year; 

 ● and LSB is the amount of lump sum, adjusted for 
inflation, that would be payable to the director if 
they became entitled to it at the beginning of the 
financial year. 
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As Non-Executive members do not receive 
pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in 
respect of pensions for Non-Executive members. 

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the 
actuarially assessed capital value of the pension 
scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular 
point in time. The benefits valued are the member’s 
accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s 
pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a 
payment made by a pension scheme, or arrangement 
to secure pension benefits in another pension 
scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a 
scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued 
in their former scheme. The pension figures shown 
relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued 
as a consequence of their total membership of the 
pension scheme, not just their service in a senior 
capacity to which the disclosure applies. The CETV 
figures, and the other pension details, include the 
value of any pension benefits in another scheme or 

arrangement which the individual has transferred 
to the NHS pension scheme. They also include any 
additional pension benefit accrued to the member 
as a result of their purchasing additional years of 
pension service in the scheme at their own cost. 
CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and 
framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of 
Actuaries.

Real increase in CETV -This reflects the increase in 
CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes 
account of the increase in accrued pension due 
to inflation, contributions paid by the employee 
(including the value of any benefits transferred from 
another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses 
common market valuation factors for the start and 
end of the period.

Cash Equivalent Transfer Values (CETV) are not 
available for members that have reached the normal 
retirement age or who have commenced drawing 
their pension or are a deferred member. 
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Future Policy Table

Element of pay 
(Component)

How component 
supports short and long 
term strategic objective/
goal of the Trust

Operation of the 
component

Performance metric used 
and time period

 ● Basic salary Provides a stable basis for 
recruitment and retention, 
taking into account the 
Trust’s position in the 
labour market and a need 
for a consistent approach to 
leadership. 

Stability, experience, 
reputation and widespread 
knowledge of local needs 
and requirements supports 
the Trust’s short term 
strategic objectives outlined 
in its annual priorities and 
its long term strategic goals

Following market testing 
(undertaken every year) 
which seeks to identify 
salary paid for similar role, 
individuals are remunerated 
by spot salary on a case 
by case basis. There is no 
predefined upper limit. 

In accordance with the NHSI 
Guidance 

on pay for very senior 
managers in NHS trusts and 
Foundation Trusts the Chief 
Executive Officer contract 
includes a clause permitting 
10% of salary to be clawed 
back if performance is 
not considered to be 
satisfactory.

Pay is reviewed annually 
in relation to individual 
performance based on 
agreed objectives set out 
prior to the start of that 
financial year which runs 
between 

1 April and 31 March. 
Increases are ordinarily in 
line with the wider NHS 
workforce as recommended 
by the NHS Pay Review 
Body.

 ● Benefits N/A N/A N/A

 ● Pension Provides a solid basis for 
recruitment and retention 
of top leaders in sector.

Contributions within the 
relevant NHS pension 
scheme. Details of the 
schemes currently in place 
can be found at: http:// 
www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/ 
Pensions.aspx

Contribution rates are 
set by the NHS Pension 
Scheme.

 ● Bonus N/A N/A N/A

 ● Fees N/A N/A N/A

 

Signed: 

 

Suzanne Tracey 
Chief Executive 

Date: 24 June 2020 
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The most important asset for health and social 
care is the people who deliver it. Yet the NHS faces 
significant challenges in having a workforce that 
has the right skills in the right places, that is not 
overloaded or stressed, and that is motivated and 
empowered. 

Over the following pages the Trust will share some 
of the key initiatives it has introduced to support and 

STAFF REPORT 
enable our people to give of their best, delivering 
the high quality services our communities expect and 
deserve. 

We would like to thank our staff, volunteers and 
Governors who contribute so much every day to 
making the RD&E a great organisation, always 
striving to do the right thing for our patients, people 
and communities.

Staff Numbers

Note 5.3 Average number 
of employees

(WTE basis)

A09CY01 A09CY01P A09CY01O A09PY01 A09PY01P A09PY01O Maincode

Total
Accounts
31 Mar 
2020

2019/20
No.

Permanent
Accounts
31 Mar 
2020

2019/20
No.

Other
Accounts
31 Mar 
2020

2019/20
No.

Total
Accounts
31 Mar 
2019

2018/19
No.

Permanent
Accounts
31 Mar 
2019

2018/19
No.

Other
Accounts
31 Mar 
2019

2018/19
No.

Subcode

Medical and dental 860 836 24 835 816 19 STA0370

Ambulance staff 2 2 0 STA0380

Administration and estates 1,543 1,433 110 1,428 1,309 119 STA0390

Healthcare assistants and 
other support staff

2,597 2,453 144 2,504 2,380 124 STA0400

Nursing, midwifery and 
health visiting staff

2,023 1,936 87 1,916 1,826 89 STA0410

Nursing, midwifery and 
health visiting learners

17 17 15 15 STA0420

Scientific, therapeutic and 
technical staff

740 719 21 721 704 17 STA0430

Healthcare science staff 207 207 197 197 STA0440

Social care staff 0 0 STA0450

Other 0 0 STA0480

Total average numbers 7,689 7,603 386 7,615 7,247 368 STA0490

Of which:

Number of employees (WTE) 
engaged on capital projects

140 136 4 75 75 STA0500

Staff numbers continue to increase, by almost 4% over the last year. Much of that growth due to the Trust 
recruiting more registered nursing staff. In a challenging environment for recruiting healthcare professionals, 
the Trust’s workforce has seen a net increase of over 100 nurses compared with the same point a year ago. 
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Staff Costs 

Staff costs for 2019/20 and 2018/19 are summarised in the table below.

Note 5.2 Employee Expenses  
(Group after consolidation of charity)

A09CY01 A09CY01P A09CY01O A09PY01 A09PY01P A09PY01O

Total
2019/20

£000

Permanent
2019/20

£000

Other
2019/20

£000

Total
2018/19

£000

Permanent
2018/19

£000

Other
2018/19

£000

Salaries and wages 283,420 281,995 1,425 261,112 259,697 1,415

Social security costs 25,746 25,746 0 23,600 23,600 0

Apprenticeship levy 1,382 1,382 0 1,288 1,288 0

Pension cost - employer contributions to 
NHS pension scheme

34,396 34,396 0 31,706 31,706 0

Pension cost - employer contributions paid 
by NHSE on provider's behalf

15,046 15,046 0 0 0 0

Pension cost - other 173 173 0 117 117 0

Other post employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0

Termination benefits 105 105 0 172 172 0

Temporary staff - external bank 0 0 0 0 0 0

Temporary staff - agency/contract staff 10,592 0 10,592 11,627 0 11,627

NHS charitable funds staff 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL GROSS STAFF COSTS 370,860 358,843 12,017 329,622 316,580 13,042

"Recoveries from DHSC Group bodies in 
respect of staff cost netted off 
expenditure"

0 0 0 0 0 0

Recoveries from other bodies in respect of 
staff cost netted off expenditure

0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL STAFF COSTS 370,860 358,843 12,017 329,622 316,580 13,042
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Exit Packages
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Much of the Trust’s pay is aligned to national pay 
agreements and the gender pay gap is similar to 
other NHS hospital organisations where there is a 
higher proportion of men in senior medical roles and 
greater numbers of women roles at lower bands. 

Actions are in place seek to reduce the gap in areas 
within the control of the trust.

Post-Brexit Update
The Trust has continued to monitor the impact of 
Brexit by regularly reviewing exit interviews and 
numbers. It has encouraged its staff to apply for the 
pre-settled status since the scheme was announced 
and has provided regular reassurance to its staff that 
they are both valued and an integral part of the RDE 
workforce. Help has been on hand to assist any EU 
worker to make a pre-settled application. Managers 
have been encouraged to discuss openly that these 
staff have secured roles within the Trust and are very 
much needed. In addition the Trust has maintained a 
strong presence recruiting in Europe for both nurses 
and radiographers and has successfully employed 
some very professional and good quality individuals.

Note 6.3 Exit packages: other (non-
compulsory) departure payment

A09CY25 A09CY26 A09PY25 A09PY26 Maincode

Payments 
agreed 
2019/20

Total 
value of 

agreements 
2019/20

Payments 
agreed 
2018/19

Total 
value of 

agreements 
2018/19

Expected 

sign
No. £000 No. £000 Subcode

Voluntary redundancies including early 

retirement contractual costs
+ STA0720

Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) 

contractual costs
+ STA0730

Early retirements in the efficiency of the 

service contractual costs
+ STA0740

Contractual payments in lieu of notice + 26 105 18 89 STA0750

Exit payments following employment 

tribunals or court orders
+ 7 55 6 76 STA0760

Non-contractual payments requiring HMT 

approval (special severance payments)*
i + STA0770

Total** + 33 160 24 165 STA0708

of which:

non-contractual payments requiring 
HMT approval made to individuals where 

the payment value was more than 12 

months' of their annual salary

+ STA0790

* Includes  any  non-contractual severance payment made following judicial mediation, and non-contractual payments in lieu of 

notice [please note additional footnote disclosure required in accounts by Group Accounting Manual Annex 3 to Chapter 3] 

** As individual exit packages can be made up of several components, each of which listed in this note, the total number of 

payments listed in this note may exceed the total number of other departures agreed in Note 6.1 and Note 6.2, which will be the 

number of individuals.

Gender Equality

The Trust is committed to achieving equality and 
diversity in all that we do, for our staff and in the 
services they provide. The numbers of male and 
female employees at 31 March 2020 is reported in 
the table below.

  Female Male Total

Directors 4 9 13

Employees* 7,021 1,989 9,010

* The figure for employees is the total number of 
employees as opposed to the whole time equivalent 
reported in the staff number section above.

In line with statutory reporting the Trust publically 
reported its gender pay gap report in line with 
requirements. This is available via gender-pay-gap.
service.gov.uk.

The data required to be reported by 31st March 2020 
was a snapshot of our data from 31st March 2019. The 
data shows women occupy 68.9% of the highest paid 
jobs and 79.6% of the lowest paid jobs and women’s 
median hourly wage is 11.5% lower than men’s.
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Sickness Absence

Data for The Trust’s sickness absence is available from 
the NHS Digital website. It provides quarterly sickness 
absence rates by NHS England region and monthly 
sickness absence rates by NHS England Region, staff 
group, organisation type and organisation.

https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/
publications/statistical/nhs-sickness-absence-rates 

Disability

The Equality Act 2010 defines disability and makes 
it clear that a person is disabled if they have a 
physical or mental impairment that has a substantial 
and long-term negative effect on their ability to do 
normal daily activities. The Board has reviewed our 
approach to inclusion as described in the Equality, 
Diversity and Inclusion section of the Annual Report. 
The Trust is already taking a variety of actions to 
support both existing staff and applicants wishing to 
join the Trust.

The Director of People is personally responsible for 
ensuring that the Trust complies with equality law 
and any relevant NHS standards for the promotion 
and assessment of equality. This reflects the 
importance placed by the Trust on the proper and 
equitable treatment of all applicants, workers and 
service users regardless of disability. All staff undergo 
equality and diversity training, raising awareness of 
personal and Trust responsibilities to those with any 
protected characteristic including disability, and this 
training will be expanded in the future. The Director 
of People led implementation of the inaugural 
workforce disability equality standard (WDES) in the 
summer of 2019.

The core Trust Policy that applied during the financial 
year is the Equality and Diversity Policy. This policy 
gives full and fair consideration to applications for 
employment made by disabled persons relating to 
their particular aptitudes and abilities, for continuing 
the employment and arranging appropriate training 
for employees who have become disabled persons 
during the period and for the training and for 
career development and promotion of disabled 
employees. This policy was subject to periodic review 
and was ratified by the Workforce and Governance 
Committee in May 2015.

The ultimate aim of the policy is to harness the 
individuality of every employee, so everyone is fully 
engaged in the work of the Trust and to protect 
all workers and service users from all forms of 
discrimination, harassment and victimisation on the 
basis of any protected characteristic.

We have been recognised as Positive about Disabled 
People, for our work supporting employees with 
disabilities and hold a number of accreditations 
demonstrating our supportive approach towards staff 
and applicants with both physical and mental health 
issues. Following funding changes the educational 
needs assessment provider that the Trust had been 
using has ceased trading and we are currently 
negotiating with a local education college to provide 
this support going forwards.

The Trust is a NHS Employers Diversity and Inclusion 
Partner and continues to enact the D&I agenda, 
including disability, at a National level.

Recruitment

The Trust’s Recruitment and Selection Policy is 
designed to ensure that recruitment is carried out in 
accordance with the Equality Act 2010. Its aim is to 
ensure that applicants feel that they have been dealt 
with professionally, fairly and that they feel that the 
Trust values its staff.

The Trust is accredited by Jobcentre Plus to use the 
‘Positive about Disabled People’ symbol. This means 
that the Trust will:

 ● Interview all applicants with a disability who meet 
the minimum criteria for a position and consider 
them on their abilities

 ● Consult with employees with a disability about 
how the Trust can help develop their abilities

 ● Make every effort when employees acquire a 
disability to make sure they stay in employment

 ● Take action to ensure that all employees develop 
sufficient awareness of disability to make these 
commitments work 

 ● Review these commitments and plan on ways to 
improve them.

All applicants asked to attend a selection process 
are invited to provide details on any reasonable 
adjustments that they require so that these can be 
implemented.

Once a conditional offer of employment has been 
made, all applicants for employment with the Trust 
complete an online Health Questionnaire as part 
of the conditional offer process that is reviewed by 
the Occupational Health Service (OHS). If issues are 
identified, the individual will be invited to attend 
the OHS where an assessment is completed and 
recommendations are made to the recruiting Line 
Manager so that whenever possible the person 
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may be employed safely and with the necessary 
adjustments in place to enable them to carry out the 
role.

Experts from both the Occupational Health Service 
and Human Resources are available to provide 
advice on reasonable adjustments and guidance to 
managers during and after the recruitment process.

During the probationary period of a new employee 
to the Trust, the line manager will ensure that 
reasonable adjustments are provided as appropriate 
at the commencement of employment. During each 
of the subsequent review meetings line managers 
will consider the adjustments required to support the 
employee’s disability throughout the process. If line 
managers require further guidance on the Equality 
Act and Disabilities, they can contact the Specialist 
HR Services Team.

The Specialist HR Services Team provides a wealth 
of guidance and signposting to managers and 
employees including reference to the ‘Managing My 
Health At Work’ booklet which is a practical guide for 
staff experiencing stress, anxiety or depression.

Staff who become disabled

Whenever possible we support staff to either prevent 
or minimise the impact of any disability on the ability to 
work. Early discussions with Line Managers and referrals 
to the Occupational Health Service are encouraged 
so that action can be taken to aid rehabilitation and 
return to work following illness or injury, making any 
reasonable adjustments that can assist.

Actions taken to assist staff who develop a disability 
include provision of additional software, specially 
adapted hardware or larger screen to facilitate use of 
technology, adjustments to desks or chairs through to 
job redesign to enable a person to continue working.

Members of the Specialist HR Services Team have 
undertaken a Level 2 Certificate in Understanding 
Specific Learning Difficulties and the Trust has access 
to an Online Assessment Tool which identifies 
whether dyslexia is indicated and provides a range 
of recommendations and further references to be 
discussed with the Line Manager supported by HR.

The Stress Management: Prevention, Recognition 
and Support Policy is supported with an extensive 
Manager’s Toolkit to help managers have a positive 
impact on the health and wellbeing of employees.

The Trust also has a number of ‘Freedom to Speak 
up Guardians’ in post across grades and divisions. 
The FTSUG ‘s work with senior management in the 

organisation to help develop a culture in which staff 
feel able to “speak up” if they feel that the Trust 
values are being compromised.

Support for employees psychological 
wellbeing

The Trust has dedicated provision in place to 
support staff’s health at work and wellbeing. This 
includes a comprehensive Occupational Health 
and Wellbeing team incorporating Specialist Nurse 
Advisers, Occupational Physicians and an in-house 
Staff Support & Counselling Service for employees. 
This is further supported with a contracted Employee 
Assistance Programme, which is available for all staff 
and their dependants to access. The staff counselling 
team provides one to one counselling and relevant 
interventions such as trauma therapy within NICE 
Guidelines and the BACP Ethical Framework. 

The Occupational Health and Wellbeing Team also 
deliver a wide range of courses, education and 
engagement events focused on prevention and early 
intervention of psychological ill health. All staff can 
access Stress Awareness Workshops, Mindfulness 
Courses and Sleep Coaching Courses. 

In the last 12 months a dedicated one day course 
in mental health training for managers has formed 
part of the managers training offer, with over 80 
managers completing this training to date. This is 
in addition to the standard 2 day course on offer to 
Trust employees.

In the past two years over 100 mental health 
champions have been recruited and trained in Mental 
Health First Aid, and are available to support staff in 
their departments.

The Trust has also invested in Trauma Response 
Incident Management (TRiM) training, in order to 
increase the support and response after an adverse 
incident. 

Mindful Employer

The Trust holds the Mindful Employer accreditation 
for the way we promote good mental health among 
our employees. The Mindful Employer scheme 
delivers against the following aims:

 ● Show a positive and enabling attitude to 
employees and job applicants with mental health 
issues. This will include positive statements in local 
recruitment literature.

 ● Ensure that all staff involved in recruitment and 
selection are briefed on mental health issues and 
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the Equality Act, and given appropriate interview 
skills.

 ● Make it clear in any recruitment or occupational 
health check that people who have experienced 
mental health issues will not be discriminated 
against and that disclosure of a mental health 
issue will enable both employee and employer to 
assess and provide the right level of support or 
adjustment.

 ● Not make assumptions that a person with a 
mental health issue will be more vulnerable to 
workplace stress or take more time off than any 
other employee or job applicant.

 ● Provide non-judgemental and proactive support 
to individual staff who experience mental health 
issues.

 ●  Ensure all line managers have information and 
training about managing mental health in the 
workplace.

Valuing & developing our people

The Trust has launched a brand new appraisal 
approach this is called the Valuing YOU Appraisal 
Scheme.

The new scheme aims to focus on the importance 
of the value that our people bring every day in their 
roles and ensuring that the appraisal conversations 
had are relevant and meaningful to both the person 
and the organisation. There is considerable emphasis 
on the importance of having regular informal and 
formal “conversations”.

The new scheme takes a more agile approach 
and supports an ongoing conversation rather 
than just once a year. One to Ones are done at 
least once a quarter to touch base and to ensure 
conversations are meaningful. The scheme focuses 
on health and well-being, agreeing objectives and 
discussing progress, talking about any learning and 
development and supporting individuals with their 
career aspirations. The scheme is no longer directly 
linked to our NHS pay scheme.

Countering Fraud and Corruption

The Trust is committed to countering fraud and 
corruption and achieves this by a maintaining a close 
working relationship with the South West Counter 
Fraud Team and by raising awareness of fraud 
through both the internal intranet (HUB) and face to 
face presentations delivered to staff at both Divisional 
and Speciality Level.

The Trust has a number of policies to guide and 
support staff such as the Standards of Business 
Conduct and the Trust’s Whistleblowing Policy. Staff 
access Trust policies via HUB and are encouraged 
to seek clarification direct from the policy author or 
through the Head of Governance.

The South West Counter Fraud Team monitor 
and report fraud to the Board through the Audit 
Committee.

Expenditure on consultancy

The total expenditure on consultancy for the 2019-20 
financial year was £1,006,000. 

Trade Union Facility Time 

The Trust is proud of its work with its Trades Unions, 
and works in collaboration with their representatives 
throughout the Trust. Our Partnership Forum is the 
formal group where our Staffside and management 
representatives formally engage and consult. 

As part of the Trade Union (Facilities Time Publication 
Requirements) Regulations 2017, the Trust is required 
to report facility time, which is paid time-off during 
working hours for trade union representatives to 
carry out trade union duties. 

The 2019 report provided to the Cabinet Office is 
reflective of the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 
2019. This was submitted prior to the required date 
of 31 July 2019. 

 (https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-
sets/public-sector-trade-union-facility-time-data) 

Number of Trade Union Representatives

Number of employees 
who were relevant 
union officials during 
the relevant period

Full-time equivalent 
employee number

33 30.55

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of Employees

0% 6

1-50% 25

51-99% 1

100% 1
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Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

 Figures

Total cost of facility time £95,129

Trust’s total pay bill £261,062,000

Percentage of the total pay bill 
spent on facility time

0.04%

 

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities 
as a percentage of total paid facility time 
hours 

9.16%
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There are many definitions of staff engagement 
however, for the Trust, employee engagement 
essentially describes what happens when people 
act and think in a positive way about the work they 
do, the people they work with and the organisation 
they work in. NHS Employers describes the concept 
as “when at work, engaged staff will experience a 
blend of job satisfaction, organisational commitment, 
involvement in the direction of their own job and a 
feeling of empowerment.” 

The RD&E employs over 9,000 people all of whom 
perform a range of different functions, working 
together to achieve the best and safest outcomes 
for people who require acute care and working with 
communities and other stakeholders to keep people 
well and supported at home. While staff at the RD&E 
share a common purpose, there is a great deal of 
diversity in the roles and functions staff perform – it 
is the effective blending of all that enables the RD&E 
to have great teams working in the best interests of 
the people we are here to serve, our patients and the 
public. 

Research on staff-reported experience was carried 
out by Kings Fund and Picker (2018), and this 
confirmed a correlation with patient feedback, 
notably between staff perceptions of care quality and 
patient experience. West and Dawson (2012) put 
forward compelling evidence that organisations with 
a strong culture of employee engagement report 
lower patient mortality rates and lower infection 
rates, as well as higher patient satisfaction scores and 
suggest it is when organisations care for their staff, 
staff can effectively fulfil their roles of caring for their 
patients. Staff engagement:

 ● helps to deliver continued improvements and 
programmes of change -engaged staff are likely 
to exert more influence over the use of standard 
processes, teamwork and the degree to which 
there is a culture of improvement. 

 ● It helps connect clinicians with the organisation 
as well as the professional agenda and take on 
leadership roles. 

 ● It can improve sickness absence. 

Over the last seven years, the Trust has focused on 
improving staff engagement as part of a broader 
organisational development and culture change 
agenda. Based on overwhelming academic evidence 
that demonstrates a clear link between committed 
and motivated staff, improved patient outcomes and 

Staff Survey 
patient experience, the Trust has consciously sought 
to build a culture in which staff engagement is 
viewed as mission critical. 

Our approach to staff engagement focuses on:

 ● Creating the conditions for optimum staff 
engagement

 ● Assisting people to prepare for and actively 
participate in changes to care

 ● Contributing to improved patient care now and in 
the future

 ● Ensuring engagement efforts are as inclusive as 
possible

Staff engagement is more than informing staff 
through internal communications. Having staff that 
are informed and have access to the information 
they require to do their jobs is important. However, 
there are a range of factors including reward, values 
and behaviours, recognition and leadership as well 
as giving staff “voice” and influence over their work 
through greater empowerment. All of this sits within 
a wider context of organisational culture and ways of 
working which have existed for many years. 

Building on our achievements to date the Trust’s 
staff engagement and communications approach 
is central to a comprehensive transformational 
organisational development approach. By integrating 
elements of our People, Quality Improvements and 
Stakeholder Engagement strategies, we have built 
a comprehensive approach to cultural change and 
transformation which has staff engagement at its 
heart.

Our methodology is one that encompasses the whole 
organisation and is based on the understanding that 
all staff have a level of responsibility to consider and 
act on staff engagement and that engagement is 
a two-way process. It is essential to enable staff to 
develop the necessary skills and behaviours required 
to manage the scale of change required to deliver 
health and care differently into the future, and we 
need to support them to do that. Our integrated 
organisation aims to deliver more joined-up care for 
people out of hospital and this will only be realised 
if the culture and outlook of staff right across the 
organisation rapidly adapts. Our staff are at the 
heart of these changes as we lead the way in helping 
to innovate and transform services, to ensure that 
our way of delivering care and services is fit for the 
future. 
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In the context of the changes required, there is a 
need to address ‘old ways of working and traditional 
cultural norms in order to facilitate a new model 
of care. We have begun this process through cross 
learning between the acute and the community 
elements of our organisation. 

Approach and Key Activities

As noted above, the Trust takes an integrated and 
holistic approach to improving staff engagement. 
Picker Institute (2019) established that:

“Across roles and organisations, the best predictors 
of job satisfaction were whether the employee felt 
that the organisation acts fairly in career progression, 
values their work, provides opportunities to use their 
skills, recognises good work and gave an appropriate 
amount of responsibility”

Reviewing evidence from the evolving research 
base we have refreshed our approach to staff 
engagement, to create optimum conditions for job 
satisfaction, with focus on outcomes in the following 
outcome areas, for staff to feel:

1. Valued: Nurture a culture of gratitude and 
appreciation and implement mechanisms for 
recognition and award, raising awareness/flagging 
issues that undermine this

2. Listened to: Promote two-way dialogue between 
staff and management and implement tools, 
activities and training to facilitate active listening 
and outcomes and amplify staff “voice”

3. Connected: Generate a welcoming and inclusive 
work environment in which staff feel a genuine 
sense of belonging, involving people in a 
meaningful set of values and behaviours and 
inspiring them with a clear and compelling 
strategic narrative

4. Employees are informed: Staff receive open, 
honest and timely information through a range of 
appropriate channels to enable them to go about 
their work fully engaged and motivated.

5. Empower employees to drive positive change: 
Cultivate an environment in which staff are 
trusted and supported to play an active role in 
continuous improvement and changes to care.

6. Employee wellbeing: Assist efforts to ensure 
colleagues feel supported and well in their work 
and personal life

7. The RD&E’s reputation as a good employer is 
enhanced, consequently improving staff retention 
and better, safer care

This section highlights some of our core activities 
designed to boost staff engagement levels.

Values and behaviours

We will continue to embed our values with a focus 
on quality improvement and inclusion as well as 
continuing with ongoing activities including:

 ● Induction and orientation day for new staff

 ● Attraction and recruitment approach

 ● Learning and development programmes

 ● A new PDR approach – our new Valuing You 
appraisal scheme launched in 2019 and is more 
closely aligned with our V&Bs 

Our approach to staff engagement is increasingly 
aligned with the Trust’s focus on building an inclusive 
culture where everyone is valued for the person 
they are. This integration between our inclusion and 
engagement agenda will continue into the future. 

Staff engagement activities

These are some of the activities undertaken to 
enhance staff engagement over the last year: 

 ● The Trust has continued to engage each division 
and larger department in developing and 
implementing bespoke, local engagement plans, 
based on responding to the evidence collated 
from the staff survey and other local/anecdotal 
evidence. Twenty one local plans were developed 
by Divisional Directors and Managers and made 
available for all colleagues to view and share best 
practice via our intranet. Divisional engagement 
plans were scrutinised through our Performance 
Assurance Framework. Our in-house tool, the 
Everyday Engagement Toolkit, guides managers 
through their engagement planning. This 
approach has helped drive improvements in staff 
engagement and other relevant indicators. 

 ● The sharing of the plans and support from the 
Communications and Engagement team has enabled 
best practice and cross fertilisation to take place. It 
has also enabled bespoke support to be targeted 
at those parts of the workforce that have specific 
issues to tackle or where there is underperformance. 
Connecting Care Communication Cells continue to 
play a role in cascading messages and engaging staff 
to identify and solve problems at different levels.

 ● In 2019 a pilot was launched where Junior Doctors’ 
engagement planning was in focus, with colleagues 
working across the organisation to support and 
deliver an engagement plan for this staff group.
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 ● During the year we have refreshed our approach 
to Executive Webinars (now called Feedback), 
whereby staff vote on topics they are interested 
in hearing about from the Exec team, with issues 
of strategic and operational importance – the 
Feedback sessions are held regularly as 30 min 
webinars (real time broadcast, with recordings 
available to view/listen to after the event). 

 ● The webinars sits alongside our existing 
communication product: Staff Briefing, which is a 
summary of key updates that all staff need to be 
aware of. Both products support the cascading 
of information at the Communications Cells, i.e. 
team or ward meetings.

 ● Our intranet (HUB) is the main way in which staff 
prefer to find out key information about the 
Trust, keep up-to-date with news, access vital 
policies and comment on key issues. A round-up 
of the weekly news on the HUB, ‘HUB bites’, is a 
popular way for staff to easily get an overview of 
the latest stories and updates. 

 ● Our award scheme – Extraordinary People – the 
approach to the scheme was refreshed this year 
and has continued to be a success. The scheme, 
which is run twice annually, culminating in an 
end-of-year Peoples’ Choice Award celebration 
event, regularly attracts on average over 90 
entries each time it is run.

 ● We also undertake “Staff Say” meetings. These 
meetings provide a safe environment for staff to 
openly discuss issues of concern or anxiety and, 
through this process, anonymously raise issues 
with senior management

 ● We have piloted a scheme where the Exec team 
meet and communicate directly with staff, under 
the banner Exec Drop-Ins. Staff have been invited 
to meet and discuss any topic with members of 
the Executive Team on a 121 basis, or in a group. 

 ● For the third year we ran a supportive winter 
pressure campaign, called #onekindthing – this 
generated engagement across the organisation 
and encouraged a compassionate approach to 
working together throughout the organisation

 ● A manager training module has been developed 
and launched, as part of the Trust’s existing 
‘Leadership Essentials’ training, called ‘Enabling 
Staff Engagement’ whereby delegates learn why 
good staff engagement is key to great management 
and patient care, understand the pillars of good 
engagement and how to put this into practice

 ● Staff seminars on a variety of Health and 
Wellbeing topics and Schwartz Rounds are 
promoted to staff ongoing

NHS staff survey 

The NHS staff survey is conducted annually. From 
2018 onwards, the results from questions are 
grouped to give scores in ten indicators. The indicator 
scores are based on a score out of 10 for certain 
questions with the indicator score being the average 
of those. 

The response rate, on a sample survey, to the 2019 
Staff Survey was 49% (2018: 53%) for the Trust. 
Scores for each indicator together with that of the 
survey benchmarking group (Combined Acute and 
Community Trusts) are presented below. 

Key findings on staff sentiment

In terms of staff sentiment against four key indicators 
the trust has continued to perform well and is rated 
above average by our people. We will continue to 
have a focus on the first two indicators (listed below) 
over the next year, via the Staff, Friends and Family 
Test.

Staff 
sentiment 
indicator

Acute and 
Community 
Trusts 2019 
average

RD&E 
outcome 
2019

RD&E 
outcome 
2018

Staff 
recommending 
the organisation 
as a place to 
work

64% 72% 73%

Staff 
recommending 
that if a friend 
or relative 
needed 
treatment 
would be 
happy with the 
standard of care 
provided

73% 85% 86%

Staff feeling 
care of patients/
service users is 
organisations 
top priority

78% 84% 85%

Staff think the 
organisation 
acts on 
concerns raised 
by patients/
users

74% 77% 77%
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The overall ‘NHS staff engagement’ indicator, is 
assessed by combining the answers to nine key 
questions from the NHS Staff Survey remained the 
same at 7.3 (out of 10) comparing to 7.1 nationally 
for Acute & Community (A&C) Trusts. Other areas 
in which the Trust does well and scores above the 
national average in the A&C category include:

 ● Equality, Diversity & Inclusion

 ● Immediate Managers

 ● Morale

 ● Safe environment – bullying and harassment

 ● Safety culture

As part of the 2019 NHS Staff Survey staff had 
the opportunity to respond to two locally added 
questions. They were asked what aspect they think is 
good about working at the RD&E – from a choice of 
18 variables, the following three topics had the most 
positive votes:

Job Satisfaction 20%

Working Relationships/Local Co-operation 16%

Job Security 14%

While the survey highlights key achievements it 
also identifies a number of areas with room for 
improvement, with the following areas identified as 
our key improvement areas:

 ● Quality of appraisals

 ● Quality of care

 ● Pockets of the Trust with low engagement scores

Staff were also asked to pin point one key area to 
improve within the Trust (again of 18 variables), staff 
responded: 

Staffing Levels 32%

Travel to Work/Parking 15%

Pay & Benefits 12%
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Summary of Results: Overall staff survey response

2018/19 2019/20 Trust improvement/ deterioration

Response rate RD&E RD&E
Combined Acute & 
Community Trusts

53% 49% 46% 4% decrease

During 2019, the scale of MY CARE was significant pulling on a high number of staff from across the Trust. 
As a result, the decision was taken to complete the 2019 NHS Staff Survey using a random sample of staff, 
as opposed to a census. An extended, random sampling was carried out by our contractor Picker Institute, 
whereby approximately 2000 members of staff were invited to take part in the survey. 

Summary of Results: Selected indicators 

2019/20 2018/19 2017/18

Trust Benchmarking 
Group

Trust Benchmarking 
Group

Trust Benchmarking 
Group

Equality, diversity and inclusion 9.4 9.2 9.4 9.2 9.3 9.5

Health and wellbeing 6 6 6.3 6.4 6.4 6.0

Immediate managers 7.1 6.9 6.9 6.8 7.0 6.8

Morale 6.4 6.2 6.4 6.5 - -

2019/20 2018/19 2017/18

Trust Benchmarking 
Group

Trust Benchmarking 
Group

Trust Benchmarking 
Group

Quality of appraisals 5.1 5.5 5.1 5.4 5.2 5.3

Quality of care 7.3 7.5 7.4 7.5 7.4 7.5

Safe environment – bullying 
and harassment

8.3 8.2 8.4 8.1 8.4 8.1

Safe environment – violence 9.5 9.5 9.5 9.5 9.5 9.5

Safety culture 6.9 6.8 6.9 6.7 6.8 6.7

Staff engagement 7.3 7.1 7.3 7.4 7.3 7.0

Team working 6.7 6.7 6.8 6.6 6.8 6.6
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2019 ACTION PLAN, PRIORITIES AND TARGETS

Over the past year the Trust has been addressing improvements in the areas highlighted by staff in the 2018 
NHS staff survey. Three key areas were prioritised by the Trust, the summary below provides an update on the 
work undertaken by the Trust:

You said We did

“The existing PDR/appraisal approach 
could be improved to include our RD&E 
values, and better help me in my role 
through a discussion with feedback on 
my performance and clear objectives.”

The new Valuing YOU PDR appraisal was launched in the last 
quarter of 2019, following extensive feedback from all areas and 
levels of the Trust to develop a process that makes it a positive 
and meaningful experience.

The aims of the new appraisal is

 ● To focus on the conversation the value each person brings to 
our Trust

 ● Discuss openly performance and how colleagues live by the 
RD&E values

 ● For our leaders to model our Health Care Leadership 
behaviours and our RD&E values

 ● Agree and set objectives for the future 

 ● Paperwork has been simplified  

 ● To understand career aspirations and talk about everyone’s 
potential

 ● To target development plan to maximise strengths as much as 
areas to develop in

 ● To have regular conversations through 121’s and a final 
summary conversation

“We are aware that patient (or service 
user) feedback is being collected across 
most divisions, though we would like to 
receive regular updates and to see that 
the feedback is used to make informed 
decisions in departments/teams.”

 ● Senior Nurse for Safety and Patient Experience were tasked 
with gathering feedback from wards/departments (Learning 
from Excellence)

 ● Complaint leads in the Divisions collated and communicated 
the issues they made changes to following complaints

 ● Feedback from patients’ ‘you said, we did’: widely 
communicated. Changes suggested by patients during the 
discharge process implemented.

 ● Learning from incidents newsletter – added positive changes 
that have been made rather than just the learning from 
incidents. 

 ● QI section held on the senior nurse forums – the senior nurse 
and midwifery group undertook changes in line with the QUI 
methodology
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“As a care provider I feel that my role 
makes a difference to patients and I am 
largely able to deliver the care I aspire 
to however I would like to be able to 
provide even higher quality care.”

The Board was keen to understand what can be done to make 
continuous improvements in the quality of care we provide. 

To explore staff opinion further and to better understand what 
lies behind the lower survey score for this area, a number of 
Staff Say sessions were held to test assumptions and gain further 
insights into staff views, with focus on:

a)  What quality of care means to me (as member of staff)

b)  What constitutes a good day at work?

In addition, staff, patients and visitors encouraged to express 
what Good Quality Care means to them, views collated and 
presented to our Chief Nurse.

A Schwartz round held on what makes for a ‘Good day at 
work -reflections on how challenging jobs can also be hugely 
rewarding’

Verbatim comments were reviewed from the Staff Survey and 
Staff, Friends and Family Test to capture and understand staff 
sentiment around Quality of Care – a summary presented to our 
Chief Nurse.

Staff have been encouraged to take part in the Learning from 
Excellence scheme to highlight good quality care.

A summary report was presented to Board on the findings of the 
above activities.

Future Staff Engagement Priorities 
and Targets

As the Coronavirus pandemic broke out, the Trust’s 
2020 engagement priorities were being reviewed, 
informed by results from the 2019 staff survey 
findings, local surveys and managers’ input. The 
plan is to develop a response in partnership with 
representatives from across the Trust, including 
managers, staff side, staff governors and the 
Engagement Team and additional intelligence from 
staff via the 2020 February Staff Friends and Family 
Test. As a result of the pandemic our plans remain 
under review at the time of writing but the key areas 
we are considering include: 

 ● Devising a prioritised project, sponsored by the 
Executive Team to evaluate nationwide best 
practice, plus new ways of working following 
the pandemic, e.g. enhanced use of IT, agile 
working practices etc. and what this means for 
staff engagement at the Trust. This will include 
drawing up a revised staff engagement delivery 
plan.

 ● Individual Executives to adopt and champion 
prioritised staff engagement areas

Commentary

The new Valuing YOU PDR/appraisal scheme was 
launched in the last quarter of 2019 and while we 
see a small improvement in the indicator theme 
Quality of Appraisals, from 5.4 in 2018 to 5.5 
in 2019, this is an area in which the Trust is still 
performing below the average Acute and Community 
(A&C) Trust, and therefore need to be monitoring 
the uptake and staff’s reception of this new appraisal 
system.

We saw improvements in the scores on all three 
questions around Patient/Service User Feedback, 
on the back of the interventions noted in the table 
above – with two of three answers significantly 
increased. We will continue to monitor and focus 
on this area, as we still perform below the national 
average for two of the three questions.

The Trust’s Quality of Care score decreased from 7.4 
in 2018 to 7.3 for the Trust in 2019, this is an area 
with continued priority in 2020.
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Draft success criteria and measures 
(subject to change, following full review)

Area Measure Target

Corporate Induction Day 1 Satisfaction score 90% satisfied/very satisfied

Extraordinary people 
awards

Nominations per cycle
400 nominations across the seasonal awards / 
annual awards 

Staff Engagement 
NHS Staff Survey 
Engagement theme

Top 20% trust nationally for a&c trusts 

Q: I would recommend my 
org as a place to work

Staff Survey 

SFFT

Staff Survey: 15% above national average national 
score for a&c trusts

SFFT: 15% above average a&c trusts

Q: I look forward to going 
to work 

Staff Survey NHS Staff Survey: Top 5 nationally for a&c trusts

Immediate manager Staff Survey
NHS Staff Survey: 15% above national average 
score for a&c trusts

Staff survey response rate Staff Survey Over 50% participation

Be a listening Trust
Number of conversations 
held and supported

Hold one Big Conversation quarterly / X number 
of facilitators trained per division for local 
conversations

Annual internal stakeholder 
survey &/or Employee panel 

Engagement levels
Recruit 100 participants for regular polls to 
provide sound board / temperature check

Manager Training in 
Engagement 

Evaluation 90% satisfied/very satisfied

 ● Provide quarterly updates to staff, e.g. from HR 
on staffing levels, plans and pipeline

 ● Use intel gathered 2019 from staff on barriers 
to providing excellent Quality of Care across the 
Trust, with the aim to remove or reduce these 
barriers

 ● Promote the implementation of the new 
appraisal/PDR system

 ● Continuing the successful work from 2019 to 
make even better use of patient/service user 
feedback

 ● Continuing to embed our Values and Behaviours 
– within for example, the refreshed Towards 
Inclusion strategy, the new Induction Programme 
and the new PDR

 ● Continue the delivery of the Health and Wellbeing 
programme, with specific focus on building out 
support for MSK and work related stress

 ● Continue to support remedial work for staff 
groups, divisions and departments with low staff 
engagement scores -and implementation of 
localised engagement plans

 ● Step up and deliver more decisively on basic 
needs, raised by staff, e.g. physical environment; 
staff rooms, queues in canteen, outdoor space for 
staff to take breaks

 ● Continue to communicate the Trust’s plans and 
actions around travel/parking provision

We will continue the conscious effort to improve on 
the Trust staff experience, with the aim to maintain 
our position to score above the national average as 
measured by the engagement score in the NHS staff 
survey and other key success criteria, as outlined 
below.
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Off Payroll Payments 

There were no off-payroll engagements as of 31 
March 2020, for more than £245 per day and that 
lasted for longer than six months.

Table 1: For all off-payroll engagements as of 31 
March 2020, for more than £245 per day and that 
last for longer than six months

Number of existing engagements as of 31 
March 2020

0

Of which…. 0

No. that have existed for less than one year at 
time of reporting.

0

No. that have existed for between one and two 
years at time of reporting.

0

No. that have existed for between two and 
three years at time of reporting.

0

No. that have existed for between three and 
four years at time of reporting.

0

No. that have existed for between four or more 
years at time of reporting.

0

There were no new off-payroll engagements 
between 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020. 

Table 2: For all new off-payroll engagements, or 
those that reached six months in duration, between 1 
April 2019 and 31 March 2020, for more than £245 
per day and that last for longer than six months

Number of new engagements, or those that 
reached six months in duration, between 1 
April 2019 and 31 March 2020

0

Of which…. 0

Number assessed as within the scope of IR35 0

Number assessed not as within the scope of 
IR35

0

Number engaged directly (via PSC contracted 
to trust) and are on the trust’s payroll

0

Number of engagements reassessed for 
consistency/assurance purposes during the year

0

Number of engagements that saw a change to 
IR35 status following the consistency review.

0

There were no off-payroll engagements of a board 
member with significant financial responsibility 
during the financial year. 

Table 3: For any of-payroll engagements of board 
members, and/or, senior officials with significant 
financial responsibility, between 1 April 2019 and 31 
March 2020

Number of off-payroll engagements of 
board members, and /or, senior officials with 
significant financial responsibility, during the 
financial year.

0

Number of individuals that have been deemed 
‘board members and/or senior officials with 
significant financial responsibility’ during the 
financial year. This figure must include both 
off-payroll and on-payroll engagements.

17

In any cases where individuals are included within 
the first row of this table the trust should set out:

 ● Details of the exceptional circumstances that led 
to each of these engagements.

 ● Details of the length of time each of these 
exceptional engagements lasted.
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BOARD ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK (BAF) 
The BAF is a Board-owned document whose primary 
role is to inform the Board about the totality of risks 
or obstacles that may impede it from achieving its 
strategic objectives as outlined in the Trust’s long-
term Strategy document. The BAF also provides 
assurances that adequate controls are operating 
to reduce these risks to acceptable levels. Over the 
past two years the BAF has been on an evolutionary 
journey, in parallel with the redevelopment of the 
wider governance arrangements within the Trust. A 
review of the BAF by Internal Audit, undertaken in 
March 2020, reported a Significant assurance rating 
and detailed: “the BAF is being used effectively, 
enabling focus on those risks that might have an 
impact upon achieving the Trusts strategic objectives 
and giving the Board an appropriate level of 
assurance about the effectiveness of the controls 
in place to mitigate against these risks. The Trust 
has a well-developed approach to the BAF which 
satisfies best practice principles as set out in national 
guidance”.
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The Audit Committee is a formal, statutory 
committee of the Board of Directors, chaired by Mr 
Peter Dillon (a Non-Executive Director with a financial 
background). 

The primary role of the Audit Committee is to 
conclude upon the adequacy and effective operation 
of the organisation’s overall internal control system. 

Five Non-Executive Directors constitute the 
membership of the Committee. 

The Audit Committee is also attended by 
representatives of KPMG LLP the Trust’s External 
Auditors; Internal Audit, Counter Fraud Service, 
and the Trust’s Chief Operating Officer, Director of 
Operational Finance, Head of Governance and a Trust 
Governor. 

As part of the external audit plan for 2019/20, KPMG 
highlighted four significant audit opinion risks which 
have been considered by the Audit Committee. 

Revaluation of property and land 

The Trust’s accounting policies require a land and 
buildings revaluation to be undertaken at least every 
five years, dependent upon the changes in the fair 
value of the property. Where assets are subject to 
significant volatility, annual revaluations may be 
required. Conversely, where changes in asset values 
are insignificant then a revaluation may be necessary 
only every 3 or 5 years. 

The Trust’s land, buildings and dwellings were 
revalued as at 31 March 2020. The Trust’s specialised 
buildings and associated land are valued using 
the depreciated replacement cost method, based 
upon providing a modern equivalent asset (MEA). 
A fundamental principle of MEA valuations is that 
a hypothetical buyer would purchase the least 
expensive site that would be suitable and appropriate 
for the existing operations. The valuation of the 
Trust’s specialised land and buildings is therefore 
based upon the Trust hypothetically being located on 
a suitable alternative site away from the city centre, 
where the cost of the land would be significantly 
lower, but where the Trust would still be able to 
re-provide its services. In 2019/20 there has been 
a net overall reduction of £21.1m in the value of 
the Trust’s Estate. A £26.5m impairment has been 
incurred and is recorded in the property plant and 
equipment note 16.1. This impairment is mainly 
due to the commercial valuer identifying greater 
functional obsolescence of the buildings, this has 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
been recognised as an impairment charged to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income. An increase 
in value of £5.4m has been recognised within the 
revaluation reserve and is mainly due to a general rise 
in construction costs. 

KPMG have not identified any issues arising from 
the work performed relating to the revaluation of 
property and land.

Recognition of income 

Around 95% of the Trust’s income is received from 
other NHS organisations, with the majority (60%) 
being receivable from NHS Devon CCG. The Trust 
participates in the Department of Health’s agreement 
of balances exercise. This exercise seeks to identify 
all income and expenditure transactions as well as 
payable and receivable balances that arise from 
whole government accounting (WGA) bodies. The 
Audit Committee is satisfied that by participating in 
this exercise it helps to provide further assurance that 
the vast majority of income and expenditure with 
WGA bodies has been properly recognised and WGA 
receivable and payable balances are appropriately 
recorded. The Trust’s external auditors have reviewed 
the outcome of the exercise and reported their 
findings to the Audit Committee. 

Management Override of controls 

Professional standards require KPMG to communicate 
the fraud risk from management override of controls 
as significant. Management is typically in a unique 
position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability 
to manipulate accounting records and prepare 
fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls 
that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. 

KPMG have carried out appropriate controls testing 
and substantive procedures, including testing of 
journal entries, accounting estimates and significant 
transactions that are outside the normal course 
of business, or are otherwise unusual. No specific 
instances of management override were identified 
relating to this audit. 

Fraudulent Expenditure Recognition 

In the public sector auditors consider the risk that 
material misstatements due to fraudulent financial 
reporting may arise from the manipulation of 
expenditure recognition (for example deferring 
expenditure to a later period). This may arise due 
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to the organisation manipulating expenditure to 
meet externally set targets. This risk relates to 
completeness of the non-pay and non-depreciation 
expenditure balance.

From the audit work undertaken by KPMG they have 
not identified any concerns and will be providing a 
balanced audit view within their Auditor’s Report. 

Other Issues considered by the Audit 
Committee 

Effectiveness of the external auditors 

KPMG LLP were appointed as external auditors to 
the Trust from 2014/15 for a five-year period under a 
competitive tender process. As the five year contract 
term ended on 31 October 2019, a procurement 
tender exercise took place to appoint an external 
auditor for the period commencing from 1 November 
2019.

Following a rigorous process, the Trust’s Council of 
Governors appointed KPMG LLP for a further five 
year term from 1 November 2019 to 31 October 
2024.

In addition to the procurement tender exercise, the 
Audit Committee annually assesses the effectiveness 
of the external auditors, in particular the timeliness 
of reporting, the quality of work and whether audit 
fees provided value for money. The Audit Committee 
provided the Council of Governors (CoG) with 
positive feedback and provided assurance to the 
CoG that the external auditors provided a quality, 
timely and cost effective external audit service during 
2018/19. 

The external auditors have not provided any non-
audit services to the Trust in 2019/20.

IFRS 16 – New leasing accounting 
standard

The Audit Committee was advised during the 
year of the Trust’s requirement to adopt a new 
lease accounting standard, International Financial 
Reporting Standard (IFRS) 16. The AC were briefed 
on the new lease accounting standard, the estimated 
financial effect of the standard and an overview of 
the project plan to adopt the new standard. The 
adoption of this standard has now been deferred by 
NHSI to 1 April 2021.

Quality Report

The Audit Committee was advised that the Trust was 
not required to prepare a Quality Report within the 
2019/20, but it is aware of the likely requirement to 
publish Quality Accounts at a later date.

Meeting schedule

The Audit Committee met five times during 2019/20. 
The names of members and their attendance at 
2019/20 meetings are as follows: 

NAME
Apr 
2019

May
2019

July 
2019

Nov 
2019

Feb 
2020

C Bones* P

P Dillon P P P P P

J Kay A P P A A

S Kirby P P P P P

S Knowles* P P A P

A Matthews A P P P P

Dr Knowles resigned from the Audit Committee in 
November 2019 

Professor Bones joined the Committee in February 
2020

P – Present 
A – Apologies 
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The Trust is required to register with the Care Quality 
Commission and its current registration status is 
registered in full without conditions.

The Trust underwent a planned, routine, announced 
Care Quality Commission Inspection in January and 
February 2019, the report was published on 30 April 
2019. The Trust was rated overall “Good”. 

The inspection identified 13 “Must Take” actions 
and 76 “Should Take” actions. The Governance 
Committee monitor progress of the action plans 
through to completion.

Below is a breakdown of the ratings for the Trust.

CARE QUALITY COMMISSION (CQC) 

Ratings for the whole trust

Ratings tables

Key to tables

Ratings Not rated Inadequate Requires
improvement Good Outstanding

Rating change since
last inspection Same Up one rating Up two ratings Down one rating Down two ratings

Symbol *

Month Year = Date last rating published

* Where there is no symbol showing how a rating has changed, it means either that:

• we have not inspected this aspect of the service before or

• we have not inspected it this time or

• changes to how we inspect make comparisons with a previous inspection unreliable.

Ratings for the whole trust

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall

Requires
improvement

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Outstanding

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

The rating for well-led is based on our inspection at trust level, taking into account what we found in individual services.
Ratings for other key questions are from combining ratings for services and using our professional judgement.

same-rating––– same-rating same-rating––– same-rating same-rating–––

same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating–––

21 Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust Inspection report 30/04/2019

Ratings tables

Key to tables

Ratings Not rated Inadequate Requires
improvement Good Outstanding

Rating change since
last inspection Same Up one rating Up two ratings Down one rating Down two ratings

Symbol *

Month Year = Date last rating published

* Where there is no symbol showing how a rating has changed, it means either that:

• we have not inspected this aspect of the service before or

• we have not inspected it this time or

• changes to how we inspect make comparisons with a previous inspection unreliable.

Ratings for the whole trust

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall

Requires
improvement

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Outstanding

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

The rating for well-led is based on our inspection at trust level, taking into account what we found in individual services.
Ratings for other key questions are from combining ratings for services and using our professional judgement.

same-rating––– same-rating same-rating––– same-rating same-rating–––

same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating–––

21 Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust Inspection report 30/04/2019
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Rating for Acute Services/Acute Trust

Rating for Community Health

Ratings for primary medical services

Rating for acute services/acute trust

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall

Royal Devon and Exeter
Hospital (Wonford)

Requires
improvement

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Outstanding

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Outstanding

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Honiton Hospital
Good

none-rating
Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Mardon Neuro-rehabilitation
Centre

Good

Feb 2019

Good

Feb 2019

Outstanding

Feb 2019

Good

Feb 2019

Good

Feb 2019

Good

Feb 2019

Overall trust
Requires

improvement

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Outstanding

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Outstanding

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Ratings for the trust are from combining ratings for hospitals. Our decisions on overall ratings take into account the
relative size of services. We use our professional judgement to reach fair and balanced ratings.

Ratings for a combined trust

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall

Acute
Requires

improvement

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Outstanding

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Outstanding

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Community
Requires

improvement
none-rating

Feb 2019

Good
none-rating

Feb 2019

Good
none-rating

Feb

Good
none-rating

Feb

Good
none-rating

Feb

none-rating
Feb

Overall trust
Requires

improvement

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Outstanding

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

The rating for the well-led key question is based on our inspection at trust level, taking into account what we found in
individual services. Ratings for other key questions take into account the ratings for different types of service. Our
decisions on overall ratings take into account the relative size of services. We use our professional judgement to reach
fair and balanced ratings.

same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating–––

upone-rating same-rating––– upone-rating same-rating––– upone-rating upone-rating

same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating–––

same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating–––

same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating–––

22 Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust Inspection report 30/04/2019

Ratings for Mardon Neuro-rehabilitation Centre

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall

Rehabilitation services
Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Outstanding

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Overall*
Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Outstanding

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

*Overall ratings for this hospital are from combining ratings for services. Our decisions on overall ratings take into
account the relative size of services. We use our professional judgement to reach fair and balanced ratings.

Ratings for community health services

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall

Community health services
for adults

Requires
improvement

none-rating
Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Community health inpatient
services

Requires
improvement

none-rating
Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Community end of life care
Requires

improvement
none-rating

Apr 2019

Requires
improvement

none-rating
Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Requires
improvement

none-rating
Apr 2019

Requires
improvement

none-rating
Apr 2019

Requires
improvement

none-rating
Apr 2019

Urgent Care
Good

none-rating
Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Overall*
Requires

improvement
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

*Overall ratings for community health services are from combining ratings for services. Our decisions on overall ratings
take into account the relative size of services. We use our professional judgement to reach fair and balanced ratings.

Ratings for primary medical services

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall

Castle Place Practice
Good

none-rating
Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

upone-rating same-rating––– upone-rating same-rating––– upone-rating upone-rating

upone-rating same-rating––– upone-rating same-rating––– upone-rating upone-rating
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Ratings for Mardon Neuro-rehabilitation Centre

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall

Rehabilitation services
Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Outstanding

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Overall*
Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Outstanding

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

*Overall ratings for this hospital are from combining ratings for services. Our decisions on overall ratings take into
account the relative size of services. We use our professional judgement to reach fair and balanced ratings.

Ratings for community health services

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall

Community health services
for adults

Requires
improvement

none-rating
Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Community health inpatient
services

Requires
improvement

none-rating
Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Community end of life care
Requires

improvement
none-rating

Apr 2019

Requires
improvement

none-rating
Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Requires
improvement

none-rating
Apr 2019

Requires
improvement

none-rating
Apr 2019

Requires
improvement

none-rating
Apr 2019

Urgent Care
Good

none-rating
Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Overall*
Requires

improvement
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

*Overall ratings for community health services are from combining ratings for services. Our decisions on overall ratings
take into account the relative size of services. We use our professional judgement to reach fair and balanced ratings.

Ratings for primary medical services

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall

Castle Place Practice
Good

none-rating
Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

upone-rating same-rating––– upone-rating same-rating––– upone-rating upone-rating

upone-rating same-rating––– upone-rating same-rating––– upone-rating upone-rating
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Ratings for Royal Devon & Exeter (Wonford)

Ratings for Royal Devon and Exeter Hospital (Wonford)

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall

Urgent and emergency
services

Good
none-rating

Feb 2016

Outstanding
none-rating

Feb 2016

Outstanding
none-rating

Feb 2016

Good
none-rating

Feb 2016

Outstanding
none-rating

Feb 2016

Outstanding
none-rating

Feb 2016

Medical care (including older
people’s care)

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Surgery
Requires

improvement
none-rating

Feb 2016

Good
none-rating

Feb 2016

Good
none-rating

Feb 2016

Good
none-rating

Feb 2016

Good
none-rating

Feb 2016

Good
none-rating

Feb 2016

Critical care
Good

none-rating
Feb 2019

Good
none-rating

Feb 2019

Outstanding
none-rating

Feb 2019

Good
none-rating

Feb 2019

Outstanding
none-rating

Feb 2019

Outstanding
none-rating

Feb 2019

Maternity
Requires

improvement
none-rating

Feb 2016

Good
none-rating

Feb 2016

Good
none-rating

Feb 2016

Good
none-rating

Feb 2016

Good
none-rating

Feb 2016

Good
none-rating

Feb 2016

Services for children and
young people

Good
none-rating

Apr 2016

Good
none-rating

Apr 2016

Good
none-rating

Apr 2016

Good
none-rating

Apr 2016

Good
none-rating

Apr 2016

Good
none-rating

Apr 2016

End of life care
Good

none-rating
Feb 2016

Good
none-rating

Feb 2016

Good
none-rating

Feb 2016

Good
none-rating

Feb 2016

Good
none-rating

Feb 2016

Good
none-rating

Feb 2016

Outpatients
Good

none-rating
Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Requires
improvement

none-rating
Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Renal
Good

none-rating
Apr 2019

Outstanding
Apr 2019

Outstanding
none-rating

Apr 2019

Outstanding
none-rating

Apr 2019

Outstanding
none-rating

Apr 2019

Outstanding
none-rating

Apr 2019

Overall*
Requires

improvement

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Outstanding

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

Outstanding

Apr 2019

Good

Apr 2019

*Overall ratings for this hospital are from combining ratings for services. Our decisions on overall ratings take into
account the relative size of services. We use our professional judgement to reach fair and balanced ratings.

Ratings for Honiton Hospital

Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall

Urgent and emergency
services

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Overall*
Good

none-rating
Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

Good
none-rating

Apr 2019

*Overall ratings for this hospital are from combining ratings for services. Our decisions on overall ratings take into
account the relative size of services. We use our professional judgement to reach fair and balanced ratings.

upone-rating same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating–––

same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating––– same-rating–––
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Statement of the Chief Executive’s 
responsibilities as the accounting 
officer of the Royal Devon & Exeter 
NHS Foundation Trust 

The NHS Act 2006 states that the Chief Executive 
is the accounting officer of the NHS Foundation 
Trust. The relevant responsibilities of the accounting 
officer, including their responsibility for the propriety 
and regularity of public finances for which they are 
answerable and for the keeping of proper accounts, 
are set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting 
Officers Memorandum issued by Monitor(NHSI).

Under the NHS Act 2006, Monitor (NHSI) has directed 
the Royal Devon & Exeter NHS Foundation Trust 
to prepare for each financial year a statement of 
accounts in the form and on the basis set out in the 
Accounts Direction. The accounts are prepared on an 
accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Royal Devon & Exeter NHS 
Foundation Trust and of its income and expenditure, 
total recognised gains and losses and cash flows for 
the financial year.

In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer is 
required to comply with the requirements of the NHS 
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and in 
particular to:

 ● observe the Accounts Direction issued by Monitor, 
including the relevant accounting and disclosure 
requirements, and apply suitable accounting 
policies on a consistent basis

 ● make judgements and estimates on a reasonable 
basis

 ● state whether applicable accounting standards 
as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual 
Reporting Manual have been followed, and

 ● ensure that the use of public funds complies with 
the relevant legislation, delegated authorities and 
guidance and

 ● confirm that the annual report and accounts, 
taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and 
understandable and provides the information 
necessary for patients, regulators and 
stakeholders to assess the NHS Foundation Trust’s 
performance, business model and strategy

 ● prepare the financial statements on a going 
concern basis

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
The accounting officer is responsible for keeping 
proper accounting records which disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial 
position of the NHS Foundation Trust and to enable 
him/her to ensure that the accounts comply with 
requirements outlined in the above mentioned 
Act. The Accounting Officer is also responsible for 
safeguarding the assets of the NHS Foundation 
Trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for 
the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have 
properly discharged the responsibilities set out in 
Monitor’s NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer 
Memorandum.

Signed: 

 

Suzanne Tracey 
Chief Executive

Date: 24 June 2020 
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Scope of responsibility 

As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for 
maintaining a sound system of internal control 
that supports the achievement of the NHS trust’s 
policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding 
the public funds and departmental assets for which 
I am personally responsible, in accordance with the 
responsibilities assigned to me. I am also responsible 
for ensuring that the NHS trust is administered 
prudently and economically and that resources are 
applied efficiently and effectively. I also acknowledge 
my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Trust 
Accountable Officer Memorandum. 

The purpose of the system of internal 
control 

The system of internal control is designed to manage 
risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all 
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; 
it can therefore only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system 
of internal control is based on an ongoing process 
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the 
achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of 
the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust, to 
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised 
and the impact should they be realised, and to 
manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
The system of internal control has been in place in 
the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust for 
the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of 
approval of the annual report and accounts. 

Capacity to handle risk 

The Trust has a comprehensive governance system in 
place which has been developed and enhanced over a 
number of years and continues to be subject to regular 
review to ensure its continued fitness for purpose. The 
current governance architecture was established in 
October 2011. A number of independent reviews have 
been undertaken over the years which have concluded 
that the governance system is robust.

The Audit Committee monitors and oversees both 
internal control issues and the process for risk 
management. Audit Southwest (internal audit) and 
KPMG (external auditors) attend all Audit Committee 
meetings. The Audit Committee receives all reports 
of the Internal and External Auditors and reports 
regularly to the Board.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
Risk issues are reported through the Governance 
Committee via the Safety and Risk Committee and 
the Trust’s management structure. Management 
of risk is delegated to the appropriate level from 
Director through to local management through 
the Divisional management teams. There are 
established Governance Managers in post to support 
the Divisions in implementing robust risk and 
governance processes. Each Division has a Divisional 
Governance Group which meets regularly to manage 
risk and report and escalate concerns via the five 
sub committees of the Governance Committee. 
Performance management of any governance/risk 
action plan is managed via the Trust’s Performance 
Assessment Framework (PAF) led by the Chief 
Operating Officer. Strategic risks are managed via the 
Board-owned Board Assurance Framework (BAF). This 
document focuses on risks that could prevent the 
Trust from achieving its strategic objectives.

The Board has appointed a Senior Independent 
Director to be available to Governors and Members 
if they have concerns where contact through the 
normal channels of Chairman, Chief Executive or 
Deputy Chief Executives, have failed to resolve 
them or for which such contact is inappropriate. 
In addition, the Trust has a Whistleblowing Policy 
to guide and protect staff who raise issues of 
concern. The Trust also has six Freedom to Speak 
Up Guardians who report to the Chief Executive 
and provide regular reports to the Governance 
Committee.

All staff joining the Trust are required to attend 
Corporate Induction which covers key elements 
of risk management. This is further enhanced at 
departmental induction. Training courses are run 
on a regular basis and provide staff with the skills 
needed to undertake risk management duties. 
Staff are trained and equipped to manage risk in a 
way appropriate to their authority and duties. Risk 
management is included in the Trust’s mandatory 
training programme and follow-up refresher training; 
the Trust’s risk management policies and procedures 
are available on the Trust’s intranet.

An electronic governance system, which has the 
ability to record, manage and triangulate incidents, 
complaints, risks and legal claims has been 
operational since June 2011. 

An established cohort of senior clinical staff and 
Governance Managers trained to conduct Serious 
Incidents Requiring Investigation (SIRI) is in place 
and additional staff are trained each year to add 
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to the pool available. The Risk Management Team 
co-ordinates SIRIs and adverse incidents, which 
are reported and managed through the Incident 
Review Group (a sub group of the Safety and Risk 
Committee). In addition to direct feedback to 
relevant clinical teams, Lessons Learned briefings, 
highlighting learning points, are made available to 
all staff via the local intranet. All SIRI investigation 
reports and action plans are shared with the Trust’s 
lead commissioner NHS Devon CCG.

The risk and control framework 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the strategic 
direction of the Trust. It reviews the Board Assurance 
Framework (“BAF”) quarterly in line with the Trust’s 
Risk Management Policy. The BAF identifies the key 
risks and mitigations related to the Trust’s strategic 
objectives and key priorities. The Board has identified 
a number of financial risks to the achievement of 
the corporate strategy including the Trust’s ability to 
deliver the required cost savings, and the impact of 
financial pressure on performance targets. 

The Corporate Risk Register is reviewed by the 
Governance Committee each time it meets. The 
Governance Committee reports to the Board of 
Directors quarterly. The Audit Committee considers 
the Board Assurance Framework and the Corporate 
Risk Register when setting Internal Audit’s annual 
work plan.

The Head of Governance attends both the 
Governance Committee and the Audit Committee. 
This supports continuity and oversight of agenda 
preparation and completion of actions. The Chair of 
the Governance Committee is also a member of the 
Audit Committee, ensuring the two Committees are 
aligned and there are not gaps in assurance.

The Board of Directors, as part of the Annual Plan 
reporting cycle, is responsible for the completion of 
the Corporate Governance Statement. The Board has 
adopted a process by which evidence is identified for 
each element of the statement to provide assurance 
and support a decision of compliance or gap in 
compliance (i.e. risk). Where risk is identified this 
would be risk assessed, mitigating actions put in 
place and added to the appropriate risk register.

The Governance Committee is chaired by a Non-
Executive Director and provides oversight of the 
risk management process. The Committee takes a 
comprehensive oversight of the quality and safety of 
care provided by the Trust and provides assurance to 
the Board of Directors. The work of the Governance 
Committee is supported by five key sub committees:

 ● Clinical Effectiveness Committee – chaired by the 
Deputy Medical Director

 ● Integrated Safeguarding Committee – chaired by 
the Interim Chief Nurse

 ● Patient Experience Committee – chaired by a Non-
Executive Director

 ● Safety and Risk Committee – chaired by the Chief 
Executive

 ● Workforce Governance Committee – chaired by 
the Director of People

These five Committees are responsible for monitoring 
and managing specific types of risk.

The Safety and Risk Committee chaired by the Chief 
Executive, has a number of key sub-groups leading 
the Trust’s management of safety and risk.

 ● The Patient Safety Group is accountable for 
delivery of the Trust’s patient safety programme, 
review of adverse incidents and Mortality and 
Morbidity Reviews

 ● The Incident Review Group is chaired by the 
Interim Deputy Chief Nurse and reviews all Serious 
Incidents Requiring Investigation (SIRI) and action 
plans

 ● Medical Gases Group

 ● Radiation Safety Group

 ● Infection Control and Decontamination Group 
is chaired by the Joint Directors of Infection 
Prevention and Control 

 ● Health and Safety Group is chaired by the Director 
of People

 ● Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and Response 
Group is chaired by the Chief Operating Officer

Other specialist groups whose work relates closely 
to safety and risk report via the Clinical Effectiveness 
Committee.

 ● Clinical Audit and Guidelines Group

 ● Medicines Management Group

The Trust has a robust, responsive and reflective 
reporting and monitoring framework in place in 
relation to Mortality and Learning from Deaths. The 
Summary Hospital Mortality Indicator (SHMI) is the 
main mortality measure used within the organisation 
and detailed Trust and Divisional level mortality 
dashboards are scrutinised by the Patient Safety, 
Mortality and Review Group on a monthly basis. 
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Mortality is reported to the Trust Board of Directors 
monthly through the Integrated Performance Report 
with a detailed quarterly Learning from Deaths 
Report. The Board also receives Mortality reports 
through the Governance Committee structure. The 
Trust sets a low threshold in relation to responding 
to deviations in mortality rates, with deep dive case 
note reviews undertaken to ensure that the causes 
of any deviation(s) can be identified and acted upon, 
where required. Additionally, the Trust operates a 
standardised clinical review process whereby both 
expected and unexpected deaths are reviewed by 
the medical team. This ensures that learning can be 
identified and disseminated and actions taken where 
appropriate. The Trust is actively working to ensure 
the recommendations made as part of the CQC 
Learning from Deaths Review are being implemented 
and embedded in practice. This is overseen by the 
Trust’s Governance Committee.

The Interim Chief Nurse and Medical Director/Deputy 
Chief Executive have joint Director leadership and 
accountability for Clinical Governance. To ensure 
Executive Directors are aware of all safety issues 
in a timely manner and to utilise their expertise, 
Safety Huddles were introduced. The Safety Huddle 
comprises the Interim Chief Nurse, Medical Director/
Deputy Chief Executive, the Interim Deputy Chief 
Nurse and the Assistant Director for Safety and 
Quality. The huddle takes place once a week and 
complements the formal Governance Performance 
System by looking at soft intelligence but also 
provides an opportunity to discuss incidents/concerns 
real time at a very senior level. 

Risk identification and evaluation

The Trust has a Risk Management Policy which 
has been approved by the Governance Committee 
and clearly sets out the process for identifying 
and managing risk and the Trust’s risk appetite. It 
incorporates a standard methodology in which risk 
is evaluated using a likelihood/consequence matrix. 
The roles and responsibilities of staff in managing 
risk are defined and key posts highlighted. The Policy 
also includes the governance reporting structure and 
the terms of reference of the Governance Committee 
and all the committees reporting to the Governance 
Committee.

The Trust maintains a comprehensive Corporate Risk 
Register covering both clinical and organisational risk.

There are 30 current risks on the Corporate Risk 
Register. There are 13 risks with scores of 15 and 
above:

 ● One related to IT legacy information systems

 ● One related to capacity management

 ● One related to achieving cancer waiting time 
targets

 ● Five related to demand and capacity on 
individual services i.e. emergency department, 
ophthalmology, medical imaging, cardiology and 
heart failure. 

 ● Two related to workforce i.e. junior doctors and 
nursing establishments

 ● Two related to mental health pathways (external 
factors)

 ● One related to the disruption to diagnostic/
treatment pathways as a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic. A further two risks related to 
COVID-19 also sit on the CRR with scores of 8. 
Due to the dynamic nature of these three risks, 
they are reviewed on a fortnightly basis to ensure 
scores remain accurate and mitigating actions are 
monitored and managed.

Robust action plans are in place and these risks 
are assigned to an appropriate Executive lead and 
manager who are responsible for ensuring that the 
risk is either eliminated or managed appropriately. 
A robust system is in place to monitor progress of 
action plans, which is undertaken by both the Head 
of Governance and the Manager of the risk to ensure 
that risks are proactively managed down the their 
end target score. A detailed report is produced by 
the Head of Governance to the Safety and Risk and 
Governance Committees each time they meet.

The Trust has Divisional level risk registers which 
feed into the Corporate Risk Register. At Divisional 
level, the risk registers contain lower level localised 
risks which can be managed by the relevant Division. 
The Corporate Risk Register contains the high level 
risks and Trust-wide risks. This ensures that risks are 
identified, managed and escalated appropriately 
at all levels of the organisation. Risk assessments, 
including Health and Safety and Infection Control, 
are undertaken throughout the Trust. All areas of 
the hospital have trained Risk Management Officers 
and the Risk Management Department and Head 
of Governance facilitate Risk Surgeries to provide 
support and training and to ensure consistency in 
approach.

The Trust has a robust process for assessing 
risk to cost improvement plans (CIP). A Quality 
Impact Assessment is undertaken which includes 
identification of risk, risk score and mitigating 
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actions. The assessment is reviewed and if 
appropriate authorised by the Divisional triumvirate 
(Divisional Director, Associate Medical Director 
and Assistant Director of Nursing). Quality Impact 
Assessments with a risk score of 8 or above are 
reviewed by the Interim Chief Nurse and Medical 
Director/Deputy Chief Executive, with the Trust’s 
Operations Board overseeing the total process.

Other sources used to identify risks include:

 ● Complaints, Care Quality Commission and Health 
Service Ombudsman reports and recommendations

 ● Inquest findings and reports from HM Coroner

 ● Health and Safety Executive and regulatory body 
compliance inspections

 ● Medico-legal claims and litigation reports

 ● Health Scrutiny Committee reports

 ● Incident reports and trend analysis (via Datix 
software, identification of hot spots)

 ● Internal and external audit reports

 ● Performance Assurance Framework

 ● Feedback from Governors and Members

 ● Ward to Board Framework, Care Quality 
Assessment Tool

 ● Safety Thermometer

The Trust has systems and processes in place to 
assess whether there is sufficient suitably qualified 
competent staff to meet the treatment needs of our 
patients safely and effectively. The Trust benchmarks 
staffing and effectiveness against the model hospital 
data with both staffing establishments and safe 
staffing data being reviewed and monitored by the 
Board in the integrated performance report on a 
monthly basis. 

The Demand and Capacity planning undertaken 
to inform the Trust operational plan identifies the 
broad workforce priorities and involves full clinical 
engagement with robust exploration of assumptions 
and appropriate challenge. The Trust is aiming 
however to improve its longer term workforce 
planning approach and is currently identifying its 
preferred model to support this work. The Trusts 
People Strategy encompasses a comprehensive 
implementation plan to address the workforce 
challenges for the future.

The Trust currently has 94% of nursing staff on an 
electronic rota and has been assessed independently 
as having effective rotas; utilising a full suite of 

rostering tools to support the deployment of staff at 
the right place and time. It continues to improve its 
ability to optimise staff utilisation with the addition of 
electronic job planning for Consultants; this is linked 
to both establishment and financial systems. The 
Allocate Safe Care tool is used to undertake a census 
three times a day to assess the acuity and care hours 
per patient day; Staffing tactical meetings happen 
daily and are supported further by an additional 
assessment in the afternoon to plan next day staffing 
levels. 

The daily staffing plans are further supported 
by regular clinical establishment review which is 
presented to the Public Board. The reviews use the 
relevant tools as set out by the NQB in 2016 and also 
detail clinical judgement, triangulated with safety 
metrics and patient outcomes to support safe and 
effective skill mix.

Where service changes are identified, such as a 
reduction of beds due to staffing shortfalls specifically 
in community hospital settings, they are always 
supported by a quality impact assessment.

The Performance Assurance Framework also use 
metrics including staffing and safety measures to 
assess the effectiveness and safety of care.

Recruitment and Retention remains a priority for the 
Trust with a working group established to develop 
and monitor the implementation of a Retention 
Plan. Turnover has seen a significant improvement 
in year and there continues to be a focus across the 
organisation on recruiting to gaps and minimising 
agency usage. The Trust has a comprehensive agency 
reduction plan that is monitored through the nursing 
and medical workforce groups. This is also reported 
to the Board on a monthly basis. 

The Trust believes the above is in line with 
the ‘Developing Workforce Safeguards’ 
recommendations on using evidence based tools, 
professional judgement and outcomes to ensure 
safe staffing processes exist and are in line with the 
National Quality Board guidance.

The Trust is fully compliant with the registration 
requirements of the Care Quality Commission.

The Trust has published an up-to-date register 
of interests for decision-making staff within the 
past twelve months, as required by the ‘Managing 
Conflicts of Interest in the NHS’ guidance.

As an employer with staff entitled to membership of 
the NHS Pension Scheme, control measures are in 
place to ensure all employer obligations contained 
within the Scheme regulations are complied with. 
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This includes ensuring that deductions from salary, 
employer’s contributions and payments into the 
Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme rules, 
and that member Pension Scheme records are 
accurately updated in accordance with the timescales 
detailed in the Regulations.

Control measures are in place to ensure that all the 
organisation’s obligations under equality, diversity 
and human rights legislation are complied with.

The Trust has undertaken risk assessments and has a 
sustainable development management plan in place 
which takes account of UK

Climate Projections 2018 (UKCP18). The trust ensures 
that its obligations under the Climate Change Act 
and the Adaptation Reporting requirements are 
complied with.

Review of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness of the use of resources

The Trust’s draft Operational plan for 2019/20 
was submitted on 4 April 2019 following Board 
approval on 12 February 2019. Overall performance 
is monitored via an integrated performance report 
at the monthly meetings of the Board of Directors. 
Operational management and the coordination 
of Trust services are delivered by the Executive 
Directors. Performance of individual clinical Divisions 
is monitored formally on a monthly basis through the 
Performance Assurance Framework which is led by 
the Chief Operating Officer and twice annually with 
all Executive Directors.

The Trust’s External Audit ISA260 Report includes 
commentary on the economical, effective and 
efficient use of resources. The Internal Audit Plan 
includes reviews which consider the economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources. 
The findings of internal and external audit are 
reported to the Board via the Audit Committee.

I can confirm that the Trust complies with the cost 
allocation of and charging requirements set out in 
HM Treasury and Office of Public Sector Information 
guidance.

Internal Audit has conducted reviews against the 
Care Quality Commission regulations, records 
management, data quality and information 
governance. Reviews are conducted using a risk-
based approach. In addition they have annual reviews 
of the Trust’s risk management and governance 
arrangements.

Information governance

Information governance and data security is managed 
by the Information Governance Steering Group lead 
by the Deputy Medical Director. The Medical Director/
Deputy Chief Executive is the Trust’s nominated 
Senior Information Risk Owner and Freedom of 
Information Lead. Information Asset Owners for 
critical systems have been identified; system risk 
assessments and Information Risk Management 
training is undertaken annually.

An Information Security Forum, chaired by the 
Caldicott Guardian, deals with all aspects of 
information security and data confidentiality. Risks 
to information security are reported directly to 
the Information Security Forum (a sub group of 
the Information Governance Steering Group) and 
recorded on the Corporate Risk Register. The Trust 
has completed the Information Governance Toolkit 
assessment and the Safety and Risk Committee and 
the Board of Directors has received a report regarding 
its system for control of Information Governance.

On 28 March 2019 the Trust published the annual 
Data Security and Protection Toolkit assessment, the 
first return under the new reporting standard which 
was released in April 2018. The return included 94 out 
of 100 mandatory evidence items and 34 of the 40 
assertions. The Trust is currently rated as “Standards 
Not Met – Action Plan in Place” by NHS Digital. A plan 
has been submitted to address the outstanding items 
and will be monitored through to completion by the 
Trust’s Information Governance Steering Group.

The 2019/2020 annual Data Security and Protection 
Toolkit assessment has been delayed due to 
COVID-19 with an extension to 30th September 
2020. The return currently includes 105 out of 116 
mandatory evidence items and 35 of 44 assertions 
with plans in pace to complete the remaining work 
within the extension.

During 2019/20 the Trust reported one Information 
Governance incident to the Information 
Commissioners Office in line with the reporting 
requirements. The incident involved a staff member 
inappropriately accessing their own data.

The Information Commissioner has responded stating 
“No Further Action”, with the recommendation 
to investigate the causes of the incident to ensure 
we understand how and why it occurred and what 
steps we need to take to prevent it from happening 
again. The incident was fully investigated by the 
Trust with mitigating actions put in place, including 
the recommendations from the Information 
Commissioner. 
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The Trust actively promotes the importance of 
good Data Quality throughout the Trust to ensure 
accuracy, completeness and timeliness and the risks 
associated with any inaccuracies.

NHS England guidance and embedded legislation 
on the recording and monitoring of Elective 
Waiting Time data is complex and allows for local 
agreement and flexibility in how some rules are 
interpreted. To ensure that inherent risks and 
unintended consequences from local interpretation 
are monitored, the Trust has a robust framework 
and meeting structure that supports and drives the 
Information Governance agenda. This provides the 
Trust Board via the Safety and Risk Committee with 
the assurance that effective Information Governance 
best practice mechanisms are in place within the 
organisation.

Assessment of Data Quality incorporating Referral 
To Treatment/Elective Waiting List Management is 
included in the Trust’s annual Internal Audit work 
plan. The audit process provides independent 
assurance of the design and operation of controls in 
place.

The Trust’s Access policy establishes a number 
of principles and definitions and defines roles 
and responsibilities to assist with the effective 
management of waiting lists relating to outpatient 
appointments, elective treatment imaging and other 
diagnostic tests. Furthermore standard operating 
procedures are in place to support staff in applying 
a consistent and effective approach to Waiting List 
Management.

Detailed operational monitoring occurs across all 
specialties and in conjunction with internal metrics 
against data quality. These are applied to identify 
areas for improvement and are monitored on a 
regular basis.

Annual Quality Account

Following guidance provided by NHSE/I the Trust 
has not produced a Quality Report, but will instead 
produce a Quality Account for submission in 
December 2020. There is no requirement for the 
Quality Account to be externally assured. 

The Trust has established systems and processes to 
collate, validate, analyse and report on data for the 
annual Quality Account as it does for other clinical 
quality and performance information. The data is 
subject to regular review and challenge at speciality, 
Divisional and Trust levels. In line with the Trust’s 
commitment to openness and transparency, the data 
included is not just limited to good performance 

and is publicly reported at least on a quarterly basis. 
The Audit Committee undertake a review of the 
data assurance underpinning the Quality Report 
and through this process and other review of data, 
the Board of Directors are assured that the Quality 
Account represents a balanced view.

Internal Audit have a three year audit cycle to assess 
quality systems and data (similar to that in place for 
our financial systems), was agreed with our internal 
auditors and built into the Internal Audit plans for 
future years. This will be an on-going process and 
the Board of Directors will use the recommendations 
from this work to further improve the robustness of 
the process underpinning the Quality Report. The 
most recent review of Data Quality was undertaken 
in March 2020. The next annual review will be 
undertaken during 2020/21.

Audit of mandated indicators

Following guidance provided by NHSE/I the Trust 
is not required to undertake an audit of mandated 
indicators.

COVID-19

The Trust initiated its pandemic plans in line with 
national guidance on 4 March 2020. The Local 
Resilience Forum (LRF) declared a LRF Major 
Incident on 16 March 2020 and an Incident (Gold) 
Management Team was established which has 
met every day since. The Incident Management 
Framework of Gold (which has a number of hubs and 
groups within its structure) sits alongside the Trust’s 
existing Governance Performance System as outlined 
above.

The Trust and indeed the wider South West have 
not been impacted by COVID-19 in the same way as 
other Trusts have been throughout the country as 
the disease prevalence and profile has been much 
lower than predicted. We believe that the lock down 
arrangements put in place by the Government have 
had a significantly positive impact for the region. 
This has allowed the Trust time to plan and prepare 
and put in arrangements, such as the hosting of the 
Devon and Cornwall Nightingale Hospital in readiness 
for a second surge.

As part of the Trust’s planning and preparedness and 
as a direct result of COVID-19, the Trust has reviewed 
its Governance arrangements, taking a “Governance 
Lite” approach. The five Sub Committees of the 
Governance Committee have been revised and where 
appropriate replaced to provide a flatter structure. 
Some sub groups and Divisional Governance groups 
have been paused, but have been replaced with 
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direct access into the Governance Committee via 
Executive Leads. These new arrangements were 
approved by the Board of Directors (and shared with 
the Trust’s Internal Auditors) in May 2020 for an 
initial period of three months and their effectiveness 
will be evaluated and reviewed at that time. The 
focus on Governance has not changed with patient 
and staff safety remaining the highest priority for the 
Board of Directors.

Review of effectiveness 

As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for 
reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control. My review of the effectiveness of the system 
of internal control is informed by the work of the 
internal auditors, clinical audit and the executive 
managers and clinical leads within the NHS trust 
who have responsibility for the development and 
maintenance of the internal control framework. I 
have drawn on performance information available 
to me. My review is also informed by comments 
made by the external auditors in their management 
letter and other reports. I have been advised on 
the implications of the result of my review of the 
effectiveness of the system of internal control by 
the board, the audit committee and Governance 
Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and 
ensure continuous improvement of the system is in 
place. 

The processes applied in maintaining and reviewing 
the effectiveness of the system of controls includes:

 ● The maintenance of a view of the overall position 
with regard to internal control by the Board of 
Directors through its routine reporting processes 
and its work on corporate risk

 ● Review of the Board Assurance Framework and 
receipt of Internal and External Audit reports to 
the Audit Committee

 ● Personal input into the controls and risk 
management processes from all Executive 
Directors, Senior Managers and clinicians

 ● The review of the Trust’s risk and internal control 
framework is supported by the Annual Head of 
Internal Audit opinion which states that significant 
can be given, that there is a sound system of 
internal control and that controls are generally 
being applied

 ● Evidence gathering for core Care Quality 
Commission regulations and registration.

 ● Self-assessment against the Care Quality 
Commission’s Essential Standards for Quality and 
Safety (reviewed by internal audit)

 ● Self-assessment against NHSI’s Code of 
Compliance and NHSI’s Governance Framework

 ● Performance monitoring by the Board of Directors 
of the Trust’s strategy and operational milestones 
to achieve internal and external targets

 ● Results of the national patient and staff survey 
results and development of targeted action plans

 ● Delivery of the health and safety action plan

 ● The Trust’s compliance with the Hygiene code

 ● The Trust’s unconditional registration with the 
CQC, rated overall as ‘Good’ March 2019

 ● Safe Staffing reviews

 ● Safety thermometer

My review of the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control has been presented and approved 
by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors 
and the Audit and Governance Committees have 
been kept informed of progress against action plans 
throughout the year.

Conclusion

There are no significant internal control issues I wish 
to report in respect of 2019/20.

Signed: 

 

Suzanne Tracey 
Chief Executive

Date: 24 June 2020 
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Council of Governors

The Trust’s Council of Governors (CoG) is an integral 
part of the RD&E’s governance structure providing a 
vital connection between the Trust, its members and 
the public. 

During the year, the CoG has ensured that it has 
carried out, as effectively as possible, its joint roles of:

 ● holding the Board of Directors accountable and;

 ● representing the views of members and the wider 
public to the Trust

In carrying out these duties, the Trust seeks to 
support the CoG and individual governors to ensure 
that there is both the means and capacity to carry 
out its responsibilities effectively. At the same time, 
the Trust is mindful that the CoG is an elected 
representative voluntary body that has a distinct role 
separate to that of the Board of Directors. 

The COG has strengthened its relationship with the 
Board over the last few years with much greater 
interaction and engagement between the two 
bodies. The relationship is one in which both the 
Board and COG share the same broad objectives of 
acting in the interests of the organisation and patient 
care whilst retaining sufficient distance to enable 
the COG to act as a critical friend and ensure that 
the Board is acting in the best interests of members 
and the public and has the right mix of experience 
and skills within the Non-Executive Directors to 
manage the key challenges facing the Trust. Non-
Executive Directors regularly attend CoG meetings 
for informal face-to-face meetings as well as more 
formally representing some of the work they are 
responsible for at CoG meetings. A regular rota of 
Governors attending the public Board meetings has 
also helped to enable the Governors to see the Board 
‘in practice’ as well as help provide intelligence that 
individual Governors have used in contributing to the 
performance assessment of individual Non-Executive 
Directors. During the year, the Governors have 
developed a “score-card” to enable them to assess 
the contributions of individual NEDs at a number of 
meetings where their paths cross including Board of 
Director meetings. 

The Trust has an “Engagement Policy” agreed 
between the CoG and the Board of Directors to help 
manage situations in which the COG’s concerns 
about the performance of the Board of Directors 
or the welfare of the Trust have not been resolved 
through the normal channels. This policy was not 

OUR GOVERNORS AND MEMBERS 
required at any time during the year. In addition, the 
Senior Independent Director acts as an independent 
facilitator through which concerns about the Board 
or the Chairman can be managed if appropriate. This 
facility was not required during the year. 

The CoG met four times during the year to conduct 
its core business. During these meetings, the CoG 
collectively considers the performance of the Trust 
over a quarter highlighting any issues or concerns 
it may have in relation to the way in which the 
Board of Directors is managing performance. The 
performance report, which essentially summarises 
the performance information that goes to the Board, 
contains information about the Trust’s operational 
performance and its adherence to various national 
targets, its financial performance and how it is 
performing in relation to the quality priorities set 
by the Governors themselves in the annual Quality 
Report. 

The report also provides details of what the Board 
has considered during the quarter in question. The 
quarterly CoG meetings also focus on updating the 
Governors themselves on a number of regular topics 
including updates from the three key working groups 
(see below), the Patient Experience Committee, and 
on elections. 

Key highlights for Governors year 
2019/20

Re-appointment of the External 
Auditors

Throughout the year, the CoG was involved in the 
re-appointment of the Trust’s External Auditors. 
KPMG’s contract as External Auditor was to end on 
31 October 2019 and it was the Council’s role to 
approve the recommendation of the Project Panel. 
A number of Governors were members of both the 
Project Team and the Project Panel. The Council of 
Governors approved the recommendation to re-
appoint KPMG as the Trust’s External Auditors from 1 
November 2019 at its meeting on 23 August 2019. 

Appointment of two Non-Executive 
Directors

The Trust recruited two new Non-Executive Directors 
in 2019, one with transformation skills (to replace 
Jane McCloskey who resigned in January 2019); and 
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one with clinical skills (to replace Simon Knowles 
who resigned from the Board in November 2019). 
A detailed search was conducted for these positions 
through Gatenby Sanderson. The Nominations 
Committee long-listed and then short-listed 
candidates with interviews taking place in September 
2019. The appointment of Professor Chris Bones 
(transformation) and Professor Hisham Khalil (clinical) 
was approved by the Council of Governors on 23 
September 2019. Both took up their posts on the 
Board on 18 November 2019. 

Re-appointment of a Non-Executive 
Director

The Nominations Committee, at its meeting on 9 
May 2019, considered a proposal to extend the term 
of office of Professor Kay, the Senior Independent 
Director (SID), for one additional year. Professor Kay’s 
term of office was due to end on 31 March 2020. 
The Committee considered changes due to take 
place to the Board over the following 12-18 months, 
including a change of Chair, and agreed continuity 
in the SID role was important. It recommended to 
the CoG that Professor Kay be reappointed for one 
further year from 1 April 2020 and this was approved 
by the Council at its meeting on 3 June 2019.

Council of Governor meetings

In addition to the standard agenda items: 
performance report, working group updates, Patient 
Experience Committee (PEC) updates, Election 
updates, MY CARE updates, strategic and operational 
updates from Chair and CEO.

June 2019

 ● Update car parking / travel – a routine update 
from the CEO at CoG meetings (started in March 
2019)

 ● Update on the Care Quality Commission’s Report 
following its planned, routine inspection of the 
Trust in January and February 2019.

 ● Received reports from the Nominations 
Committee and NED Remuneration Committee. 

August 2019

 ● Received updates from Janice Kay, Senior 
Independent Director, and Steve Kirby, NED and 
Chair of Governance Committee, on their roles 
and remits.

 ● Approved the recommendation to re-appoint 
KPMG as External Auditors (as above).

November 2019

 ● Received and approved the appraisal report for 
James Brent, Chairman

 ● Received an update from the Nominations 
Committee on the process for the recruitment of a 
new Chair and a new NED. It approved the revised 
Nominations Committee Terms of Reference and 
the revised Policy for the Composition of the Non-
Executive Directors on the Board. 

March 2020

 ● Received updates from Peter Dillon, Vice Chair 
and Chair of Audit Committee, and Alastair 
Matthews, NED, on their roles and remits.

 ● Updates from the Nominations Committee and 
the NED Remuneration Committee. 

 ● An update on Patient Experience at Night, a 
quality priority from 2019/20

Council of Governors Development 
Days

Alongside strategic and operational updates from 
the Chairman and feedback from their communities, 
the Council also discussed the following at its 
Development Days. 

May 2019  
(rearranged from March 2019, due to weather)

 ● The CoG received and discussed the CoG 
Effectiveness Review 2019 report. It received 
an update on the MY CARE Programme and an 
update on Patient Communications, a 2018/19 
quality priority.

July 2019

 ● Joint Development Day with the Board of Directors: 
an update on the Devon Long Term Plan and STP 
and a Peninsula Clinical Services Strategy update. 
There was also an update on the collaborative 
agreement with Northern Devon Healthcare Trust.

 ● CoG only : a discussion on Governor training 
needs

November 2019

 ● Joint with the Board of Directors: deaf awareness 
sessions, a session for Governors and NEDs on 
Governance, the role of the NED and the role of 
the Governors and the importance of listening 
and effective questions facilitated by NHS 
Providers, a MY CARE update
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January 2020

 ● Update on Quality Priority for 2019/20: 
Volunteers, discussion on selecting quality 
priorities for 2020/21, MY CARE update, 
an update on the collaborative agreement 
with Northern Devon Healthcare Trust, and a 
Nominations Committee update.

March 2020 – postponed due to COVID-19

The work of the Council of Governors

The CoG has continued to organise itself through 
three key working groups:

 ● CoG effectiveness

 ● Member and public engagement

 ● Patient safety and quality 

These groups are responsible for identified elements 
of the agreed consolidated CoG business plan and 
to provide a Governor perspective on key issues 
within the groups’ remit (i.e. they do not undertake 
executive functions that are the remit of the Trust). 

The groups have a Chair and a Committee 
membership but are open to any member of 
CoG that wishes to participate. The groups are 
accountable directly to the CoG and the Chairs report 
on progress and outcomes to every CoG meeting.

The CoG Coordinating Committee, which is 
comprised of the Trust Chairman, the Lead 
Governor (and Deputy), the Chairs of the three 
working groups, a staff Governor representative and 
secretariat staff, meets every quarter and focuses on 
coordinating the work of the CoG and ensuring that 
progress is being made against the business plan as 
well as facilitating cooperation between the CoG and 
the Board of Directors. 

The work programme of each of the working groups 
is amalgamated into a single CoG business plan 
which is overseen by the Coordinating Committee to 
ensure that Governor priorities and plans are kept on 
track.

In addition, three Governors sit on the Trust’s Patient 
Experience Committee representing the views of 
Governors, members and the wider public. 

During the last year, these groups have been busy 
implementing programmes of work linked to 
Governor’s key roles and stated priorities and the 
details of the work of these Groups can be found 
in the Council’s papers and minutes on the Trust 
website and the new members’ website.

The following sets out some of the key highlights for 
each of these groups over the year:

Nominations Committee 

 ● Appointment of two new Non-Exec Directors, 
subsequently approved by CoG – Professor Chris 
Bones and Professor Hisham Khalil

 ● Re-appointment of Professor Janice Kay, Senior 
Independent Director, for an additional one year 
from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021.

 ● Reviewed its Terms of Reference and the Policy for 
the Composition of the Non-Executive Directors 
on the Board.

 ● Started the process for the recruitment of a new 
Chair and a new NED

Non-Executive Director Remuneration 
Committee

Information relating to this Committee can be found 
on page 33 of the report. 

CoG Effectiveness Working Group

 ● Undertook the CoG Effectiveness Review and 
developed an action plan

 ● Managed the list of CoG documents due for 
review during the year

 ● Reviewed the sharing of information with CoG 
from meetings such as the Board of Directors, 
Audit Committee and PEC.

Patient Safety & Quality Working 
Group

 ● Review the quality priorities for 2019/20 
throughout the year

 ● Chose the priorities for 2020/21 – Food / 
patient meals and End of Life Care – and agreed 
collaborative working with the PMEG on member 
and public engagement with the priorities

 ● Received an update on the Trust’s Patient Safety 
Programme 

Membership & Public Engagement

The purpose of the working group is to ensure that 
the Council of Governors is meeting its duty to 
represent the interests of members of the Trust and 
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the interests of the public and contribute a Governor 
perspective to the development of the Trust’s 
engagement work.

The Group discussed a range of issues through the 
year including;

 ● Helping to input into the Annual Members 
Meeting (AMM) and associated member 
engagement.

 ● The Trust’s work on its inclusion agenda including 
the ongoing work on improving access of the 
Trust’s services for deaf and hearing impaired 
people

 ● The work underway on renewing the Trust’s 
website

 ● The work on encouraging members to consider 
putting their name forward to become a Governor

 ● The impact of the NHS long term plan particularly 
on outpatients and how MY CARE could change 
the debate on outpatients

Towards the end of the year the group looked afresh 
at its approach and agreed that:

 ● Its members will become more proactive on 
using social media as a means of communicating 
with members and the wider public. To enable 
this to happen the Group commissioned the 
Communications team to run bespoke training on 
the use of social media. 

 ● A closed Facebook group would be set up for 
Governors to promote communication and 
dialogue

 ● The Group will become ambassadors for the 
newly launched RD&E Charity

 ● The Groups will seek to articulate the public/
member “voice” on the Governor’s quality 
priorities

Other activities

 ● Prospective governors meetings

 ● New governor induction

 ● Patient-led Assessments of the Care Environment 
(PLACE)

 ● Governor attendance at regional and national 
Governor conferences

 ● Three governor members continued to serve on 
the Patient Experience Committee

Governor Expenses

The aggregate claims for expenses from Governors 
during the year 2019/20 was £1,778.41. In 2018/19 
the figure was £2,197.20. 

Our Members

The Trust is a public benefit corporation that exists 
for the sole purpose of providing healthcare services 
to the population it serves. All Foundation Trusts 
are obliged, through legislation, to have members. 
Membership is a distinguishing feature of FTs which 
brings with it substantial benefits. As a membership 
organisation, the RD&E endeavours to reach out 
to inform members about what is happening at 
the Trust as well as listening to their concerns and 
opinions on service delivery, on how to improve 
patient experience and on influencing its longer term 
strategy. 

About our members

Having a membership base allows a meaningful 
relationship to be developed between members 
and the Trust. Developing this engagement helps 
us to deepen our understanding of their views and 
opinions which we can correlate to the views of the 
wider community. Developing an on-going dialogue 
with members provides an opportunity for the Trust 
to develop its thinking, test ideas, and give members 
an overview of potential future strategic options 
which it can then engage with members on in a way 
that genuinely allows for influence and boundary 
setting (i.e. options which members would find 
unpalatable for example). 

The ongoing conversation with our members – 
expressed primarily through our Members’ Say/
Day events, through surveys of members and in 
the feedback from Governors – is a very important 
aspect of the Trust’s work that provides genuine 
added value in informing its work, whether that is in 
a relatively minor operational detail, potential service 
change, ways to improve services in the best interests 
of patients/public or on bigger and more strategic 
issues. The feedback from the interactive activities 
and focus groups at Members Say helps provide an 
agenda for the Governors as well as providing insight 
into the views of members – and thus the public – for 
the Board of Directors. 

For more information on members see the section on 
our Public and Member Engagement Working Group.
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GOVERNOR PROFILES 

East Devon, Dorset, Somerset and the Rest of England

Peta Foxall - 
Lead Governor

Peta was re-elected as Public Governor in September 2019 for a term of three years. 
She has been a member of the RD&E’s Council of Governors since 2013 and carries out 
the responsibilities of the Lead Governor following election to that role by her peers 
in 2017. Peta has extensive experience of leading and working in multi-professional 
teams, primarily within the NHS, higher education and third sector organisations. She is 
a committed advocate for social action and demonstrates that in several ways, through 
volunteering in the local community and as the national Chair of The Wildlife Trusts and 
Trustee for Step Up To Serve.

Barbara 
Sweeney

Barbara was elected as a public governor in September 2017. 

She has lived in East Devon for 40 years and has recently retired from further education 
where she worked in governance. During her working career she has also held senior 
positions in management in healthcare and in higher education. Three of her four children 
work in the NHS and her late husband was an academic GP in Exeter.

Her particular interest is in the quality of patient experience, and on the Council of 
Governors she has been elected to sit on the Patient Experience Committee and the 
Nominations Committee. She also sits on the Patient and Members Engagement Group. 
Barbara is a Trustee at Hospiscare. Other Board experience includes eight years as a 
Governor of Exeter College.

Kay Foster Kay Foster has been a Governor since 2014, representing East Devon, Somerset and the 
Rest of England. She is a retired State Register Nurse and Midwife with over thirty years 
nursing experiences. 18 years of this was spent serving as a Nursing Officer with the 
Queen Alexandra Royal Army Nursing Corps, retiring in the rank of Major. She gained a 
wide variety of experiences with many global postings including Saudi Arabia during the 
First Gulf War. She has a BSc (Hons) in Health Services Management. During six years as 
Governor, Kay has been a member of a number of subcommittees and Chairs the Public 
Members Engagement Group (PMEG). Separate from the RD&E she in the co-founder of 
Living Well Devon (LWD) a voluntary social enterprise group serving the community of East 
Devon encouraging Education and Empowerment of Optimal Health-Life Style Medicine. 
Kay is very proud to be a Governor of the RD&E Foundation Trust which provides quality 
healthcare to the community and Governors play an important role: “as a governor 
you will hold non-executive directors to account for the performance of the board and 
represent the interests of NHS foundation trust members and the public.”

Bob Maskell Bob was elected in September 2019 and his term has been extended until 2021. He has 
lived in East Devon all his life and his current home is in Exmouth. 

After completing a short career commission in the Royal Navy, attaining the rank of 
Lieutenant, Bob worked in export trading before moving to a customer support role in 
managed computer services. He has over 30 years’ experience in customer facing roles.

Bob has been actively involved with a local charity, the Exeter MS Therapy Centre, for 
more than 15 years and has served on their board of trustees, completing a period as 
chair in 2017. Having resigned as a trustee in April 2019 he continues to volunteer at the 
Centre as an Oxygen therapy operator.
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Rachel Noar Rachel was elected in September 2019 for a term of 3 years. She is Deaf and lives 
in Ottery St Mary. Her family’s first language is British Sign Language (BSL). Rachel 
worked with young Deaf people at Derby College, as an Independent Support 
Worker, encouraging them to develop independent living skills. She went on to study 
Contemporary Arts/ Computer Animation, gaining an MA. She became a consultant 
for a disability board for East Midlands Art Council and was a member of the board of 
EQUATA, an arts agency for Deaf/disabled. She worked as an Advisory Deaf Inclusion 
worker for DCC. Rachel has also supported hearing families with deaf babies/toddlers and 
worked with nurseries and schools to develop the inclusion of Deaf children in mainstream 
situations. Since developing MS, she has become the full time mother of two boys.

Tony Wilkinson Tony was elected in 2019 for a three year term. After studying philosophy at university, 
Tony first worked for the government on tax policy and then moved to the private sector 
to work on financial advice for developing countries. He later moved to investment 
management and finished his financial career with a spell directing IT. In retirement, he 
has published two books on ethics and is working on a book on political philosophy. 
He has been an advisor, trustee and local chair at Citizens Advice. Tony is delighted 
to contribute as a Governor and believes the NHS is one of the best things about our 
country. He hopes the skills acquired in his varied career will help in holding the Board to 
account, the central task of the council of governors. Beyond that, he hopes to improve 
communication to help the community to feel connection and involvement with their 
hospitals.

Exeter and South Devon 

Faye Doris Faye was elected in September 2016 for a term of three years and was re-elected in 
September 2019 for a further three years. She lives in Exeter and is a retired nurse, 
midwife and Associate Professor of Midwifery for the University of Plymouth. She has 
been an active member of the Council of Governors at RD&E NHS FT and was elected 
Deputy Lead Governor in 2018. Faye is the Chair of the Patient Safety and Quality 
Working Group of the Council of Governors, and a member of the RD&E NHS FT Patient 
Experience Committee and the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Steering Committee. She 
brings to the Council experience of leadership and management, listening and responding 
to stakeholder and staff feedback. As a governor Faye supports all aspects of inclusivity 
and is a member of the Deaf and Hard of Hearing Working Group at RD&E NHSFT. She 
believes in the NHS providing safe and effective care that is kind, compassionate and fair 
to all.

Tony Ducker Tony was elected for his second three year term in September 2017, which was extended 
a year, to September 2021 due to the Corvid 19 outbreak. Tony spent his career in the 
NHS, including five years as a Lecturer in the Department of Child Life and Health at St 
George’s Medical School and twenty-two years as a Consultant Neonatal Paediatrician 
in Kent. He served on various hospital and regional and national committees including 
a National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) guideline group. Tony spent 
27 years as a member of the Territorial Army including 5 as commanding officer of 220 
Field Ambulance in Maidstone. Since retiring, he has worked with Clinical Commissioning 
Groups as Lead Clinician for the appraisal of neonatal units in East of England and South 
West England. Tony continues to work in his medico legal practice and is involved in the 
local community including two local U3As.
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John Murphy John Murphy was elected in September 2018 for a three-year term. For over twenty years 
he worked in the NHS and for the Department of Health. At NHS Devon, he worked on 
supporting community hospitals, including the new Newton Abbot hospital. He helped 
set up the league of friends at Whipton Hospital in Exeter. At Cornwall and Isles of Scilly 
primary care trust, John answered questions from the public on controversial issues 
about the way health care is delivered. Working for Devon and Cornwall at NHS England, 
he looked into patient experience of local health services. His particular interests are in 
improving team working, delivering better communications among staff and patients and 
with local communities served by the RD&E.

Olwen Goodall Olwen was elected as governor in September 2019 and her term has been extended to 
2021. Now retired from lecturing at Exeter University, her work has been in education and 
psychology. As a teacher, psychologist and lecturer for over 40 years, she has worked with 
all ages in a wide variety of contexts. She has been a school governor for 17 years.

Olwen has volunteered regularly -helping to set up & work with the Exeter Rape Crisis 
Line and now at the Foodbank. In her role as RD&E Governor, she hopes to represent and 
advocate for service users and their families. She has recent experience of providing an 
outsider’s perspective, both teaching at the medical school and also public involvement in 
medical research. Olwen looks forward to supporting the work of a hospital she greatly 
respects.

Christopher 
Green

Chris Green was elected as a Governor for Exeter & South Devon in September 2019 
for a two-year term. Married to a retired staff nurse, he has two daughters and 5 
grandchildren.

Retiring four years ago, Chris had spent the ‘Lion’s share’ of his working life in the 
brewing industry. A major part of that career as a Commercial Manager. His roles have 
been varied, including implementing I.T., public house audit and estate & financial 
management. He has also managed a number of departments including loans, 
acquisitions & disposals, credit control and customer service and telesales.

Since his initial volunteering at the RD&E and being elected to the Council of Governors, 
Chris has joined the Patient-Led Assessments of the Care Environment and Patient 
Research Ambassador roles, both as a volunteer. This has gone some way in meeting his 
ambition to give back to the NHS for what has been a lifetime of care for him and his 
family.

Desmond 
Kumar

Desmond was born in Guyana South Africa on a sugar plantation next to the river 
Demerara. His family arrived in London in 1962, where he went to school and then moved 
to Exeter to study Mathematics and Economics at the University. After qualification, he 
joined the Devon & Cornwall Police force and was posted all around Devon. After running 
his own business, he taught at Blundell’s’ School, later moving to schools in Ottery 
and Honiton. During this time he coached hundreds of young people basketball, many 
who have gone on to represent their country and played in Europe and the USA. He is 
passionate about supporting our young people and believes that we all need to do our bit 
to help our community.
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Mid, North, West Devon and Cornwall 

James Bradley James was re-elected in September 2018 for a term of three years. James was a Chartered 
Environmental Health Officer and Chartered Safety and Health Practitioner who having 
completed a military career has worked in Local Government, the National Health Service 
and finally as an international consultant.

He is an independent lay member of the NHS England Specialised Services Public and 
Patient Voice Assurance Group, lay member for NHS England Specialised Services Clinical 
Frailty Programme of Care Board, Member of Devon County Council Commissioning 
Involvement Group, Chair of Okehampton Medical Centre Patient Participation Group, 
Member of South West Academic Health Science Network Quality Assurance panel, 
Expert Advisor for the University of Surrey on their Therapeutic Radiographer and Dietitian 
Prescribing Project Advisory Group, Trustee of West Devon Community and Voluntary 
Services and Treasurer of Devon Health and Social Care Forum.

He is a passionate and committed individual in regard to ensuring that the lay voice 
and perspective is always articulated and the patient perspective is heard whenever and 
wherever the need arises. His hobbies include gardening, stamp collecting and helping 
others, especially his wife.

Peter Flatters Peter was elected Governor in September 2019 for a three year term. His previous career 
concerned the collection, interpretation and presentation of scientific data. After University 
he worked for ICI as a Field Team Leader, conducting Agrochemical Trials on farms across 
Southern England. Later, he moved into R&D Planning with ICI before transferring to the 
University of Bristol’s Long Ashton Research. When the research station closed, he became 
a rural Sub-Postmaster in a Devon village. He ran the PO for eight years, steering people 
through varied business, from fishing licences to Banking and guiding pensioners through 
the transition to chip and PIN cards. His background in science, regulation and customer 
service provides a sound preparation for Hospital Governance. 

Monika 
Herpoldt-Bright

Monika was elected for a three year term in September 2019. She is a retired Cabin 
Service Director with a degree in education who lives just outside Crediton. Having been 
raised and educated in Exeter she is very aware of the needs of the community. She has 
volunteered for the past 16 years as a Samaritan and was privileged to be their Director. 
She now has a national role as a Quality Mentor. Having been a cancer patient and more 
recently having had one of her sisters undergoing major surgery she is very aware not only 
of the negative aspects of the hospital, but more especially what an amazing asset to the 
community the RD&E is.

Michael James Michael was elected for a second term of 3 years as Governor in September 2019. He has 
always been very active as a governor and worked hard to insure the specific and special 
rural aspects of decision making is as high up all agendas as possible. He is a member of 
the Patient Safety & Quality Working Group keeping the particular interests of safety and 
the wellbeing of those he represents properly considered.

His working background was in Science, Engineering and Business, big and small. 
For many years he was the Devon Chairman of a Nation Federation of small specific 
businesses. Before retiring in 2011, he, his wife and children ran a village shop in 
the Heart of Devon. He is fond of investigating and enjoying the many cultures and 
differences of people in Devon and around the world. He travels as often as possible 
and has been an active member of the community. His hobbies include Family and Local 
History, specialist gardening and experimental cooking.
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Marcus Pipe Marcus was elected in September 2019 for a term of one year. This was extended for a 
second year without further election due to the Corona virus crisis. Formerly Deputy Police 
and Crime Commissioner for Dorset, he has a good grasp of governance and understands 
the difference between being involved in the executive functions of the organisation and 
holding others to account for how those executive functions are performed. Marcus was 
formerly a Civil Servant, primarily serving in the Ministry of Justice and during that time 
he spent 15 years as a Magistrate. More recently he has been a Legal Ombudsman. Since 
his appointment as a Governor, Marcus has also worked part time providing care to the 
elderly.

Appointed 

Cllr Phil Twiss Councillor Phil Twiss is one of two appointed Governors and represents Devon County 
Council starting his term of office in May 2018, running until May 2021. He is the County 
Council member for the Feniton & Honiton Division.

Phil sits on the DCC Adult Health Scrutiny Committee reporting to the Leader of the 
Council Health as the Scrutiny liaison and has developed an interest in the whole Health 
and wellbeing agenda. The RD&E NHS Trust is an important part of his learning that is 
shared with others as part of contributing to improving services on behalf of all residents 
in Devon.

Professor 
Angela Shore

Angela was appointed on behalf of the University of Exeter in 2016. She is Professor of 
Cardiovascular Sciences and was Vice Dean Research at the University of Exeter Medical 
School until 2019. Angela is principal investigator of a large team of scientists and 
clinicians in vascular medicine based at the hospital. As Scientific Director of the Exeter 
NIHR Clinical Research Facility she facilitates Experimental Medicine Research for the 
RD&E/Medical School collaboration. Angela is President of the British Microcirculation 
Society, was Treasurer for the European Society for microcirculation for over 10 years and 
is a member of the International Liaison Committee for World Microcirculation Research. 

Staff 

Catherine 
Geddes

Catherine was first appointed in September 2016 for a term of 2 years and re-elected in 
September 2018 for a further term of three years. She is a member of the Patient Safety 
and Quality Working Group. 

Catherine’s career with the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust began as a 
student nurse in 1995. As a staff nurse, she worked in both the community and within the 
acute setting at the RD&E. In 2000 she qualified as a midwife and spent the next 11 years 
working in both community and hospital settings. After gaining her PGCE Catherine took 
a career break in 2009 and spent a year teaching student nurses and midwives in Western 
Australia. Catherine successfully completed her PGCert in obstetrics and gynaecology 
ultrasound in 2011 and has been the Clinical Lead Midwife sonographer in the centre of 
Women’s Health since 2014.
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Hazel Hedicker Hazel was appointed staff governor in 2013 and was re-appointed for a second 3-year 
term in September 2016. (This has been extended for an additional year due to COIV-19 
disruptions). Following a career in the hospitality industry, Hazel commenced employment 
with the NHS in 1994 and joined the RD&E in March 2000 having previously worked 
for another large southwest acute Trust. Having spent 16 years as a senior operational 
manager within two Facilities divisions, her career changed direction and she joined the 
Transformation Programme Team in May 2012. Hazel has since managed numerous 
trust-wide transformation projects supporting colleagues with both clinical and non-
clinical redesign and change. In October 2018 she joined the MY CARE programme team 
providing project management support for the Clinical Pathway Improvement workstream. 
Hazel has a Masters degree in Business Administration and is a fully qualified Prince 2 
Practitioner. She has a keen interest in Communications & Engagement, in particular the 
engagement of patients, carers and staff with service redesign and change.

Dominic Hazell Dominic was elected as a Staff Governor in September 2018 for a term of 2 years, which 
was extended for an additional year until September 2021, due to COIV-19 disruptions. 
Dominic started his career at the RD&E as a Student Physiotherapist in 2008. Since 
qualifying as a Chartered Physiotherapist he has worked throughout multiple departments 
within both the Acute and Community settings at the RD&E. He has previous experience 
acting as a workplace steward for the Chartered Society of Physiotherapy since 2014 and 
his current role as a Senior Musculoskeletal Physiotherapist is located at Exmouth Hospital. 
Dominic was elected as a Staff Governor in September 2018 for a term of 2 years.

Rob Biggar Rob was elected as staff governor in September 2019 for a 3-year term. He is the lead 
physicist in radiotherapy treatment planning, with a background of 8+ years providing 
service development and direct patient care, within oncology. Rob has experience at 
different NHS trusts across Merseyside and Wirral before moving to the RD&E. Rob’s role 
requires solving complex technical, clinical and logistical problems and help implement 
solutions to improve patient safety and clinical outcomes. Rob is also an honorary lecturer 
at the University of Liverpool. He is a member of the Institute of Physics and a chartered 
scientist.

Anum Shuja Anum was elected for a term of one year in September 2019, which was extended for 
an additional year until September 2021, due to COIV-19 disruptions. Anum has over a 
decade of experience in client services and relationship management. Anum has worked 
for both, the private and not for profit sector in a diverse set of service providing roles. 
Anum joined the RD&E in 2018, as a Patient Experience Lead for the Community Services 
Division. This allowed her to continue her ambition of working in the service industry in a 
role that focused on care for others. Anum is passionate about the NHS -both, as a service 
user, and as an employee. She believes that the organization should continue striving 
for the highest level of care, by ensuring the staff and patients are at the centre of every 
decision made. Anum is particularly interested in improving communication between the 
senior team and the diverse staff population. In her spare time, Anum enjoys spending 
time with her family and volunteers at her local school.
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Election Results 
The election results were declared on 13 September 
2019.

East Devon, Dorset, Somerset & the Rest of 
England (23.56% turnout)

Peta Foxall re-elected for a term of three years. 
Rachel Noar and Tony Wilkinson elected for three 
year terms. Andrew Beresford elected for a two year 
term and Bob Maskell for a one year term.

Exeter and South Devon (19.28% turnout)

Faye Doris re-elected for a term of three years. Olwen 
Goodall and Desmond Kumar elected for a three year 
term. Christopher Green elected for a two year term.

Mid, North, West Devon and Cornwall (20.01% 
turnout)

Monika Herpoldt-Bright, Peter Flatters and Michael 
James elected for a three year term. Marcus Pipe 
elected for a one year term. 

Staff Governors (10.78% turnout)

Hazel Hedicker re-elected for a one year term. Rob 
Biggar elected for a three year term and Anum Shuja 
elected for a one year term. 

The Board confirmed that all elections to the Council 
of Governors are held in accordance with the election 
rules as stated in the Constitution. Governors can be 
contacted via email at: rde-tr.foundationtrust@nhs.
net The Governor’s Register of Interests is available 
for inspection on the Trust website or from the Trust 
Secretary (01392 404551). 
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Summary of attendance of Governors at CoG meetings for 2019/20

P = Public 
C = Confidential

Name of Governor

Jun-19 Aug-19
Annual Members Meeting - 

Sept 2019
Nov-19 Mar-20

P C P C P C P C

Beresford, Andrew P A P

Biggar, Rob P P P P P

Bradley, James P P P P A P P P P

Costelloe, Susie P P P P A

Doris, Faye P P P P P P P P P

Ducker, Tony P P P P A P P P P

Flatters, Peter P P P P P

Foster, Kay P P P P A P P P P

Foxall, Peta A A P P P P P P P

Geddes, Catherine P P P P P A A P P

Goodall, Olwyn P P P P P

Green, Christopher P A A P P

Hazell, Dominic A A P P A A A P P

Hedicker, Hazel P P P P P P P P P

Herpoldt-Bright, Monika P P P A A

Hull, Douglas A A A A A

James, Michael P A A P P

Kumar, Desmond P P P A A

Maskell, Bob P P P P P

Murphy, John P P P P P P P A A

Noar, Rachel P P P P P

Pipe, Marcus P P P P P

Shepherd, Rosemary P P P P A

Shore, Angela A A P P A P P P P

Shuja, Anum P P P P P

Sweeney, Barbara A A P P P P P P P

Thornton, Cynthia P P A A P

Twiss, Phil P P P P A A A P P

Wilde, Christopher P P P P A

Wilkinson, Tony P P P A A

James Brent, Chairman P P P P P P P P P

Present P

Apologies A

Did Not Attend DNA

Not in post
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VOLUNTARY DISCLOSURES
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY 

The Board of Directors has increasingly understood 
that inclusion is fundamental to the approach the 
organisation takes to organisational development, 
culture change, service improvement, and public 
and patient engagement. This led to the Board’s 
steer that the Trust should aim to be recognised as 
an employer of choice and an exemplar organisation 
which values diversity and that is truly inclusive. 
Whilst focus on protected characteristics must remain 
central, there is a keen sense that there are other 
barriers that reduce equality of access or which lead 
to discrimination and our work must reflect this 
broader understanding. 

Post appointing an Inclusion Lead in the last year, 
we set up the Diversity and Inclusion Steering Group 
and Working Group. The Steering Group Is chaired 
by our Chief Exec and is responsible for monitoring 
and holding to account the relevant stakeholders 
in ensuring we deliver our strategic outcomes. The 
Board proactively owns the Inclusion strategy and 
receives regular quarterly updates as well as involving 
themselves in the development of our strategy and 
plan.

A new “think tank” was also created to provide 
ongoing insight into ways of tackling discrimination 
and knowledge gaps and support the Steering group 
as a “critical friend”.

During 2019, we developed a three pronged 
approach to gather initial data and evidence to 
inform strategy development:

 ● the Board’s ambition on diversity and inclusion 
including a Board workshop on inclusion; analysis 
of current gaps in compliance against national 
standards and the outcomes from recent staff 
surveys and other data sets 

 ● an overview of good practice in the field as 
interested through visits to other organisations, 
dialogue as well as being part of the NHS 
Employers Diversity and Inclusion Partnership 
programme that we successfully became part of.

In addition, we have continued to implement an 
ongoing work programme which also provided 
insight into the development of our strategy 
including learning disabilities, mental health and a 
focus on LGBTQ+ issues. 

On the back of this work, we held two specially 
convened workshops for our Diversity and Inclusion 
Steering Group in order to develop the emerging 
strategy. Using the evidence base, good practice and 
Board steer, the workshop participants took a “deep 
dive” looking at our findings in order to produce 
an action plan for our forward looking strategy. 
The workshop participants identified some of the 
key barriers and facilitators and used a “theory of 
change” model to pull together the key elements 
of a refreshed inclusion strategy. We also consulted 
both externally and internally to validate our strategy 
and ensure we have been inclusive with relevant 
stakeholders in developing it.







ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020





Page 1

Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2019/20

Page

STATEMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RESPONSIBILITIES AS THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER 2

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS 3

FOREWORD TO THE ACCOUNTS 11

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 12

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 13

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY 14

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 15

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 16

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

INDEX

Page 1



Page 2

Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2019/20

-

-

-

-

-

-

Signed: 

Suzanne Tracey  - Chief Executive

Date: 24 June 2020

observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS Improvement, including the relevant accounting and disclosure requirements,
and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;

state whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and the
Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any material
departures in the financial statements; 

The Accounting Officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Trust and to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above
mentioned Act. The Accounting Officer is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Trust and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.  

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

Statement of the Chief Executive's responsibilities as the Accounting Officer of the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS 
Foundation Trust

The National Health Service Act 2006 (NHS Act 2006) states that the Chief Executive is the Accounting Officer of the NHS
Foundation Trust. The relevant responsibilities of the Accounting Officer, including their responsibility for the propriety and
regularity of public finances for which they are answerable, and for the keeping of proper accounts, are set out in the NHS
Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum issued by NHS Improvement.  

NHS Improvement, in exercise of the powers conferred on Monitor by the NHS Act 2006, has given Accounts Direction which
require the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust to prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the form
and on the basis required by those Directions. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust and of its income and expenditure, items of
comprehensive income and cash flows for the financial year.

In preparing the accounts, and overseeing the use of public funds, the Accounting Officer is required to comply with the
requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual and in particular to:

confirm that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for patients, regulators and stakeholders to assess the NHS Foundation Trust's performance, business
model and strategy; and

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in the NHS Foundation Trust
Accounting Officer Memorandum.

make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;

prepare financial statements on a going concern basis and disclose any material uncertainties over going concern.

ensure that the use of public funds complies with the relevant legislation, delegated authorities and guidance;

As far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Foundation Trust’s auditors are unaware, and I have taken
all the steps that I ought to have taken to make myself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the entity’s
auditors are aware of that information.
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

1. Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of Royal
Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust (“the
Trust”) for the year ended 31 March 2020 which
comprise the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statement
of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows,
and the related notes, including the accounting
policies in note 1.

In our opinion: 

— the financial statements give a true and fair 
view of the state of the Trust’s affairs as at 31 
March 2020 and of its income and expenditure 
for the year then ended; and

— the Trust’s financial statements have been 
properly prepared in accordance with the 
Accounts Direction issued under paragraphs 24 
and 25 of Schedule 7 of the National Health 
Service Act 2006, the NHS Foundation Trust 
Annual Reporting Manual 2019/20 and the 
Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) 
Group Accounting Manual 2019/20.

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs 
(UK)”) and applicable law. Our responsibilities are 
described below. We have fulfilled our ethical 
responsibilities under, and are independent of the 
Trust in accordance with, UK ethical requirements 
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient 
and appropriate basis for our opinion. 

Independent auditor’s 
report

to the Council of Governors of Royal Devon and Exeter 
NHS Foundation Trust 

Overview

Materiality: 
financial statements 
as a whole

£11 million (2019:£10.5 
million)

1.9% of Operating 
Income (2019: 2%)

Risks of material misstatement vs 2019

Recurring risks Valuation of Land and 
Buildings

◄►

Recognition of NHS 
and non-NHS Income

◄►

Recognition of Non-
Pay and Non-
Depreciation 
Expenditure

◄►

Key

◄► Risk level unchanged from prior year
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2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by
us, including those which had the greatest effect on:the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and
directing the efforts of the engagement team. We summarise below, the key audit matters, in decreasing order of audit
significance, in arriving at our audit opinion above together with our key audit procedures to address those matters and our
findings from those procedures in order that the Trust’s governors as a body may better understand the process by which we
arrived at our audit opinion . These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In arriving at our audit opinion
above, the key audit matters, in decreasing order of audit significance, were as follows:

. 

The risk Our response

Valuation of Land 
and Buildings

(£176.3 million; 
2019: £195.3
million)

Refer to page 99 
(Annual Report -
Audit Committee 
Report), page 19 
(accounting policy) 
and page 32 
(financial 
disclosures).

Subjective valuation

Land and buildings are required to be held at current 
value. As hospital buildings are specialised assets and 
there is not an active market for them they are usually 
valued on the basis of the cost to replace them with an 
equivalent asset.

When considering the cost to build a replacement 
asset the Trust may consider whether the asset would 
be built to the same specification or in the same 
location. Assumptions about changes to the asset 
must be realistic. 

Valuations are completed by an external expert, 
engaged by the Trust using construction indices and so 
accurate records of the current estate are required. Full 
valuations are completed every five years, with interim 
desktop valuations completed in interim periods. 

The Trust last had a desktop valuation undertaken at 31 
March 2017 by an external valuer.  Between valuations 
the Trust carries out an annual review to determine 
whether there are indications of impairment of assets 
due to reductions in market value, the clear 
consumption of economic benefits or a reduction in 
service potential. 

At 31 March 2020, the Trust completed an full
valuation of the estate, using an external valuer 
resulting in a £21.2 million decrease in the value of 
land and buildings.

The effect of these matters is that, as part of our risk 
assessment, we determined that the valuation of land 
and buildings has a high degree of estimation 
uncertainty, with a potential range of reasonable 
outcomes greater than our materiality for the financial 
statements as a whole.

Disclosure of Sensitivity 

There is a material uncertainty clause within the 
valuation report due to the impact of Covid-19.   
Appropriate disclosure will be required to note the 
sensitivity of the valuation to the estimates and 
judgements applied in the market based valuation of 
land and buildings.  The financial statements (note 
16.3) disclose the sensitivity estimated by the Trust.

Accounting treatment

Consideration is also required as to whether 
revaluation gains and impairment losses are processed 
through other operating income/expense, or 
recognised in other comprehensive income. This 
treatment could have significant impact on the 
reported deficit for the year.

Our procedures included:

— Assessing valuer's credentials: We 
considered the scope, qualifications and 
experience of the valuer, to identify whether 
the valuer was appropriately experienced and 
qualified to provide relevant indices;

— Methodology choice: We considered the  
overall methodology of the external  valuation 
performed to identify whether the approach 
was in line with industry practice, assisted by 
our Estate Valuation specialist;

— Benchmarking assumptions: We critically 
assessed the assumptions used within the
valuation by assessing the assumptions used 
to derive the carrying value of assets against 
BCIS all in tender price index and industry 
norms and utilising our Estate Valuation 
specialist;

— Test of details: We undertook the following 
tests of details:

— We tested the completeness of the 
estate covered by the valuation to the 
Trust’s underlying estate records, 
including additions to land and buildings 
during the year;

— We re-performed the calculation of gain or 
loss on revaluation for all applicable assets 
and checked whether the accounting 
entries were consistent with the DHSC 
Group Accounting Manual; and

— For a sample of assets added during the 
year we agreed that an appropriate 
valuation basis had been adopted when 
they became operational and that the 
Trust would receive future benefits.

— Assessing transparency: We assessed the 
completeness and accuracy of the matters 
covered in the valuations disclosure, including 
the Trust’s disclosures of the sensitivity of 
the valuation uncertainties related to COVID-
19. 

Our findings

We found the accounting treatment and  
resulting valuation of land and buildings to be 
balanced (2019: balanced). 

We found the disclosure of the sensitivities in 
relation to COVID-19 to be proportionate.
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2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

. 

The risk Our response

Recognition of NHS and non-
NHS income

(£565.7 million; 2019: £534.5 
million)

Refer to page 100 (Annual Report -
Audit Committee Report), page 10 
(accounting policy) and page 25 
(financial disclosures).

Effects of Irregularities

Of the Trusts reported total income, 
£465.7 million (2019: £426.4 million) 
came from commissioners (Clinical 
Commissioning Trusts (CCG), other NHS 
Bodies and NHS England). Income from 
CCGs, other NHS Bodies and NHS 
England make up 82% of the Trust’s 
income. The majority of this income is 
contracted on an annual basis, however 
actual income is based on completing 
actual levels of activity completed during 
the year.  

An agreement of balances exercise is 
undertaken between all NHS bodies to 
agree the value of transactions during 
the year and the amounts owed at the 
year end. ‘Mismatch’ reports are 
produced setting out discrepancies 
between the submitted balances and 
transactions between each party, with 
variances over £300,000 being required 
to be reported to the National Audit 
Office to inform the audit of the DHSC 
consolidated accounts.

The Trust reported total other income of 
£97 million (2019: £104.8 million) from 
other activities principally, research and 
development income, private patient 
income and education and training. 
Much of this income is generated by 
contracts with other NHS and non-NHS 
bodies which are based on achieving 
financial targets, varied payment terms, 
including payment on delivery, 
milestone payments and periodic 
payments. The amount also includes 
£6.6 million (2019: £22.6 million) 
Provider Sustainability Funding/Marginal 
rate emergency tariff funding  received 
from NHS Improvement. This is 
received subject to achieving defined 
financial and operational targets on a 
quarterly basis. 

As such there is a fraudulent risk of 
revenue recognition over both NHS and 
Non-NHS income. 

Our procedures included: 

— Control observations: We tested the 
design and operation of process level 
controls over revenue recognition;

— Test of details: We undertook the following 
tests of details:

— We agreed commissioner income to the 
signed contracts and selected a sample 
of the largest balances (comprising 96%
of income from patient care activities) to 
the supporting invoice and payments to 
the bank receipts;

— We inspected invoices for material 
income in the month prior to and 
following 31 March 2020 to determine 
whether income was recognised in the 
correct accounting period, in accordance 
with the amounts billed to corresponding 
parties;

— We inspected confirmations of balances 
provided by the DHSC as part of the AoB 
exercise and compared the relevant 
income recorded in the Trust’s financial 
statements to the expenditure balances 
recorded within the accounts of 
Commissioners. Where applicable, we 
investigated variances and reviewed 
relevant correspondence to assess the 
reasonableness of the Trust’s approach 
to recognising income;

— We assessed the judgements made to 
received the transformation funding 
recorded in the financial statements as 
part of the Trust’s performance against 
the required targets to confirm eligibility 
for the income and agreed bonus 
amounts to correspondence from NHSI; 
and

— We tested material other income 
balances by agreeing a sample of 
income transactions through to 
supporting documentation and/or cash 
receipts.

Our findings 

We found the resulting recognition of NHS and 
non-NHS income to be balanced (2019: 
balanced).
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2. Our assessment of risks of materialmisstatement

In arriving at our audit opinion above on the financial statements, the risks of material misstatement that had the greatest 
effect on our audit, in decreasing order of audit significance, were as follows:
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The risk Our response

Land and 
Buildings

(£184.1 million; 
2015/16: £181.1
million)

Refer to page 13 
(accounting 
policy) and page 
29 (financial 
disclosures).

Valuation of land and buildings:

Land and buildings are initially recognised at cost, but 
subsequently are recognised at current value in existing 
use (EUV). For non-specialised property assets in 
operational use EUV is market value in existing use.
Specialised assets where no market value is readily 
ascertainable, are recognised at the depreciated 
replacement cost (DRC) of a modern equivalent asset 
that has the same service potential as the existing 
property. A review is carried out each year to test 
assets for potential impairment and a full valuation is 
carried out every five years.

There is significant judgment involved in determining 
the appropriate basis (market value in existing use or 
DRC) for each asset according to its degree of 
specialisation, as well as over the assumptions made in 
arriving at the valuation of the asset. In particular the 
DRC basis of valuation requires an assumption as to 
whether the replacement asset would be situated on 
the existing site or, if more appropriate, on an 
alternative site.
Valuation is carried out by an external expert engaged 
by the Trust using construction indices and so accurate 
records of the current estate are required. Full 
valuations are completed every five years, with interim 
desktop valuations completed in interim periods.
Valuations are inherently judgmental, therefore our work 
focused on whether the valuer's methodology, 
assumptions and underlying data, are appropriate and 
correctly applied.

The Trust had a full valuation undertaken at 31 March
2017 resulting in a £9.8m increase in the value of the
land and buildings.

Our procedures included:

— Assessment of the external valuer: We 
assessed the competence, capability, 
objectivity and independence of the valuer 
and the overall methodology of the 
valuation to identify whether the approach 
was in line with industry practice and the 
valuer was appropriately experienced and 
qualified. We used our own specialist to 
verify the methodology and assess the 
conclusions in the final report.

— Agreement of underlying asset records: 
We compared the base data provided to the 
valuer against the Trust’s property register 
to ensure it agreed to the Trust estate;

— Consideration of valuation assumptions: 
We critically assessed the assumptions 
used in preparing the valuation by 
considering them against indices produced 
by Gerald Eve (International Property 
Consultants) and industry norms;

— Impairment review: We considered how 
the Group had assessed the need for an 
impairment across its asset base either due 
to a loss of value or reductions in future
service potent ia l ;

— Additions to assets: For a sample of 
assets added during the year we agreed 
that an appropriate valuation basis had been 
adopted when they became operational and 
that the Trust would benefit from future 
service potential.
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2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by
us, including those which had the greatest effect on:the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and
directing the efforts of the engagement team. We summarise below, the key audit matters, in decreasing order of audit
significance, in arriving at our audit opinion above together with our key audit procedures to address those matters and our
findings from those procedures in order that the Trust’s governors as a body may better understand the process by which we
arrived at our audit opinion . These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In arriving at our audit opinion
above, the key audit matters, in decreasing order of audit significance, were as follows:

. 

The risk Our response

Valuation of Land 
and Buildings

(£176.3 million; 
2019: £195.3
million)

Refer to page 99 
(Annual Report -
Audit Committee 
Report), page 19 
(accounting policy) 
and page 32 
(financial 
disclosures).

Subjective valuation

Land and buildings are required to be held at current 
value. As hospital buildings are specialised assets and 
there is not an active market for them they are usually 
valued on the basis of the cost to replace them with an 
equivalent asset.

When considering the cost to build a replacement 
asset the Trust may consider whether the asset would 
be built to the same specification or in the same 
location. Assumptions about changes to the asset 
must be realistic. 

Valuations are completed by an external expert, 
engaged by the Trust using construction indices and so 
accurate records of the current estate are required. Full 
valuations are completed every five years, with interim 
desktop valuations completed in interim periods. 

The Trust last had a desktop valuation undertaken at 31 
March 2017 by an external valuer.  Between valuations 
the Trust carries out an annual review to determine 
whether there are indications of impairment of assets 
due to reductions in market value, the clear 
consumption of economic benefits or a reduction in 
service potential. 

At 31 March 2020, the Trust completed an full
valuation of the estate, using an external valuer 
resulting in a £21.2 million decrease in the value of 
land and buildings.

The effect of these matters is that, as part of our risk 
assessment, we determined that the valuation of land 
and buildings has a high degree of estimation 
uncertainty, with a potential range of reasonable 
outcomes greater than our materiality for the financial 
statements as a whole.

Disclosure of Sensitivity 

There is a material uncertainty clause within the 
valuation report due to the impact of Covid-19.   
Appropriate disclosure will be required to note the 
sensitivity of the valuation to the estimates and 
judgements applied in the market based valuation of 
land and buildings.  The financial statements (note 
16.3) disclose the sensitivity estimated by the Trust.

Accounting treatment

Consideration is also required as to whether 
revaluation gains and impairment losses are processed 
through other operating income/expense, or 
recognised in other comprehensive income. This 
treatment could have significant impact on the 
reported deficit for the year.

Our procedures included:

— Assessing valuer's credentials: We 
considered the scope, qualifications and 
experience of the valuer, to identify whether 
the valuer was appropriately experienced and 
qualified to provide relevant indices;

— Methodology choice: We considered the  
overall methodology of the external  valuation 
performed to identify whether the approach 
was in line with industry practice, assisted by 
our Estate Valuation specialist;

— Benchmarking assumptions: We critically 
assessed the assumptions used within the
valuation by assessing the assumptions used 
to derive the carrying value of assets against 
BCIS all in tender price index and industry 
norms and utilising our Estate Valuation 
specialist;

— Test of details: We undertook the following 
tests of details:

— We tested the completeness of the 
estate covered by the valuation to the 
Trust’s underlying estate records, 
including additions to land and buildings 
during the year;

— We re-performed the calculation of gain or 
loss on revaluation for all applicable assets 
and checked whether the accounting 
entries were consistent with the DHSC 
Group Accounting Manual; and

— For a sample of assets added during the 
year we agreed that an appropriate 
valuation basis had been adopted when 
they became operational and that the 
Trust would receive future benefits.

— Assessing transparency: We assessed the 
completeness and accuracy of the matters 
covered in the valuations disclosure, including 
the Trust’s disclosures of the sensitivity of 
the valuation uncertainties related to COVID-
19. 

Our findings

We found the accounting treatment and  
resulting valuation of land and buildings to be 
balanced (2019: balanced). 

We found the disclosure of the sensitivities in 
relation to COVID-19 to be proportionate.
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2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

. 

The risk Our response

Recognition of NHS and non-
NHS income

(£565.7 million; 2019: £534.5 
million)

Refer to page 100 (Annual Report -
Audit Committee Report), page 10 
(accounting policy) and page 25 
(financial disclosures).

Effects of Irregularities

Of the Trusts reported total income, 
£465.7 million (2019: £426.4 million) 
came from commissioners (Clinical 
Commissioning Trusts (CCG), other NHS 
Bodies and NHS England). Income from 
CCGs, other NHS Bodies and NHS 
England make up 82% of the Trust’s 
income. The majority of this income is 
contracted on an annual basis, however 
actual income is based on completing 
actual levels of activity completed during 
the year.  

An agreement of balances exercise is 
undertaken between all NHS bodies to 
agree the value of transactions during 
the year and the amounts owed at the 
year end. ‘Mismatch’ reports are 
produced setting out discrepancies 
between the submitted balances and 
transactions between each party, with 
variances over £300,000 being required 
to be reported to the National Audit 
Office to inform the audit of the DHSC 
consolidated accounts.

The Trust reported total other income of 
£97 million (2019: £104.8 million) from 
other activities principally, research and 
development income, private patient 
income and education and training. 
Much of this income is generated by 
contracts with other NHS and non-NHS 
bodies which are based on achieving 
financial targets, varied payment terms, 
including payment on delivery, 
milestone payments and periodic 
payments. The amount also includes 
£6.6 million (2019: £22.6 million) 
Provider Sustainability Funding/Marginal 
rate emergency tariff funding  received 
from NHS Improvement. This is 
received subject to achieving defined 
financial and operational targets on a 
quarterly basis. 

As such there is a fraudulent risk of 
revenue recognition over both NHS and 
Non-NHS income. 

Our procedures included: 

— Control observations: We tested the 
design and operation of process level 
controls over revenue recognition;

— Test of details: We undertook the following 
tests of details:

— We agreed commissioner income to the 
signed contracts and selected a sample 
of the largest balances (comprising 96%
of income from patient care activities) to 
the supporting invoice and payments to 
the bank receipts;

— We inspected invoices for material 
income in the month prior to and 
following 31 March 2020 to determine 
whether income was recognised in the 
correct accounting period, in accordance 
with the amounts billed to corresponding 
parties;

— We inspected confirmations of balances 
provided by the DHSC as part of the AoB 
exercise and compared the relevant 
income recorded in the Trust’s financial 
statements to the expenditure balances 
recorded within the accounts of 
Commissioners. Where applicable, we 
investigated variances and reviewed 
relevant correspondence to assess the 
reasonableness of the Trust’s approach 
to recognising income;

— We assessed the judgements made to 
received the transformation funding 
recorded in the financial statements as 
part of the Trust’s performance against 
the required targets to confirm eligibility 
for the income and agreed bonus 
amounts to correspondence from NHSI; 
and

— We tested material other income 
balances by agreeing a sample of 
income transactions through to 
supporting documentation and/or cash 
receipts.

Our findings 

We found the resulting recognition of NHS and 
non-NHS income to be balanced (2019: 
balanced).
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2. Our assessment of risks of materialmisstatement

In arriving at our audit opinion above on the financial statements, the risks of material misstatement that had the greatest 
effect on our audit, in decreasing order of audit significance, were as follows:
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The risk Our response

Land and 
Buildings

(£184.1 million; 
2015/16: £181.1
million)

Refer to page 13 
(accounting 
policy) and page 
29 (financial 
disclosures).

Valuation of land and buildings:

Land and buildings are initially recognised at cost, but 
subsequently are recognised at current value in existing 
use (EUV). For non-specialised property assets in 
operational use EUV is market value in existing use.
Specialised assets where no market value is readily 
ascertainable, are recognised at the depreciated 
replacement cost (DRC) of a modern equivalent asset 
that has the same service potential as the existing 
property. A review is carried out each year to test 
assets for potential impairment and a full valuation is 
carried out every five years.

There is significant judgment involved in determining 
the appropriate basis (market value in existing use or 
DRC) for each asset according to its degree of 
specialisation, as well as over the assumptions made in 
arriving at the valuation of the asset. In particular the 
DRC basis of valuation requires an assumption as to 
whether the replacement asset would be situated on 
the existing site or, if more appropriate, on an 
alternative site.
Valuation is carried out by an external expert engaged 
by the Trust using construction indices and so accurate 
records of the current estate are required. Full 
valuations are completed every five years, with interim 
desktop valuations completed in interim periods.
Valuations are inherently judgmental, therefore our work 
focused on whether the valuer's methodology, 
assumptions and underlying data, are appropriate and 
correctly applied.

The Trust had a full valuation undertaken at 31 March
2017 resulting in a £9.8m increase in the value of the
land and buildings.

Our procedures included:

— Assessment of the external valuer: We 
assessed the competence, capability, 
objectivity and independence of the valuer 
and the overall methodology of the 
valuation to identify whether the approach 
was in line with industry practice and the 
valuer was appropriately experienced and 
qualified. We used our own specialist to 
verify the methodology and assess the 
conclusions in the final report.

— Agreement of underlying asset records: 
We compared the base data provided to the 
valuer against the Trust’s property register 
to ensure it agreed to the Trust estate;

— Consideration of valuation assumptions: 
We critically assessed the assumptions 
used in preparing the valuation by 
considering them against indices produced 
by Gerald Eve (International Property 
Consultants) and industry norms;

— Impairment review: We considered how 
the Group had assessed the need for an 
impairment across its asset base either due 
to a loss of value or reductions in future
service potent ia l ;

— Additions to assets: For a sample of 
assets added during the year we agreed 
that an appropriate valuation basis had been 
adopted when they became operational and 
that the Trust would benefit from future 
service potential.
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2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

. 

The risk Our response

Recognition of Non-Pay and 
Non-Depreciation Expenditure

(£194.4million; 2019: £179.4 
million)

Refer to page 100 (Annual Report -
Audit Committee Report), page 17 
(accounting policy) and page 26 
(financial disclosures).

Effects of Irregularities:

As most public bodies are net spending 
bodies, then the risk of material 
misstatement due to fraud related to 
expenditure recognition may be greater 
than the risk of fraud related to revenue 
recognition. There is a risk that the Trust 
may manipulate expenditure to meet 
externally set targets and we had regard 
to this when planning and performing 
our audit procedures. 

The incentives for fraudulent 
expenditure recognition relate to 
achieving financial targets and the key 
risks relate to the manipulation of 
recognition of non-pay expenditure at 
the year-end. 

There may therefore be an incentive to 
defer non-pay expenditure or recognise 
commitments at a reduced value in 
order to achieve financial targets. 

Our procedures included: 

— Control observations: We tested the 
design and operation of process level 
controls over expenditure approval;

— Test of details: We undertook the following 
tests of details:

— We agreed a specific item sample of non 
pay expenditure transactions to 
supporting evidence and cash;

— We inspected invoices for material 
expenditure in the month prior to and 
following 31 March 2020 to determine 
whether expenditure was recognised in 
the correct accounting period relevant to 
when services were delivered;

— We assessed the completeness and 
judgements made within the 
expenditure balance, specifically accrued 
expenditure, through comparison to 
historical performance; and

— We inspected confirmations of balances 
provided by the DHSC as part of the AoB 
exercise and compared the relevant 
payables recorded in the Trust’s financial 
statements to the receivables balances 
recorded within the accounts of other 
providers and other bodies within the 
AoB boundary. Where applicable, we 
investigated variances and reviewed 
relevant correspondence to assess the 
reasonableness of the Trust’s approach 
to recognising expenditure with other 
providers and other bodies within the 
AoB boundary.

Our findings 

We found the resulting recognition of non-
pay expenditure to be balanced (2019: 
balanced).
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3. Our application of materiality

Materiality for the Trust financial statements as a whole was
set at £11million (2019: £10.5 million), determined with
reference to a benchmark of operating income (of which it
represents approximately 1.9% (2019: 2%)). We consider
operating income to be more stable than a surplus- or deficit-
related benchmark.

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any corrected
and uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding £0.3
million (2019:(£0.3 million), in addition to other identified
misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative
grounds.

Our audit of the Trust was undertaken to the materiality level
specified above and was all performed at the Trust’s
headquarters in Exeter, Devon.

£11 million
Whole financial
statements
materiality
(2019: £10.5 
million)

£0.3 million
Misstatements
reported to the 
audit committee 
(2019: £0.3 million)

Operating Income
£565.7 million (2019: 

£534.5 million)

Operating Income
Materiality

Materiality

In our evaluation of the Accounting Officer’s conclusions, 
we considered the inherent risks to the Trust’s business 
model, and analysed how those risks might affect the 
Trust’s financial resources or ability to continue operations 
over the going concern period.  We evaluated those risks 
and concluded that they were not significant enough to 
require us to perform additional audit procedures.

Based on this work, we are required to report to you if we 
have anything material to add or draw attention to in 
relation to the Accounting Officers statement on page 2 on 
the use of the going concern basis of accounting with no 
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt over 
the Trust’s use of that basis for a period of at least twelve 
months from the date of approval of the financial 
statements.

We have nothing to report in these respects, and we did 
not identify going concern as a key audit matter.

5. We have nothing to report on the other information in
the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information
presented in the Annual Report together with the financial
statements. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated
below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether, based on our financial
statements audit work, the information therein is materially
misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or
our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we have
not identified material misstatements in the other
information.

In our opinion the other information included in the Annual
Report for the financial year is consistent with the financial
statements

Remuneration report

In our opinion the part of the remuneration report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2019/20.

Corporate governance disclosures

We are required to report to you if:

— we have identified material inconsistencies between the
knowledge we acquired during our financial statements 
audit and the directors’ statement that they consider 
that the annual report and financial statements taken as 
a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and 
provides the information necessary for stakeholders to 
assess the Trust’s position and performance, business 
model and strategy; or 

— the section of the annual report describing the work of 
the Audit Committee does not appropriately address 
matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee; 
or

— the Annual Governance Statement does not reflect the 
disclosure requirements set out in the NHS Foundation 
Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2019/20, is misleading 
or is not consistent with our knowledge of the Trust and 
other information of which we are aware from our audit 
of the financial statements.

We have nothing to report in these respects. 

4. We have nothing to report on going concern

The Accounting Officer has prepared the financial 
statements on the going concern basis as they have not 
been informed by the relevant national body of the 
intention to dissolve the Trust without the transfer of its 
services to another public sector entity. They have also 
concluded that there are no material uncertainties that 
could have cast significant doubt over their ability to 
continue as a going concern for at least a year from the 
date of approval of the financial statements (“the going 
concern period”).  

Our responsibility is to conclude on the appropriateness of 
the Accounting Officer’s conclusions and, had there been 
a material uncertainty related to going concern, to make 
reference to that in this audit report. However, as we 
cannot predict all future events or conditions and as 
subsequent events may result in outcomes that are 
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the 
time they were made, the absence of reference to a 
material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a 
guarantee that the Trust will continue in operation.
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2. Our assessment of risks of materialmisstatement

In arriving at our audit opinion above on the financial statements, the risks of material misstatement that had the greatest 
effect on our audit, in decreasing order of audit significance, were as follows:
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The risk Our response

Land and 
Buildings

(£184.1 million; 
2015/16: £181.1
million)

Refer to page 13 
(accounting 
policy) and page 
29 (financial 
disclosures).

Valuation of land and buildings:

Land and buildings are initially recognised at cost, but 
subsequently are recognised at current value in existing 
use (EUV). For non-specialised property assets in 
operational use EUV is market value in existing use.
Specialised assets where no market value is readily 
ascertainable, are recognised at the depreciated 
replacement cost (DRC) of a modern equivalent asset 
that has the same service potential as the existing 
property. A review is carried out each year to test 
assets for potential impairment and a full valuation is 
carried out every five years.

There is significant judgment involved in determining 
the appropriate basis (market value in existing use or 
DRC) for each asset according to its degree of 
specialisation, as well as over the assumptions made in 
arriving at the valuation of the asset. In particular the 
DRC basis of valuation requires an assumption as to 
whether the replacement asset would be situated on 
the existing site or, if more appropriate, on an 
alternative site.
Valuation is carried out by an external expert engaged 
by the Trust using construction indices and so accurate 
records of the current estate are required. Full 
valuations are completed every five years, with interim 
desktop valuations completed in interim periods.
Valuations are inherently judgmental, therefore our work 
focused on whether the valuer's methodology, 
assumptions and underlying data, are appropriate and 
correctly applied.

The Trust had a full valuation undertaken at 31 March
2017 resulting in a £9.8m increase in the value of the
land and buildings.

Our procedures included:

— Assessment of the external valuer: We 
assessed the competence, capability, 
objectivity and independence of the valuer 
and the overall methodology of the 
valuation to identify whether the approach 
was in line with industry practice and the 
valuer was appropriately experienced and 
qualified. We used our own specialist to 
verify the methodology and assess the 
conclusions in the final report.

— Agreement of underlying asset records: 
We compared the base data provided to the 
valuer against the Trust’s property register 
to ensure it agreed to the Trust estate;

— Consideration of valuation assumptions: 
We critically assessed the assumptions 
used in preparing the valuation by 
considering them against indices produced 
by Gerald Eve (International Property 
Consultants) and industry norms;

— Impairment review: We considered how 
the Group had assessed the need for an 
impairment across its asset base either due 
to a loss of value or reductions in future
service potent ia l ;

— Additions to assets: For a sample of 
assets added during the year we agreed 
that an appropriate valuation basis had been 
adopted when they became operational and 
that the Trust would benefit from future 
service potential.
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2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

. 

The risk Our response

Recognition of Non-Pay and 
Non-Depreciation Expenditure

(£194.4million; 2019: £179.4 
million)

Refer to page 100 (Annual Report -
Audit Committee Report), page 17 
(accounting policy) and page 26 
(financial disclosures).

Effects of Irregularities:

As most public bodies are net spending 
bodies, then the risk of material 
misstatement due to fraud related to 
expenditure recognition may be greater 
than the risk of fraud related to revenue 
recognition. There is a risk that the Trust 
may manipulate expenditure to meet 
externally set targets and we had regard 
to this when planning and performing 
our audit procedures. 

The incentives for fraudulent 
expenditure recognition relate to 
achieving financial targets and the key 
risks relate to the manipulation of 
recognition of non-pay expenditure at 
the year-end. 

There may therefore be an incentive to 
defer non-pay expenditure or recognise 
commitments at a reduced value in 
order to achieve financial targets. 

Our procedures included: 

— Control observations: We tested the 
design and operation of process level 
controls over expenditure approval;

— Test of details: We undertook the following 
tests of details:

— We agreed a specific item sample of non 
pay expenditure transactions to 
supporting evidence and cash;

— We inspected invoices for material 
expenditure in the month prior to and 
following 31 March 2020 to determine 
whether expenditure was recognised in 
the correct accounting period relevant to 
when services were delivered;

— We assessed the completeness and 
judgements made within the 
expenditure balance, specifically accrued 
expenditure, through comparison to 
historical performance; and

— We inspected confirmations of balances 
provided by the DHSC as part of the AoB 
exercise and compared the relevant 
payables recorded in the Trust’s financial 
statements to the receivables balances 
recorded within the accounts of other 
providers and other bodies within the 
AoB boundary. Where applicable, we 
investigated variances and reviewed 
relevant correspondence to assess the 
reasonableness of the Trust’s approach 
to recognising expenditure with other 
providers and other bodies within the 
AoB boundary.

Our findings 

We found the resulting recognition of non-
pay expenditure to be balanced (2019: 
balanced).
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3. Our application of materiality

Materiality for the Trust financial statements as a whole was
set at £11million (2019: £10.5 million), determined with
reference to a benchmark of operating income (of which it
represents approximately 1.9% (2019: 2%)). We consider
operating income to be more stable than a surplus- or deficit-
related benchmark.

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any corrected
and uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding £0.3
million (2019:(£0.3 million), in addition to other identified
misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative
grounds.

Our audit of the Trust was undertaken to the materiality level
specified above and was all performed at the Trust’s
headquarters in Exeter, Devon.

£11 million
Whole financial
statements
materiality
(2019: £10.5 
million)

£0.3 million
Misstatements
reported to the 
audit committee 
(2019: £0.3 million)

Operating Income
£565.7 million (2019: 

£534.5 million)

Operating Income
Materiality

Materiality

In our evaluation of the Accounting Officer’s conclusions, 
we considered the inherent risks to the Trust’s business 
model, and analysed how those risks might affect the 
Trust’s financial resources or ability to continue operations 
over the going concern period.  We evaluated those risks 
and concluded that they were not significant enough to 
require us to perform additional audit procedures.

Based on this work, we are required to report to you if we 
have anything material to add or draw attention to in 
relation to the Accounting Officers statement on page 2 on 
the use of the going concern basis of accounting with no 
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt over 
the Trust’s use of that basis for a period of at least twelve 
months from the date of approval of the financial 
statements.

We have nothing to report in these respects, and we did 
not identify going concern as a key audit matter.

5. We have nothing to report on the other information in
the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information
presented in the Annual Report together with the financial
statements. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated
below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether, based on our financial
statements audit work, the information therein is materially
misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or
our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we have
not identified material misstatements in the other
information.

In our opinion the other information included in the Annual
Report for the financial year is consistent with the financial
statements

Remuneration report

In our opinion the part of the remuneration report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2019/20.

Corporate governance disclosures

We are required to report to you if:

— we have identified material inconsistencies between the
knowledge we acquired during our financial statements 
audit and the directors’ statement that they consider 
that the annual report and financial statements taken as 
a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and 
provides the information necessary for stakeholders to 
assess the Trust’s position and performance, business 
model and strategy; or 

— the section of the annual report describing the work of 
the Audit Committee does not appropriately address 
matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee; 
or

— the Annual Governance Statement does not reflect the 
disclosure requirements set out in the NHS Foundation 
Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2019/20, is misleading 
or is not consistent with our knowledge of the Trust and 
other information of which we are aware from our audit 
of the financial statements.

We have nothing to report in these respects. 

4. We have nothing to report on going concern

The Accounting Officer has prepared the financial 
statements on the going concern basis as they have not 
been informed by the relevant national body of the 
intention to dissolve the Trust without the transfer of its 
services to another public sector entity. They have also 
concluded that there are no material uncertainties that 
could have cast significant doubt over their ability to 
continue as a going concern for at least a year from the 
date of approval of the financial statements (“the going 
concern period”).  

Our responsibility is to conclude on the appropriateness of 
the Accounting Officer’s conclusions and, had there been 
a material uncertainty related to going concern, to make 
reference to that in this audit report. However, as we 
cannot predict all future events or conditions and as 
subsequent events may result in outcomes that are 
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the 
time they were made, the absence of reference to a 
material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a 
guarantee that the Trust will continue in operation.
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2. Our assessment of risks of materialmisstatement

In arriving at our audit opinion above on the financial statements, the risks of material misstatement that had the greatest 
effect on our audit, in decreasing order of audit significance, were as follows:
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The risk Our response

Land and 
Buildings

(£184.1 million; 
2015/16: £181.1
million)

Refer to page 13 
(accounting 
policy) and page 
29 (financial 
disclosures).

Valuation of land and buildings:

Land and buildings are initially recognised at cost, but 
subsequently are recognised at current value in existing 
use (EUV). For non-specialised property assets in 
operational use EUV is market value in existing use.
Specialised assets where no market value is readily 
ascertainable, are recognised at the depreciated 
replacement cost (DRC) of a modern equivalent asset 
that has the same service potential as the existing 
property. A review is carried out each year to test 
assets for potential impairment and a full valuation is 
carried out every five years.

There is significant judgment involved in determining 
the appropriate basis (market value in existing use or 
DRC) for each asset according to its degree of 
specialisation, as well as over the assumptions made in 
arriving at the valuation of the asset. In particular the 
DRC basis of valuation requires an assumption as to 
whether the replacement asset would be situated on 
the existing site or, if more appropriate, on an 
alternative site.
Valuation is carried out by an external expert engaged 
by the Trust using construction indices and so accurate 
records of the current estate are required. Full 
valuations are completed every five years, with interim 
desktop valuations completed in interim periods.
Valuations are inherently judgmental, therefore our work 
focused on whether the valuer's methodology, 
assumptions and underlying data, are appropriate and 
correctly applied.

The Trust had a full valuation undertaken at 31 March
2017 resulting in a £9.8m increase in the value of the
land and buildings.

Our procedures included:

— Assessment of the external valuer: We 
assessed the competence, capability, 
objectivity and independence of the valuer 
and the overall methodology of the 
valuation to identify whether the approach 
was in line with industry practice and the 
valuer was appropriately experienced and 
qualified. We used our own specialist to 
verify the methodology and assess the 
conclusions in the final report.

— Agreement of underlying asset records: 
We compared the base data provided to the 
valuer against the Trust’s property register 
to ensure it agreed to the Trust estate;

— Consideration of valuation assumptions: 
We critically assessed the assumptions 
used in preparing the valuation by 
considering them against indices produced 
by Gerald Eve (International Property 
Consultants) and industry norms;

— Impairment review: We considered how 
the Group had assessed the need for an 
impairment across its asset base either due 
to a loss of value or reductions in future
service potent ia l ;

— Additions to assets: For a sample of 
assets added during the year we agreed 
that an appropriate valuation basis had been 
adopted when they became operational and 
that the Trust would benefit from future 
service potential.
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6. Respective responsibilities

Accounting Officer’s responsibilities

As explained more fully in the statement set out on page 2,
the Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view. They are
also responsible for: such internal control as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Trust’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless they have been
informed by the relevant national body of the intention to
dissolve the Trust without the transfer of its services to
another public sector entity.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the
FRC’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
MATTERS

We have nothing to report on the statutory reporting 
matters  

We are required by Schedule 2 to the Code of Audit 
Practice issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General (‘the 
Code of Audit Practice’)  to report to you if:

— any reports to the regulator have been made under 
Schedule 10(6) of the National Health Service Act 2006.

— any matters have been reported in the public interest 
under Schedule 10(3) of the National Health Service Act 
2006 in the course of, or at the end of the audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

We have nothing to report in respect of our work on 
the Trust’s arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources 

Under the Code of Audit Practice we are required to report 
to you if the Trust has not made proper arrangement for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 
of resources.

We have nothing to report in this respect.

Respective responsibilities in respect of our review of 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources  

The Trust is responsible for putting in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources 

Under Section 62(1) and Schedule 10 paragraph 1(d), of the 
National Health Service Act 2006 we have a duty to satisfy 
ourselves that the Trust has made proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 
of resources .

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, 
whether all aspects of the Trust’s arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 
of resources are operating effectively. 

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the 
Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the specified 
criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General 
(C&AG) in November 2017, as to whether the Trust had 
proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and 
sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. We 
planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit 
Practice and related guidance. Based on our risk 
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered 
necessary. 

Report on our review of the adequacy of arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 
of resources   

We are required by guidance issued by the C&AG under 
Paragraph 9 of Schedule 6 to the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 to report on how our work 
addressed any identified significant risks to our conclusion 
on the adequacy of the Trust’s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of 
resources. The ‘risk’ in this case is the risk that we could 
come to an incorrect conclusion in respect of the Trust’s 
arrangements, rather than the risk of the arrangements 
themselves being inadequate.

We carry out a risk assessment to determine the nature 
and extent of further work that may be required. Our risk 
assessment includes consideration of the significance of 
business and operational risks facing the Trust, insofar as 
they relate to ‘proper arrangements’. This includes sector 
and organisation level risks and draws on relevant cost and 
performance information as appropriate, as well as the 
results of reviews by inspectorates, review agencies and 
other relevant bodies.

The significant risks identified during our risk assessment 
are set out overleaf together with the findings from the 
work we carried out on each area.
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Significant Risk Description Work carried out and judgements

Financial 
Sustainability

Whilst the context of the 
financial challenges 
within the NHS is noted, 
the underlying deficit 
and stretching CIP target 
presents a significant 
risk to our assessment 
of the adequacy of 
arrangements in place at 
the Trust specifically in 
relation to planning 
finances effectively.

The Trust continues to 
operate with an 
underlying deficit.

Our work included:

— Assessing the Trust’s arrangements for managing working capital, including the 
processes for forecasting and monitoring cash flows and delivering cash 
savings.

— Considering the arrangements in place to deliver recurrent cost improvements 
by assessing the Trust CIP delivery against the planned CIP target and the use 
of recurrent and non-recurrent savings. 

— Comparing the Trust use of agency staff against the agency cap set  by NHS 
Improvement.

— Evaluating the Trust position as at 31 March 2020 against the forecast position 
and considering the future financial plans to assess the ongoing financial 
sustainability. 

Our findings on this risk area:

— When preparing the 2019/20 operational plan, Board papers confirm that the 
Board was aware that the agreed control total represented a significant 
challenge, but agreement was given on the basis that £5 million of revenue for 
the Global Digital Exemplar (GDE) project would be receivable in year, as well 
as a further £5 million as a result of an asset sale.  The Board received a ‘best 
case’, ‘most likely’ and ‘worst’ case’ projection during March 2019 as part of 
the sign off.  NHSI were made clear of these assumptions and risks as part of 
the submission and agreement.

— The Trust was informed that these significant one-off items would not be 
received during the year and therefore revised their forecast in December 2019 
back down to their ‘most likely case’ of £11 million gap to control total. This 
revised total was delivered, despite additional risk pressures arising.

— The Trust therefore delivered £13.6 million of the £22 million Cost 
Improvement target for 2019/20, of which 35% were recurrent savings. The 
Trust has risk ratings of 4 for I&E Distance from Plan, I&E Margin and Capital 
Service Cover rating, with overall rating of 3.

— The Trust continues to operate with an underlying deficit, and the 2020/21 
operational plan forecasts a deficit position of £23.7 million before non-
recurrent central funding, including circa £10m related to MyCare costs. The 
Trust has delayed the go live date of MyCare into 2020/21 and this 
transformational EPR project is expected to generate system benefits into the 
future.

— The Trust reduced its overall agency spend from £11.6m in 18/19 to £10.6m in 
19/20, although this remains higher than the agency cap of £8.7m.

— The Trust cash balance at year end was £58 million, against a planned cash 
balance of £62.4 million, with the Trust not requiring any revenue support or 
borrowings in year, or planned for 2020/21.

The significant variance to plan and underlying financial deficit of the Trust 
demonstrate challenges in the Trusts arrangements to plan its finances effectively 
to support the sustainable delivery of its strategic priorities and maintain its 
statutory functions. However the Board clearly disclosed the risks, and reliance on 
non recurrent funding in its decision to agreed the Annual Control Total and, 
despite further in-year risks, delivered the agreed ‘most likely case’. 

As a result of these matters, we were able to satisfy ourselves that the Trust had 
put in place proper arrangements to secure financial sustainability for the year 
ended 31 March 2020.
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2. Our assessment of risks of materialmisstatement

In arriving at our audit opinion above on the financial statements, the risks of material misstatement that had the greatest 
effect on our audit, in decreasing order of audit significance, were as follows:
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The risk Our response

Land and 
Buildings

(£184.1 million; 
2015/16: £181.1
million)

Refer to page 13 
(accounting 
policy) and page 
29 (financial 
disclosures).

Valuation of land and buildings:

Land and buildings are initially recognised at cost, but 
subsequently are recognised at current value in existing 
use (EUV). For non-specialised property assets in 
operational use EUV is market value in existing use.
Specialised assets where no market value is readily 
ascertainable, are recognised at the depreciated 
replacement cost (DRC) of a modern equivalent asset 
that has the same service potential as the existing 
property. A review is carried out each year to test 
assets for potential impairment and a full valuation is 
carried out every five years.

There is significant judgment involved in determining 
the appropriate basis (market value in existing use or 
DRC) for each asset according to its degree of 
specialisation, as well as over the assumptions made in 
arriving at the valuation of the asset. In particular the 
DRC basis of valuation requires an assumption as to 
whether the replacement asset would be situated on 
the existing site or, if more appropriate, on an 
alternative site.
Valuation is carried out by an external expert engaged 
by the Trust using construction indices and so accurate 
records of the current estate are required. Full 
valuations are completed every five years, with interim 
desktop valuations completed in interim periods.
Valuations are inherently judgmental, therefore our work 
focused on whether the valuer's methodology, 
assumptions and underlying data, are appropriate and 
correctly applied.

The Trust had a full valuation undertaken at 31 March
2017 resulting in a £9.8m increase in the value of the
land and buildings.

Our procedures included:

— Assessment of the external valuer: We 
assessed the competence, capability, 
objectivity and independence of the valuer 
and the overall methodology of the 
valuation to identify whether the approach 
was in line with industry practice and the 
valuer was appropriately experienced and 
qualified. We used our own specialist to 
verify the methodology and assess the 
conclusions in the final report.

— Agreement of underlying asset records: 
We compared the base data provided to the 
valuer against the Trust’s property register 
to ensure it agreed to the Trust estate;

— Consideration of valuation assumptions: 
We critically assessed the assumptions 
used in preparing the valuation by 
considering them against indices produced 
by Gerald Eve (International Property 
Consultants) and industry norms;

— Impairment review: We considered how 
the Group had assessed the need for an 
impairment across its asset base either due 
to a loss of value or reductions in future
service potent ia l ;

— Additions to assets: For a sample of 
assets added during the year we agreed 
that an appropriate valuation basis had been 
adopted when they became operational and 
that the Trust would benefit from future 
service potential.
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6. Respective responsibilities

Accounting Officer’s responsibilities

As explained more fully in the statement set out on page 2,
the Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view. They are
also responsible for: such internal control as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Trust’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless they have been
informed by the relevant national body of the intention to
dissolve the Trust without the transfer of its services to
another public sector entity.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the
FRC’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
MATTERS

We have nothing to report on the statutory reporting 
matters  

We are required by Schedule 2 to the Code of Audit 
Practice issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General (‘the 
Code of Audit Practice’)  to report to you if:

— any reports to the regulator have been made under 
Schedule 10(6) of the National Health Service Act 2006.

— any matters have been reported in the public interest 
under Schedule 10(3) of the National Health Service Act 
2006 in the course of, or at the end of the audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

We have nothing to report in respect of our work on 
the Trust’s arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources 

Under the Code of Audit Practice we are required to report 
to you if the Trust has not made proper arrangement for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 
of resources.

We have nothing to report in this respect.

Respective responsibilities in respect of our review of 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources  

The Trust is responsible for putting in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources 

Under Section 62(1) and Schedule 10 paragraph 1(d), of the 
National Health Service Act 2006 we have a duty to satisfy 
ourselves that the Trust has made proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 
of resources .

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, 
whether all aspects of the Trust’s arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 
of resources are operating effectively. 

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the 
Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the specified 
criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General 
(C&AG) in November 2017, as to whether the Trust had 
proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and 
sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. We 
planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit 
Practice and related guidance. Based on our risk 
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered 
necessary. 

Report on our review of the adequacy of arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 
of resources   

We are required by guidance issued by the C&AG under 
Paragraph 9 of Schedule 6 to the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 to report on how our work 
addressed any identified significant risks to our conclusion 
on the adequacy of the Trust’s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of 
resources. The ‘risk’ in this case is the risk that we could 
come to an incorrect conclusion in respect of the Trust’s 
arrangements, rather than the risk of the arrangements 
themselves being inadequate.

We carry out a risk assessment to determine the nature 
and extent of further work that may be required. Our risk 
assessment includes consideration of the significance of 
business and operational risks facing the Trust, insofar as 
they relate to ‘proper arrangements’. This includes sector 
and organisation level risks and draws on relevant cost and 
performance information as appropriate, as well as the 
results of reviews by inspectorates, review agencies and 
other relevant bodies.

The significant risks identified during our risk assessment 
are set out overleaf together with the findings from the 
work we carried out on each area.
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Significant Risk Description Work carried out and judgements

Financial 
Sustainability

Whilst the context of the 
financial challenges 
within the NHS is noted, 
the underlying deficit 
and stretching CIP target 
presents a significant 
risk to our assessment 
of the adequacy of 
arrangements in place at 
the Trust specifically in 
relation to planning 
finances effectively.

The Trust continues to 
operate with an 
underlying deficit.

Our work included:

— Assessing the Trust’s arrangements for managing working capital, including the 
processes for forecasting and monitoring cash flows and delivering cash 
savings.

— Considering the arrangements in place to deliver recurrent cost improvements 
by assessing the Trust CIP delivery against the planned CIP target and the use 
of recurrent and non-recurrent savings. 

— Comparing the Trust use of agency staff against the agency cap set  by NHS 
Improvement.

— Evaluating the Trust position as at 31 March 2020 against the forecast position 
and considering the future financial plans to assess the ongoing financial 
sustainability. 

Our findings on this risk area:

— When preparing the 2019/20 operational plan, Board papers confirm that the 
Board was aware that the agreed control total represented a significant 
challenge, but agreement was given on the basis that £5 million of revenue for 
the Global Digital Exemplar (GDE) project would be receivable in year, as well 
as a further £5 million as a result of an asset sale.  The Board received a ‘best 
case’, ‘most likely’ and ‘worst’ case’ projection during March 2019 as part of 
the sign off.  NHSI were made clear of these assumptions and risks as part of 
the submission and agreement.

— The Trust was informed that these significant one-off items would not be 
received during the year and therefore revised their forecast in December 2019 
back down to their ‘most likely case’ of £11 million gap to control total. This 
revised total was delivered, despite additional risk pressures arising.

— The Trust therefore delivered £13.6 million of the £22 million Cost 
Improvement target for 2019/20, of which 35% were recurrent savings. The 
Trust has risk ratings of 4 for I&E Distance from Plan, I&E Margin and Capital 
Service Cover rating, with overall rating of 3.

— The Trust continues to operate with an underlying deficit, and the 2020/21 
operational plan forecasts a deficit position of £23.7 million before non-
recurrent central funding, including circa £10m related to MyCare costs. The 
Trust has delayed the go live date of MyCare into 2020/21 and this 
transformational EPR project is expected to generate system benefits into the 
future.

— The Trust reduced its overall agency spend from £11.6m in 18/19 to £10.6m in 
19/20, although this remains higher than the agency cap of £8.7m.

— The Trust cash balance at year end was £58 million, against a planned cash 
balance of £62.4 million, with the Trust not requiring any revenue support or 
borrowings in year, or planned for 2020/21.

The significant variance to plan and underlying financial deficit of the Trust 
demonstrate challenges in the Trusts arrangements to plan its finances effectively 
to support the sustainable delivery of its strategic priorities and maintain its 
statutory functions. However the Board clearly disclosed the risks, and reliance on 
non recurrent funding in its decision to agreed the Annual Control Total and, 
despite further in-year risks, delivered the agreed ‘most likely case’. 

As a result of these matters, we were able to satisfy ourselves that the Trust had 
put in place proper arrangements to secure financial sustainability for the year 
ended 31 March 2020.
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2. Our assessment of risks of materialmisstatement

In arriving at our audit opinion above on the financial statements, the risks of material misstatement that had the greatest 
effect on our audit, in decreasing order of audit significance, were as follows:
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The risk Our response

Land and 
Buildings

(£184.1 million; 
2015/16: £181.1
million)

Refer to page 13 
(accounting 
policy) and page 
29 (financial 
disclosures).

Valuation of land and buildings:

Land and buildings are initially recognised at cost, but 
subsequently are recognised at current value in existing 
use (EUV). For non-specialised property assets in 
operational use EUV is market value in existing use.
Specialised assets where no market value is readily 
ascertainable, are recognised at the depreciated 
replacement cost (DRC) of a modern equivalent asset 
that has the same service potential as the existing 
property. A review is carried out each year to test 
assets for potential impairment and a full valuation is 
carried out every five years.

There is significant judgment involved in determining 
the appropriate basis (market value in existing use or 
DRC) for each asset according to its degree of 
specialisation, as well as over the assumptions made in 
arriving at the valuation of the asset. In particular the 
DRC basis of valuation requires an assumption as to 
whether the replacement asset would be situated on 
the existing site or, if more appropriate, on an 
alternative site.
Valuation is carried out by an external expert engaged 
by the Trust using construction indices and so accurate 
records of the current estate are required. Full 
valuations are completed every five years, with interim 
desktop valuations completed in interim periods.
Valuations are inherently judgmental, therefore our work 
focused on whether the valuer's methodology, 
assumptions and underlying data, are appropriate and 
correctly applied.

The Trust had a full valuation undertaken at 31 March
2017 resulting in a £9.8m increase in the value of the
land and buildings.

Our procedures included:

— Assessment of the external valuer: We 
assessed the competence, capability, 
objectivity and independence of the valuer 
and the overall methodology of the 
valuation to identify whether the approach 
was in line with industry practice and the 
valuer was appropriately experienced and 
qualified. We used our own specialist to 
verify the methodology and assess the 
conclusions in the final report.

— Agreement of underlying asset records: 
We compared the base data provided to the 
valuer against the Trust’s property register 
to ensure it agreed to the Trust estate;

— Consideration of valuation assumptions: 
We critically assessed the assumptions 
used in preparing the valuation by 
considering them against indices produced 
by Gerald Eve (International Property 
Consultants) and industry norms;

— Impairment review: We considered how 
the Group had assessed the need for an 
impairment across its asset base either due 
to a loss of value or reductions in future
service potent ia l ;

— Additions to assets: For a sample of 
assets added during the year we agreed 
that an appropriate valuation basis had been 
adopted when they became operational and 
that the Trust would benefit from future 
service potential.
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THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO WHOM 
WE OWE OUR RESPONSIBILITIES 

This report is made solely to the Council of Governors of 
the Trust, as a body, in accordance with Schedule 10 of the 
National Health Service Act 2006 and the terms of our 
engagement by the Trust. Our audit work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the Council of 
Governors of the Trust, as a body, those matters we are 
required to state to them in an auditor's report, and the 
further matters we are required to state to them in 
accordance with the terms agreed with the Trust, and for 
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other 
than the Council of Governors of the Trust, as a body, for 
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have 
formed.

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT

We certify that we have completed the audit of the 
accounts of Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust 
in accordance with the requirements of Schedule 10 of the 
National Health Service Act 2006 and the Code of Audit 
Practice issued by the National Audit Office.

Jonathan Brown

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP (Statutory Auditor) 

Chartered Accountants 

66 Queen Square

Bristol

BS1 4BE

25 June 2020
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Land and buildings are initially recognised at cost, but 
subsequently are recognised at current value in existing 
use (EUV). For non-specialised property assets in 
operational use EUV is market value in existing use.
Specialised assets where no market value is readily 
ascertainable, are recognised at the depreciated 
replacement cost (DRC) of a modern equivalent asset 
that has the same service potential as the existing 
property. A review is carried out each year to test 
assets for potential impairment and a full valuation is 
carried out every five years.

There is significant judgment involved in determining 
the appropriate basis (market value in existing use or 
DRC) for each asset according to its degree of 
specialisation, as well as over the assumptions made in 
arriving at the valuation of the asset. In particular the 
DRC basis of valuation requires an assumption as to 
whether the replacement asset would be situated on 
the existing site or, if more appropriate, on an 
alternative site.
Valuation is carried out by an external expert engaged 
by the Trust using construction indices and so accurate 
records of the current estate are required. Full 
valuations are completed every five years, with interim 
desktop valuations completed in interim periods.
Valuations are inherently judgmental, therefore our work 
focused on whether the valuer's methodology, 
assumptions and underlying data, are appropriate and 
correctly applied.

The Trust had a full valuation undertaken at 31 March
2017 resulting in a £9.8m increase in the value of the
land and buildings.

Our procedures included:

— Assessment of the external valuer: We 
assessed the competence, capability, 
objectivity and independence of the valuer 
and the overall methodology of the 
valuation to identify whether the approach 
was in line with industry practice and the 
valuer was appropriately experienced and 
qualified. We used our own specialist to 
verify the methodology and assess the 
conclusions in the final report.

— Agreement of underlying asset records: 
We compared the base data provided to the 
valuer against the Trust’s property register 
to ensure it agreed to the Trust estate;

— Consideration of valuation assumptions: 
We critically assessed the assumptions 
used in preparing the valuation by 
considering them against indices produced 
by Gerald Eve (International Property 
Consultants) and industry norms;

— Impairment review: We considered how 
the Group had assessed the need for an 
impairment across its asset base either due 
to a loss of value or reductions in future
service potent ia l ;

— Additions to assets: For a sample of 
assets added during the year we agreed 
that an appropriate valuation basis had been 
adopted when they became operational and 
that the Trust would benefit from future 
service potential.
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THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO WHOM 
WE OWE OUR RESPONSIBILITIES 

This report is made solely to the Council of Governors of 
the Trust, as a body, in accordance with Schedule 10 of the 
National Health Service Act 2006 and the terms of our 
engagement by the Trust. Our audit work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the Council of 
Governors of the Trust, as a body, those matters we are 
required to state to them in an auditor's report, and the 
further matters we are required to state to them in 
accordance with the terms agreed with the Trust, and for 
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other 
than the Council of Governors of the Trust, as a body, for 
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have 
formed.

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT

We certify that we have completed the audit of the 
accounts of Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust 
in accordance with the requirements of Schedule 10 of the 
National Health Service Act 2006 and the Code of Audit 
Practice issued by the National Audit Office.

Jonathan Brown

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP (Statutory Auditor) 

Chartered Accountants 

66 Queen Square

Bristol

BS1 4BE

25 June 2020
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FOREWORD TO THE ACCOUNTS

These accounts for the year ended 31 March 2020 have been prepared by the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust in
accordance with paragraphs 24 and 25 of Schedule 7 to the National Health Service Act 2006 

Signed: 

Suzanne Tracey - Chief Executive

Date: 24 June 2020
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2019/20 2018/19
Note £000 £000

Income from activities 3 468,713 429,631
Other operating income 4 96,965 104,824
Operating income 565,678 534,455

Operating expenses - excluding land and buildings impairment charge 5 (567,291) (517,198)
Buildings impairment charge 5 & 16.3 (26,508) -
Operating (deficit) / surplus (28,121) 17,257

Finance costs
Finance income 10 684 444
Finance expense 11 (542) (587)
PDC dividends payable (4,410) (4,768)
Net finance costs (4,268) (4,911)

Other (losses) / gains 12 (5) 7,213
(Deficit) / surplus for the year (32,394) 19,559

Other comprehensive income

Revaluation gains on property, plant and equipment 16.3 5,357 18,125
Total comprehensive (deficit) / surplus for the year (27,037) 37,684

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2020

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

The above land and buildings impairment charge of £26.508m has arisen due to the revaluation of the Trust's land and buildings. The expense 
is a technical accounting adjustment and has no detrimental impact on the Trust's cash reserves. Excluding this impairment charge, the Trust
would have reported a deficit of £5.886m for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Page 12



Page 13

Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2019/20

2019/20 2018/19
Note £000 £000

Income from activities 3 468,713 429,631
Other operating income 4 96,965 104,824
Operating income 565,678 534,455

Operating expenses - excluding land and buildings impairment charge 5 (567,291) (517,198)
Buildings impairment charge 5 & 16.3 (26,508) -
Operating (deficit) / surplus (28,121) 17,257

Finance costs
Finance income 10 684 444
Finance expense 11 (542) (587)
PDC dividends payable (4,410) (4,768)
Net finance costs (4,268) (4,911)

Other (losses) / gains 12 (5) 7,213
(Deficit) / surplus for the year (32,394) 19,559

Other comprehensive income

Revaluation gains on property, plant and equipment 16.3 5,357 18,125
Total comprehensive (deficit) / surplus for the year (27,037) 37,684

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2020

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20
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is a technical accounting adjustment and has no detrimental impact on the Trust's cash reserves. Excluding this impairment charge, the Trust
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31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Note £000 £000

Non-current assets
Intangible assets 15 265 212
Property, plant and equipment 16 249,125 230,437
Investment in joint venture 17 5 5
Trade and other receivables 19 2,455 1,153
Total non-current assets 251,850 231,807

Current assets
Inventories 18 8,709 7,775
Trade and other receivables 19 35,132 41,568
Cash and cash equivalents 23 58,081 82,440
Total current assets 101,922 131,783

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 (49,479) (46,543)
Borrowings 21 (3,171) (1,417)
Provisions 22 (352) (257)
Other liabilities 20 (5,163) (3,381)
Total current liabilities (58,165) (51,598)

Total assets less current liabilities 295,607 311,992

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 21 (59,074) (52,948)
Provisions 22 (1,436) (343)
Other liabilities 20 (2,048) (2,139)
Total non-current liabilities (62,558) (55,430)

Total assets employed 233,049 256,562

Financed by taxpayers' equity
Public dividend capital 161,055 157,531
Revaluation reserve 30,874 49,035
Income and expenditure reserve 41,120 49,996
Total taxpayers' equity 233,049 256,562

The notes on pages 16 to 38 form part of these accounts.

Suzanne Tracey - Chief Executive

Date: 24 June 2020

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT
31 MARCH 2020

The Annual Accounts on pages 12 to 38 were approved by the Board of Directors on 24th June 2020 and signed on its behalf by :

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20
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Public dividend 
capital

Revaluation 
reserve

Income and 
expenditure 

reserve Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Taxpayers' equity at 1 April 2018 153,883 33,424 27,923 215,230

Surplus for the year - - 19,559 19,559
Revaluations - land and buildings - 18,125 - 18,125
Transfer of the excess of current cost depreciation over historical cost 
depreciation to the income and expenditure reserve - (1,426) 1,426 -
Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets - (1,088) 1,088 -
Public dividend capital received 3,648 - - 3,648

Taxpayers' equity at 31 March and 1 April 2019 157,531 49,035 49,996 256,562

Deficit for the year - - (32,394) (32,394)
Land and buildings impairment charge - previous revaluation element 
transfer to I&E reserve - (22,260) 22,260 -
Revaluations - land and buildings - 5,357 - 5,357
Transfer of the excess of current cost depreciation over historical cost 
depreciation to the income and expenditure reserve - (1,258) 1,258 -
Public dividend capital received 3,524 - - 3,524

Taxpayers' equity at 31 March 2020 161,055 30,874 41,120 233,049

Public dividend capital ("PDC")

Revaluation reserve

Income and expenditure reserve
The reserve is the cumulative surplus / (deficit) made by the Trust since its inception. The reserve cannot be released to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

PDC represents the excess of assets over liabilities at the time of establishment of the Trust. It also includes new PDC received to fund capital
expenditure on schemes supported by the Department of Health central capital budgets.  PDC has no fixed capital repayment period.

The reserve reflects movements in the value of purchased property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as set out in the accounting
policies.
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Public dividend 
capital
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reserve

Income and 
expenditure 

reserve Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
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Public dividend capital received 3,524 - - 3,524

Taxpayers' equity at 31 March 2020 161,055 30,874 41,120 233,049

Public dividend capital ("PDC")

Revaluation reserve

Income and expenditure reserve
The reserve is the cumulative surplus / (deficit) made by the Trust since its inception. The reserve cannot be released to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

PDC represents the excess of assets over liabilities at the time of establishment of the Trust. It also includes new PDC received to fund capital
expenditure on schemes supported by the Department of Health central capital budgets.  PDC has no fixed capital repayment period.

The reserve reflects movements in the value of purchased property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as set out in the accounting
policies.
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Note 2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating (deficit) / surplus (28,121) 17,257

Non-cash income and expense
Depreciation and amortisation 9,705 10,658
Impairments 26,508 -
Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables 5,834 (3,487)
(Increase) / decrease in inventories (934) 874
Increase in trade and other payables 4,097 5,448
Increase in other liabilities 1,691 2,418
Increase / (decrease) in provisions 1,187 (13)
Income recognised in respect of capital donations (1,498) (71)

Net cash generated from operations 18,469 33,084

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 684 444
Purchase of intangible assets (93) (75)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (48,994) (24,753)
Sale of property, plant and equipment - 11,348
Receipt of cash donations to purchase capital assets 1,498 71

Net cash used in investing activities (46,905) (12,965)

Cash flows from financing activities
PDC received 3,524 3,648
Loans received 9,154 43,033
Loans repaid (1,270) (1,305)
Interest paid (2,221) (1,764)
PDC dividend paid (5,110) (4,820)

Net cash used in financing activities 4,077 38,792

(Decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (24,359) 58,911

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 82,440 23,529
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 23 58,081 82,440

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2020
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 Income recognition 

Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material conditions of sale have been met, and is
measured as the sums due under the sale contract, less the fair value of the asset.

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

Income in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs and is measured at the
fair value of the consideration receivable. The main source of income for the Trust is contracts with commissioners in respect
of healthcare services. 

NHS Improvement, in exercising the statutory functions conferred on Monitor, has directed that the financial statements of the
Trust shall meet the accounting requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual (GAM),
which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the GAM 2019/20 issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. The accounting policies contained in the GAM
follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as
determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the GAM permits a choice
of accounting policy, the accounting policy that is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the Trust for 
the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted are described below. These
have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts. 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Accounting convention

The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property,
plant and equipment, intangibles assets, inventories and certain financial assets and liabilities at their value to the business by
reference to their fair value.

Going concern

The Trust recognised a deficit of £32.4m for the year ending 31 March 2020. The Trust has prepared a draft annual plan for
the year ending 31 March 2021, which includes a detailed cash flow forecast, for the next 12 months, which provides
assurance that the Trust will remain within their current facilities. After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the NHS foundation trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for at least twelve
months. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.

Where income is derived from contracts with customers, it is accounted for under IFRS 15. The GAM expands the definition of
a contract to include legislation and regulations which enables an entity to receive cash or another financial asset that is not
classified as a tax by the Office of National Statistics (ONS).  

Revenue in respect of goods/services provided is recognised when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied by
transferring promised goods/services to the customer and is measured at the amount of the transaction price allocated to
those performance obligations. At the year end, the Trust accrues income relating to performance obligations satisfied in that
year. Where the Trust’s entitlement to consideration for those goods or services is unconditional a contract receivable will be
recognised. Where entitlement to consideration is conditional on a further factor other than the passage of time, a contract
asset will be recognised. Where consideration received or receivable relates to a performance obligation that is to be satisfied
in a future period, the income is deferred and recognised as a contract liability. 

A performance obligation relating to delivery of a spell of health care is generally satisfied over time as healthcare is received
and consumed simultaneously by the customer as the Trust performs it. The customer in such a contract is the commissioner,
but the customer benefits as services are provided to their patient. Even where a contract could be broken down into separate
performance obligations, healthcare generally aligns with paragraph 22(b) of the Standard entailing a delivery of a series of
goods or services that are substantially the same and have a similar pattern of transfer. At the year end, the Trust accrues
income relating to activity delivered in that year, where a patient care spell is incomplete.

Where research contracts fall under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised as and when performance obligations are satisfied. At
contract inception, the Trust assesses the outputs promised in the research contract to identify as a performance obligation
each promise to transfer either a good or service that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same and that have the same pattern of transfer. The Trust recognises revenue as these performance obligations are
met, which may be at a point in time or over time depending upon the terms of the contract.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.2 Expenditure on employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits 

Pension costs

1.3 Expenditure on other goods and services

1.4 Intangible assets

Recognition

Internally generated intangible assets 

Measurement 

Amortisation and impairment

Software 

Useful life 
(years)
3 - 10

Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme except where the retirement is
due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the operating expenses at the time
the Trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment. 

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of being sold separately from
the rest of the Trust’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only where it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust and where the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably. 

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Asset category

Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been received, and is
measured at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except where
it results in the creation of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment.

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from
employees.  

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded,
defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of
Secretary of State, in England and Wales. It is not possible for the Trust to identify its share of the underlying scheme
assets and liabilities.  Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as a defined contribution scheme. 

Employers pension cost contributions are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due. 

Software licences

Subsequently intangible assets are measured at fair value. Revaluation gains and losses and impairments are treated in
the same manner as for property, plant and equipment (see note 1.5).

Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed to create, produce and
prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

Internally generated goodwill, brands, publishing titles, customer lists and similar items are not capitalised as intangible
assets.

Intangible assets are capitalised when they are capable of being used in the Trust's activities for more than one year
and have a cost of at least £5,000.

Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of
economic or service delivery benefits.

The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be recoverable.

Software that is integral to the operation of hardware, e.g. an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item
of property, plant and equipment. Software that is not integral to the operation of hardware, e.g. application software, is
capitalised as an intangible asset. 

Purchased computer software licences are capitalised as intangible assets where expenditure of at least £5,000 is
incurred and amortised over the shorter of the term of the licence and their useful lives.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Asset category
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.4 Intangible assets (continued)

Research and development

-

-

-

-

-

-

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

has an individual cost of at least £5,000; or 

it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;  

the cost of the item can be measured reliably and;

the items form a group of assets which individually have a cost of more than £250, collectively have a cost of at least
£5,000, where the assets are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are
anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control; or

form part of the initial equipping and setting-up costs of a new building or on refurbishment, may also be "grouped" for
capitalisation purposes.

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Where possible the Trust will disclose the total amount of research and development expenditure charged in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income separately. However, where research and development activity cannot be
separated from patient care activity it cannot be identified and is therefore not separately disclosed.

Other property, plant and equipment assets acquired for use in research and development are amortised over the life of
the associated project.

Expenditure on research is not capitalised. 

the project is technically feasible to the point of completion and will result in an intangible asset for sale or use; 

the Trust intends to complete the asset and sell or use it; 

Expenditure which does not meet the criteria for capitalisation is treated as an operating cost in the year in which it is
incurred.  

Expenditure on development is capitalised only where all of the following can be demonstrated: 

how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic or service delivery benefits, e.g. the presence of a
market for it or its output, or where it is to be used for internal use, the usefulness of the asset; 

the Trust has the ability to sell or use the asset;

the Trust can measure reliably the expenses attributable to the asset during development.

adequate financial, technical and other resources are available to the Trust to complete the development and sell or
use the asset; and 

it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust; 

it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

Recognition 

Property, plant and equipment are capitalised where: 
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1.

1.5

Useful life 
(years)

14 - 45
19

4 - 21
5 - 8

3 - 11
5 - 10

Freehold property - buildings
Freehold property - dwellings

Plant and machinery

Equipment - information technology
Equipment - furniture and fittings

Equipment - transport 

Freehold land is considered to have an infinite life and is not depreciated.  

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their remaining useful lives in a
manner consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits. 

Depreciation 

For non-property assets the depreciated historical cost basis has been adopted as a proxy fair value. Non-property
assets acquired up to 31 March 2008 were revalued through an annual uplift by the change in the value of the GDP
deflator. These revalued assets are included in the non-property assets valuation, but further indexation of these assets
has ceased.

Buildings with a number of components that have significantly different asset lives, e.g. fixed plant are depreciated over
the useful economic life of the component.

Asset category

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement and revaluation

The fair value of land and buildings is determined by valuations carried out by professionally qualified valuers in
accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual. The valuations are
carried out primarily on the basis of depreciated replacement cost for specialised operational property based upon
providing a modern equivalent asset. Existing use value is used for non-specialised operational property. For non-
operational properties, including surplus land, the valuations are carried out at open market value. The frequency of
revaluation is dependent upon changes in the fair value of property assets however, in line with NHS Improvement's view,
the frequency of property asset revaluations will be at least every five years. Note 16.3 provides details of the valuation
undertaken as at 31st March 2020.

All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs directly attributable to
acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management.  All assets are measured subsequently at fair value. 

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Non-property assets

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been brought into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where the cost of an item
can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Useful lives are determined on a case by case basis.  The typical lives for the following assets are:

Additional alternative open market value figures have only been supplied for operational assets scheduled for imminent
closure and subsequent disposal.

Subsequent expenditure 

Property assets

Assets under construction are valued at cost and may subsequently be revalued by professional valuers when brought
into use or when factors indicate that the value of the asset differs materially from its carrying value. 
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1.5
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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Asset category

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement and revaluation

The fair value of land and buildings is determined by valuations carried out by professionally qualified valuers in
accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual. The valuations are
carried out primarily on the basis of depreciated replacement cost for specialised operational property based upon
providing a modern equivalent asset. Existing use value is used for non-specialised operational property. For non-
operational properties, including surplus land, the valuations are carried out at open market value. The frequency of
revaluation is dependent upon changes in the fair value of property assets however, in line with NHS Improvement's view,
the frequency of property asset revaluations will be at least every five years. Note 16.3 provides details of the valuation
undertaken as at 31st March 2020.

All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs directly attributable to
acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management.  All assets are measured subsequently at fair value. 

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Non-property assets

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been brought into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where the cost of an item
can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Useful lives are determined on a case by case basis.  The typical lives for the following assets are:

Additional alternative open market value figures have only been supplied for operational assets scheduled for imminent
closure and subsequent disposal.

Subsequent expenditure 

Property assets

Assets under construction are valued at cost and may subsequently be revalued by professional valuers when brought
into use or when factors indicate that the value of the asset differs materially from its carrying value. 

Page 19



Page 20

Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2019/20

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.5

1.6

1.7

Work in progress comprises goods in intermediate stages of production.    

1.8 Provisions

Clinical negligence costs

Inventories and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using a first
in, first out method.

Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Trust provides for legal or constructive obligations that are of uncertain timing or amount at the Statement of Financial
Position date on the basis of where it is probable that there will be a future outflow of cash or other resources; and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount required to settle the obligation. The Trust uses HM Treasury's pension rate
of -0.50% (2018/19 +0.29%), in real terms, as the discount rate for early retirement and injury benefit provisions.

NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the Trust pays an annual contribution, which, in return, settles 
all clinical negligence claims. Although NHS Resolution is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the
legal liability remains with the Trust. The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried by NHS Resolution on behalf
of the Trust is disclosed at note 22, but this value is not recognised in the Trust’s accounts. 

Donated, government grant and other grant funded assets

Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt. The
donation/grant is recognised as income unless the donor has imposed a condition that the future economic benefits
embodied in the grant are to be consumed in a manner specified by the donor, in which case, the donation/grant is
deferred within liabilities and is carried forward to future financial years to the extent that the condition has not yet been
met. 

Provision is made where necessary for obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories and work in progress.

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Decreases in asset values that are due to a loss of economic benefits or service potential in the asset are charged to
operating expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve
of an amount which is to the lower of (i) the impairment charged to operating expenses; and (ii) the balance in the
revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before the impairment. 

Inventories and work in progress

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Impairment 

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate their carrying value may not be recoverable.

Increases in asset values arising from revaluation are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the
extent that, they reverse an impairment previously recognised in operating expenses, such reversals are recognised in
operating expenditure to the extent that the asset is restored to the carrying amount it would have been if the original
impairment had never been recognised.

The excess depreciation on revalued assets over the historical cost is released to the income and expenditure reserve. On
disposal of an asset any remaining revaluation reserve balance is released to the income and expenditure reserve.

Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of 'other impairments' are treated as revaluation gains.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.8 Provisions (continued)

Non-clinical risk pooling

1.9 Value Added Tax

1.10 Contingent liabilities

1.11 Third party assets

1.12 Losses and special payments

1.13 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Accounting judgement - Modern Equivalent Asset valuation

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since the
Trust has no beneficial interest in them. However, they are disclosed in a separate note, note 28, to the accounts in
accordance with the requirements of HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual.

The Trust has contingent liabilities in respect of NHS Resolution legal claims arising in the normal course of activities.
Where the transfer of economic liabilities in respect of legal claims is possible the Trust discloses the estimated value as a
contingent liability in note 25.

Most of the activities of the Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on
purchases is not recoverable. 

Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of non-
current assets.  Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling
schemes under which the Trust pays an annual contribution to the NHS Resolution and in return receives assistance with
the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any ‘excesses’ payable in respect of particular
claims are charged to operating expenses when the liability arises.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised. 

In the application of the Trust’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually
reviewed.  

The majority of the Trust's estate is considered to be specialised assets as there is no open market for an acute hospital.
The modern equivalent asset valuation is based on the assumption that any modern equivalent replacement hospital
would be built on an alternative site within the Exeter locality.

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health
service or passed regulation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to
specific control procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which
govern the way the individual cases are handled. Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional
headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good through insurance
cover had the Trust not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue
expenditure).

The losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and compensations register which reports on
an accruals basis with the exception of provisions for future losses.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.8 Provisions (continued)

Non-clinical risk pooling

1.9 Value Added Tax

1.10 Contingent liabilities

1.11 Third party assets

1.12 Losses and special payments

1.13 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Accounting judgement - Modern Equivalent Asset valuation
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since the
Trust has no beneficial interest in them. However, they are disclosed in a separate note, note 28, to the accounts in
accordance with the requirements of HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual.

The Trust has contingent liabilities in respect of NHS Resolution legal claims arising in the normal course of activities.
Where the transfer of economic liabilities in respect of legal claims is possible the Trust discloses the estimated value as a
contingent liability in note 25.

Most of the activities of the Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on
purchases is not recoverable. 

Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of non-
current assets.  Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling
schemes under which the Trust pays an annual contribution to the NHS Resolution and in return receives assistance with
the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any ‘excesses’ payable in respect of particular
claims are charged to operating expenses when the liability arises.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised. 

In the application of the Trust’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually
reviewed.  

The majority of the Trust's estate is considered to be specialised assets as there is no open market for an acute hospital.
The modern equivalent asset valuation is based on the assumption that any modern equivalent replacement hospital
would be built on an alternative site within the Exeter locality.

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health
service or passed regulation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to
specific control procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which
govern the way the individual cases are handled. Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional
headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good through insurance
cover had the Trust not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue
expenditure).

The losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and compensations register which reports on
an accruals basis with the exception of provisions for future losses.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.14 Leases

Operating leases 

Where leases are regarded as operating leases the rentals are charged to operating expenses on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Operating lease incentives received are added to the lease rentals and charged to operating
expenses over the life of the lease.

Leases of land and buildings 

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the
classification for each is assessed separately.

1.15 Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the
time of establishment of the predecessor NHS trust, the Royal Devon and Exeter Healthcare NHS Trust. HM Treasury
has determined that PDC is not a financial instrument within the meaning of IAS 32. 

A charge, reflecting the forecast cost of capital utilised by the Trust, is paid over as public dividend capital dividend. The
charge is calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the Trust. 

Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities, except for donated assets and
the average daily cash held with the Government Banking Service. Average relevant net assets are calculated as a
simple means of opening and closing relevant net assets in the pre-audit version of the accounts after adjusting for the
average daily cash held within the Government Banking Service. The dividend charge would not be revised should any
adjustments to net assets occur as a result of any changes between the draft and audited accounts.

1.16 Financial instruments and financial liabilities

Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities which arise from contracts for the purchase or sale of non-financial items (such as
goods or services), which are entered into in accordance with the Trust’s normal purchase, sale or usage requirements,
are recognised when, and to the extent which, performance occurs i.e. when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is
made. 

All other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Trust becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. 

De-recognition 

All financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or the Trust has
transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. 

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement 

Financial assets are categorised as ‘loans and receivables’.  Financial liabilities are classified as ‘other financial liabilities’.

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.16 Financial instruments and financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market.  They are included in current assets. 

The Trust’s loans and receivables comprise: cash and cash equivalents, NHS receivables, accrued income and ‘other
receivables’. 

Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transactions costs, and are measured subsequently at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset. 

Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and credited to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. 

Other financial liabilities 

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and measured subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount of the financial liability. 

They are included in current liabilities except for amounts payable more than 12 months after the statement of financial
position date, which are classified as non-current liabilities. 

Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method and charged to
finance costs. Interest on financial liabilities taken out to finance property, plant and equipment or intangible assets is not
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. 

Impairment of financial assets 

At the statement of financial position date, the Trust assesses whether any financial assets are impaired. Financial assets
are impaired and impairment losses are recognised if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the asset. 

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate. The loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced through the use of a bad debt provision that is determined specifically on individual assets.

1.17 Corporation tax 

The Trust is a Health Service Body within the meaning of s519A of the Income and Corporation Tax Act 1988 and
accordingly is exempt from taxation in respect of income and capital gains within categories covered by this. There is a
power for HM Treasury to dis-apply the exemption in relation to specified activities of an NHS foundation trust (s519A (3)
to (8) of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988). Accordingly, the FT is potentially within the scope of corporation
tax in respect of activities which are not related to, or ancillary to, the provision of healthcare, and where the profits there
from exceed £50,000 per annum.  Until the exemption is dis-applied then the FT has no corporation tax liability. 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.16 Financial instruments and financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market.  They are included in current assets. 

The Trust’s loans and receivables comprise: cash and cash equivalents, NHS receivables, accrued income and ‘other
receivables’. 

Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transactions costs, and are measured subsequently at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset. 

Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and credited to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. 

Other financial liabilities 

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and measured subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount of the financial liability. 

They are included in current liabilities except for amounts payable more than 12 months after the statement of financial
position date, which are classified as non-current liabilities. 

Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method and charged to
finance costs. Interest on financial liabilities taken out to finance property, plant and equipment or intangible assets is not
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. 

Impairment of financial assets 

At the statement of financial position date, the Trust assesses whether any financial assets are impaired. Financial assets
are impaired and impairment losses are recognised if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the asset. 

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate. The loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced through the use of a bad debt provision that is determined specifically on individual assets.

1.17 Corporation tax 

The Trust is a Health Service Body within the meaning of s519A of the Income and Corporation Tax Act 1988 and
accordingly is exempt from taxation in respect of income and capital gains within categories covered by this. There is a
power for HM Treasury to dis-apply the exemption in relation to specified activities of an NHS foundation trust (s519A (3)
to (8) of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988). Accordingly, the FT is potentially within the scope of corporation
tax in respect of activities which are not related to, or ancillary to, the provision of healthcare, and where the profits there
from exceed £50,000 per annum.  Until the exemption is dis-applied then the FT has no corporation tax liability. 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.18 Consolidation of NHS charitable funds

1.19 Interests in other entities

Joint ventures

1.20 Transfers of functions to / from other NHS bodies

2. Segmental analysis

The Board of Directors have received financial information relating to operating segments in the form of analysis of
variances against budget, in chart format. The analysis focusses on variances to budget and does not provide details of
total income and expenditure by operating segment. As this analysis is not in a suitable format to be reconciled to the
Trust's income and expenditure per the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the information has not been included
within these Accounts.

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

The Chief Operating Decision Maker, who is responsible for the allocation of resources and the assessment of the
performance of operating segments has been identified as the Trust's Board of Directors.

Throughout the financial year the Trust's Board of Directors received a monthly integrated performance report, that
provided information against key standards and targets. The reports included financial performance information which
has assisted the Board of Directors with their financial decisions. The monthly information provided to the Board of
Directors has been similar to the primary statements within these accounts.  

The Trust is the Corporate Trustee of the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust General Charity. The Charity
has not been consolidated within these annual accounts as the value of the Charity is low and consolidation into the
Trust’s accounts would have no material effect. Further information relating to transactions between the Trust and the
Charity is disclosed in note 26.  

Joint ventures are arrangements in which the Trust has joint control with one or more other parties, and where it has the
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.  Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Adjustments to align the acquired assets / liabilities to the foundation trust’s accounting policies are applied after initial
recognition and are adjusted directly in taxpayers’ equity.

For functions that have been transferred to the Trust from another NHS body, the assets and liabilities transferred are
recognised in the accounts as at the date of transfer. The assets and liabilities are not adjusted to fair value prior to
recognition. The net gain / loss corresponding to the net assets/ liabilities transferred is recognised as a transfer by
absorption within the Statement of Comprehensive Income, but not within operating activities. 

For property plant and equipment assets and intangible assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation / amortisation
balances from the transferring entity’s accounts are preserved on recognition in the Trust’s accounts. Where the
transferring body recognised revaluation reserve balances attributable to the assets, the Trust makes a transfer from its
income and expenditure reserve to its revaluation reserve to maintain transparency within public sector accounts.
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3. Income from activities
2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000

Elective income 77,729 76,676
Non-elective income 91,980 86,866
First outpatient income 24,123 21,858
Follow up outpatient income 23,221 20,962
High cost drugs and devices income from commissioners 54,295 50,780
Other NHS clinical income 106,030 95,906
A & E income 15,378 13,397
Private patient income 1,662 1,594
Other clinical income 1,506 -
Community services income from CCGs and NHS England and Devon County Council 57,743 56,271
Agenda for Change pay award central funding - 5,321
Additional pension contribution central funding 15,046 -

468,713 429,631

Income from commissioner requested services 450,499 428,037
Income from non-commissioner requested services 18,214 1,594

468,713 429,631

3.1 Income from activities - by source
2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000

NHS England 129,091 103,649
Clinical commissioning groups 336,320 317,378
Department of Health and Social Care - 5,321
NHS trusts 337 135
NHS other - -
Local authorities 18 23
Non-NHS - private patients 1,301 1,137
Non-NHS - overseas patients (non-reciprocal) 361 457
NHS injury scheme 953 756
Non-NHS - other 332 775

468,713 429,631

3.2 Income from overseas visitors
2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000
Income recognised this year 361 457

3.3 Additional information on revenue from contracts with customers recognised in the period

2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000

the previous year end. 3,381 3,102

4. Other operating income
2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000

Research and development 18,991 18,483
Education and training 14,094 14,477
Charitable and other contributions to expenditure 1,498 71
Non-patient care services to other bodies 39,709 35,089
Staff recharges 4,368 3,977
Provider sustainability funding / Marginal rate emergency tariff funding 6,583 22,628
Rental revenue from operating leases 19 123
Other 11,703 9,976

96,965 104,824

Included within "Other income" above is catering income of £2.9 million, (2018/19 - £2.3 million), car parking income of
£2.3 million (2018/19 - £2.1 million), nursery/crèche income of £1.3m (2018/19 - £1.4 million), staff accommodation £0.6
million (2018/19 - £0.6 million). 

Included within "Non-patient care services to other bodies" are laundry services, transport services, payroll services, IT
services, procurement services, diagnostic services, pharmacy services, GP trainee income and drug sales totalling £34.5
million (2018/19 - £28.7 million). Better Care Funding of £3.8 million (2018/19 - £5.3million) is also included in this
category.  

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

NHS Injury Scheme income is subject to a provision for doubtful debts of 21.79% (2018/19 - 21.89%) to reflect expected
rates of collection based upon historical experience.

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included within contract liabilities at 
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3. Income from activities
2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000

Elective income 77,729 76,676
Non-elective income 91,980 86,866
First outpatient income 24,123 21,858
Follow up outpatient income 23,221 20,962
High cost drugs and devices income from commissioners 54,295 50,780
Other NHS clinical income 106,030 95,906
A & E income 15,378 13,397
Private patient income 1,662 1,594
Other clinical income 1,506 -
Community services income from CCGs and NHS England and Devon County Council 57,743 56,271
Agenda for Change pay award central funding - 5,321
Additional pension contribution central funding 15,046 -

468,713 429,631

Income from commissioner requested services 450,499 428,037
Income from non-commissioner requested services 18,214 1,594
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Clinical commissioning groups 336,320 317,378
Department of Health and Social Care - 5,321
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Non-NHS - overseas patients (non-reciprocal) 361 457
NHS injury scheme 953 756
Non-NHS - other 332 775
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3.2 Income from overseas visitors
2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000
Income recognised this year 361 457

3.3 Additional information on revenue from contracts with customers recognised in the period

2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000

the previous year end. 3,381 3,102

4. Other operating income
2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000

Research and development 18,991 18,483
Education and training 14,094 14,477
Charitable and other contributions to expenditure 1,498 71
Non-patient care services to other bodies 39,709 35,089
Staff recharges 4,368 3,977
Provider sustainability funding / Marginal rate emergency tariff funding 6,583 22,628
Rental revenue from operating leases 19 123
Other 11,703 9,976

96,965 104,824

Included within "Other income" above is catering income of £2.9 million, (2018/19 - £2.3 million), car parking income of
£2.3 million (2018/19 - £2.1 million), nursery/crèche income of £1.3m (2018/19 - £1.4 million), staff accommodation £0.6
million (2018/19 - £0.6 million). 

Included within "Non-patient care services to other bodies" are laundry services, transport services, payroll services, IT
services, procurement services, diagnostic services, pharmacy services, GP trainee income and drug sales totalling £34.5
million (2018/19 - £28.7 million). Better Care Funding of £3.8 million (2018/19 - £5.3million) is also included in this
category.  
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NHS Injury Scheme income is subject to a provision for doubtful debts of 21.79% (2018/19 - 21.89%) to reflect expected
rates of collection based upon historical experience.

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included within contract liabilities at 
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5. Operating expenses
2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000

Services from NHS and DHSC bodies 2,884 2,360
Services from non-NHS and non-DHSC bodies 8,308 1,228
Employee expenses - executive directors (see note 5.1) 795 923
Employee expenses - executive directors recharged to NDHT (included in income) 450 339
Employee expenses - non-executive directors (see note 5.1) 125 126
Employee expenses - non-executive directors recharged to NDHT (included in income) 25 19
Employee expenses - staff 343,658 307,473
Drug costs 59,407 57,666
Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drug costs) 52,874 49,187
Supplies and services - general 5,862 6,058
Establishment 7,109 7,574
Research and development - not included in employee expenses 12,947 12,690
Research and development - included in employee expenses (see note 6.1) 5,264 5,024
Education and training - not included in employee expenses 1,269 1,250
Education and training - included in employee expenses (see note 6.1) 12,826 13,227
Transport 2,042 2,269
Premises 16,063 13,319
Increase / (decrease) in bad debt provision 18 102
Depreciation 9,665 10,589
Amortisation of intangible assets 40 69
Impairments - buildings 26,508 -
Audit fees - statutory audit 74 58
Non-audit fee - audit related assurance services 2 8
Non-audit fee - other non-audit services - 2
Internal audit fees 262 246
Clinical negligence - amounts payable to NHSLA (premiums) 12,461 12,273
Losses, ex gratia and special payments 276 353
Consultancy 1,006 895
Other 11,579 11,871

593,799 517,198

Operating expenses - excluding land and buildings impairment charge 567,291 517,198
Buildings impairment charge (see note 16.3) 26,508 -

593,799 517,198

5.1 Directors' remuneration and other benefits
2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000

Aggregate directors' remuneration 1,314 1,332
Employer's contribution to pension scheme 81 75
Total 1,395 1,407

5.2 Auditor's remuneration

5.3 Auditor's liability

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

The Board of Governors has appointed KPMG LLP as external auditors. The engagement letter signed on 8th December
2014, and updated on the 3rd June 2020 following the re-tender exercise, states that the liability of KPMG, its members,
partners and staff (whether in contract, negligence or otherwise) shall in no circumstances exceed £1 million in the
aggregate in respect of all services (2018/19 - £1 million).

In the year ended 31 March 2020 four directors accrued benefits under defined benefit pension schemes (2018/19 - four).

The audit fee, which includes statutory audit and quality accounts, was £76,000 in 2019/20 (2018/19 - £66,000), this
includes £5,000 for the audit of the Trust's general charity. No fees were incurred for professional advice relating to non-
audit services (2018/19 £2,000).

"Other expenditure" above includes operating lease expenditure and patient travel. 
The total employer's pension contributions are disclosed in note 6.1.
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5.4 Operating leases
2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000
Operating lease payments recognised in expenses 5,577 5,483

5.5 Future aggregate minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Land and 
buildings Other Total

Land and 
buildings Other Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
No later than 1 year 4,114 1,574 5,688 3,920 1,303 5,223
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 15,871 3,371 19,242 7,987 3,202 11,189
Later than 5 years 17,675 83 17,758 13,403 322 13,725

37,660 5,028 42,688 25,310 4,827 30,137

6. Staff costs and numbers

6.1 Staff costs
2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000

Salaries and wages 283,420 261,112
Social security costs 25,746 23,600
Apprenticeship levy 1,382 1,288
Employer contributions to NHSPA 49,615 31,823
Termination benefits 105 172
Agency and contract staff 10,592 11,627

370,860 329,622
Costs capitalised as part of assets 7,605 2,390

363,255 327,232

Analysed into operating expenses (see note 5):
Employee expenses staff 343,658 307,473
Employee expenses executive directors 795 923
Employee expenses - executive directors recharged to NDHT (included in income) 450 339
Research and development 5,264 5,024
Education and training 12,826 13,227
Internal Audit staff costs 262 246

363,255 327,232

6.2 Average number of persons employed including directors
Permanent 
employees

Other 
employees

2019/20 
Total

2018/19 
Total

Number Number Number Number
Medical and dental 836 24 860 835
Ambulance staff 2 - 2 -
Administration and estates 1,433 110 1,543 1,428
Healthcare assistants and other support staff 2,453 144 2,597 2,504
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 1,953 87 2,040 1,930
Scientific, therapeutic, technical and healthcare science staff 926 21 947 918
Total 7,603 386 7,989 7,615

               
6.3 Staff exit packages

2019/20 2019/20 2018/19 2018/19
Exit package cost Number £000 Number £000
Less than £10,000 27 70 21 61
£10,000 to £25,000 5 65 5 83
£25,001 to £50,000 1 25 1 27
Total number 33 160 27 171

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2018/192019/20

Exit packages relate to staff redundancies and payments in lieu of notice and include employer's NIC.  

Lease expenditure relates to minimum lease payments and is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in a straight line
basis over the term of the lease.

The rise in expenditure relating to employer contributions to NHSPA mainly relates to the employer contribution rate increasing to 20.6%
(2018/19 - 14.38%). 
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ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2018/192019/20

Exit packages relate to staff redundancies and payments in lieu of notice and include employer's NIC.  

Lease expenditure relates to minimum lease payments and is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in a straight line
basis over the term of the lease.

The rise in expenditure relating to employer contributions to NHSPA mainly relates to the employer contribution rate increasing to 20.6%
(2018/19 - 14.38%). 
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7. Pensions

8. Retirements due to ill-health

9. The late payment of commercial debts (Interest) Act 1998

10. Finance income
2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000
Interest on cash and cash equivalents 684 444

11. Finance expense
2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000
Loans from the Independent Trust Financing Facility 541 586
Unwinding of discount on provisions 1 1
Total 542 587

In 2019/20 the Trust incurred less than £1k (2018/19 - less than £1k) arising from claims made under this legislation. The 
total liability accruing as a result of late payments is £nil (2018/19 £nil).

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

During 2019/20 there were seven (2018/19 - seven) early retirements from the Trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health.
The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements will be £489,000 (2018/19 - £313,000). The cost
of these ill-health retirements will be borne by the NHS Business Services Authority - Pensions Division.

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits
payable and rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both are
unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction
of the Secretary of State for Health in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable
NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted
for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal
to the contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period.

a) Accounting valuation

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that
would be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between
formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s
Department) as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period
in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as providing
suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2020, is based
on valuation data as 31 March 2019, updated to 31 March 2020 with summary global member and accounting data. In
undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the
discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part of
the annual NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are
published annually. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into
account recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers. 

The 2016 funding valuation was also expected to test the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap set
following the 2012 valuation. Following a judgment from the Court of Appeal in December 2018 Government announced a
pause to that part of the valuation process pending conclusion of the continuing legal process. 

The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed as at 31 March 2016. The results
of this valuation set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019 to 20.6%, and the Scheme Regulations were
amended accordingly. 
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12. Other gains / (losses)
2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000

Gains on disposal of assets - 7,213
Losses on disposal of assets (5) -
Total (5) 7,213

13. Better Payment Practice Code
2019/20 2019/20 2018/19 2018/19
Number Value Number Value

£000 £000

Total non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 147,828 284,435 147,981 258,618
Total non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 132,053 264,010 132,471 237,948
Percentage of non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 89.3% 92.8% 89.5% 92.0%

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 3,473 33,193 3,102 21,301
Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 2,822 28,248 2,355 15,637
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target 81.3% 85.1% 75.9% 73.4%

14. Losses and special payments
2019/20 2019/20 2018/19 2018/19
Number Value Number Value

£000 £000

Losses:
Cash losses 16 12 33 27
Bad debts and claims abandoned 77 185 74 229
Stores losses, including damage to buildings 1 25 1 34
Total losses 94 222 108 290

Special payments - Ex-gratia 59 54 58 63

Total losses and special payments 153 276 166 353

15. Intangible assets
Software

15.1 Intangible assets at 31 March 2019 licences
£000

Fair value at 1 April 2018 1,970
Additions - purchased 75
Fair value at 31 March 2019 2,045

Accumulated amortisation at 1 April 2018 1,764
Provided during the year 69
Accumulated amortisation at 31 March 2019 1,833

Net book value
Purchased at 31 March 2019 212
Total at 31 March 2019 212

15.2 Intangible assets at 31 March 2020
Fair value at 1 April 2019 2,045
Additions - purchased 93
Fair value at 31 March 2020 2,138

Accumulated amortisation at 1 April 2019 1,833
Provided during the year 40
Accumulated amortisation at 31 March 2020 1,873

Net book value
Purchased at 31 March 2020 265
Total at 31 March 2020 265

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to aim to pay all valid non-NHS invoices by the due date or within 30 
days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later.  
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ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to aim to pay all valid non-NHS invoices by the due date or within 30 
days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later.  
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16. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

16.3 Revaluation of land, buildings and dwellings

17.
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£000 £000
Carrying value at 1 April 5 5
Carrying value at 31 March 5 5

  
18. Inventories

18.1 Inventories held at year end
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£000 £000

Drugs 2,368 1,714
Work in progress 71 88
Consumables 5,819 5,386
Energy 201 258
Inventories carried at fair value less costs to sell 250 329
Total inventories 8,709 7,775

18.2 Inventories recognised in expenses 2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000

Inventories recognised in expenses 79,442 65,046
Write-down of inventories recognised in expenses 25 34
Total inventories recognised in expenses 79,467 65,080

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

The Trust's land, buildings and dwellings were revalued as at 31 March 2020. The Trust's specialised buildings and
associated land are valued using the depreciated replacement cost method, based upon providing a modern equivalent
asset (MEA). A fundamental principle of MEA valuations is that a hypothetical buyer would purchase the least expensive
site that would be suitable and appropriate for the existing operations. The valuation of the Trust's specialised land and
buildings is therefore based upon the Trust hypothetically being located on a suitable alternative site away from the city
centre, where the cost of the land would be significantly lower, but where the Trust would still be able to re-provide its
services. In 2019/20 there has been a net overall reduction of £21.1m in the value of the Trust's Estate. A £26.5m
impairment has been incurred and is recorded in the property plant and equipment note 16.1. This impairment is mainly
due to the valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL), identifying greater functional obsolescence of the buildings, this has been
recognised as an impairment charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. An increase in value of £5.4m has
been recognised within the revaluation reserve and is mainly due to a general rise in construction costs.    

The valuation exercise was carried out in March 2020 with a valuation date of 31 March 2020. In applying the Royal
Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Valuation Global Standards 2020 (‘Red Book’), the valuer has declared a ‘material
valuation uncertainty’ in the valuation report. This is on the basis of uncertainties in markets caused by COVID-19. The
values in the report have been used to inform the measurement of property assets at valuation in these financial
statements. With the valuer having declared this material valuation uncertainty, the valuer has continued to exercise
professional judgement in providing the valuation and this remains the best information available to the Trust.

To provide further clarification, JLL has advised, the inclusion of the ‘material valuation uncertainty’ declaration above
does not mean that the valuation cannot be relied upon. Rather, the phrase is used in order to be clear and transparent
with all parties, in a professional manner that – in the current extraordinary circumstances – less certainty can be attached
to the valuation than would otherwise be the case.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

In 2016/17 the Trust acquired a 20% shareholding in a new company Dextco Limited. Dextco Limited is a joint venture
between the Trust and a number of local public sector bodies with the aim of developing energy projects in Exeter.

A 1% change in the valuation would have a £1.7m impact on the statement of financial position with a £0.06m impact on
the PDC dividend expenditure. It is impracticable to disclose the extent of the possible future effects of key valuation
assumptions or another source of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period. In such cases, the entity
discloses, on the basis of existing knowledge, that outcomes within the next financial year that are different from the
assumptions around the valuation of our land, property, plant and equipment could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of the assets in future periods.  

Functional obsolescence arises where the design or specification of the asset no longer fulfils the function for which it was
originally designed. In some cases, functional obsolescence can be absolute, as the asset is no longer fit for purpose. In
other cases, the asset will still be capable of use, but at a lower level of efficiency than the modern equivalent or may be
capable of modification to bring it up to a current specification. Specialised buildings particularly hospitals tend to become
functionally obsolete for specific services before they become physically obsolete which results in inefficient space
utilisation. The valuation reflects that for many of the Trust's buildings there are improved building technologies,
construction techniques and advanced new materials that are now available compared to that previously used, i.e. the
construction of roofs, floors, windows, doors and walls. 

Of the £176.3m net book value of land and buildings subject to valuation, £162.2m relates to specialised assets valued on
a depreciated replacement cost basis. Here the valuer bases their assessment on the cost to the Trust of replacing the
service potential of the assets. The uncertainty explained above relates to the estimated cost of replacing the service
potential, rather than the extent of the service potential to be replaced.  

Page 32

19. Trade and other receivables 
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£000 £000
Current
Contract receivables 28,805 36,651
Prepayments 4,502 3,825
Allowance for impaired contract receivables / assets (565) (547)
Other receivables 911 378
PDC dividend receivable 932 232
VAT receivable 547 1,029
Total current trade and other receivables 35,132 41,568

Non-current
Contract receivables 1,371 1,153
Other receivables 1,084 -
Total non-current trade and other receivables 2,455 1,153

Total trade and other receivables 37,587 42,721

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Provision for impairment of receivables £000 £000

At 1 April 547 78
Impact of IFRS 9 (and IFRS 15) implementation on 1 April 2018 balance - 420
Increase in provision (58) 108
Amounts utilised 76 (59)
At 31 March 565 547

The provision for impairment of receivables relates to specific receivables over 3 months old.

19.1 Ageing of impaired financial assets
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£000 £000
0 - 30 days - -
30 - 60 Days - -
60 - 90 days - -
90 - 180 days 502 344
Over 180 days 6,529 2,791

7,031 3,135

19.2 Ageing of non-impaired financial assets past their due date
0 - 30 days 12,148 5,083
30 - 60 days 878 618
60 - 90 days 151 1,283
90 - 180 days 1,727 2,035
Over 180 days - -

14,904 9,019

20.1 Current trade and other payables 
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£000 £000
4,980 6,294

Trade payables - capital 2,455 3,619
Other trade payables 3,377 4,233
Other taxes payable 7,131 6,668
Other payables 4,937 4,643
Accruals 26,599 21,086

49,479 46,543

Other liabilities
Other deferred income 5,163 3,381

20.2 Non current other liabilities 

Other deferred income 2,048 2,139

21. Borrowings

Current 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000

Loans from Foundation Trust Financing Facility 1,270 1,273
Other Loans 1,901 144

3,171 1,417

Loans from Foundation Trust Financing Facility 8,779 10,050
Other Loans 50,295 42,898

59,074 52,948

Total borrowings 62,245 54,365

Amounts falling due within: 
In one year or less by instalments 3,127 1,417
Between one and five years by instalments 28,514 18,948
Over five years by instalments 30,604 34,000

62,245 54,365

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

NHS payables

Non-current

Trade and other  
receivables

Trade and other  
receivables
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19. Trade and other receivables 
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£000 £000
Current
Contract receivables 28,805 36,651
Prepayments 4,502 3,825
Allowance for impaired contract receivables / assets (565) (547)
Other receivables 911 378
PDC dividend receivable 932 232
VAT receivable 547 1,029
Total current trade and other receivables 35,132 41,568

Non-current
Contract receivables 1,371 1,153
Other receivables 1,084 -
Total non-current trade and other receivables 2,455 1,153

Total trade and other receivables 37,587 42,721

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Provision for impairment of receivables £000 £000

At 1 April 547 78
Impact of IFRS 9 (and IFRS 15) implementation on 1 April 2018 balance - 420
Increase in provision (58) 108
Amounts utilised 76 (59)
At 31 March 565 547

The provision for impairment of receivables relates to specific receivables over 3 months old.

19.1 Ageing of impaired financial assets
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£000 £000
0 - 30 days - -
30 - 60 Days - -
60 - 90 days - -
90 - 180 days 502 344
Over 180 days 6,529 2,791

7,031 3,135

19.2 Ageing of non-impaired financial assets past their due date
0 - 30 days 12,148 5,083
30 - 60 days 878 618
60 - 90 days 151 1,283
90 - 180 days 1,727 2,035
Over 180 days - -

14,904 9,019

20.1 Current trade and other payables 
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£000 £000
4,980 6,294

Trade payables - capital 2,455 3,619
Other trade payables 3,377 4,233
Other taxes payable 7,131 6,668
Other payables 4,937 4,643
Accruals 26,599 21,086

49,479 46,543

Other liabilities
Other deferred income 5,163 3,381

20.2 Non current other liabilities 

Other deferred income 2,048 2,139

21. Borrowings

Current 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000

Loans from Foundation Trust Financing Facility 1,270 1,273
Other Loans 1,901 144

3,171 1,417

Loans from Foundation Trust Financing Facility 8,779 10,050
Other Loans 50,295 42,898

59,074 52,948

Total borrowings 62,245 54,365

Amounts falling due within: 
In one year or less by instalments 3,127 1,417
Between one and five years by instalments 28,514 18,948
Over five years by instalments 30,604 34,000

62,245 54,365

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

NHS payables

Non-current

Trade and other  
receivables

Trade and other  
receivables
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21. Borrowings (continued)

Foundation Trust Financing Facility

Loans 
from DHSC

Other 
loans Total

£000 £000 £000 

Carrying value at 1 April 2019 11,323 43,042 54,365
Cash movements:
Financing cash flows - payments and receipts of principal (1,270) 9,154 7,884
Financing cash flows - payments of interest (542) (1,679) (2,221)
Non-cash movements:
Application of effective interest rate 538 1,679 2,217
Carrying value at 31 March 2020 10,049 52,196 62,245

22. Provisions
Early 

retirements
Legal 

claims
Injury 

benefits
Other Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2019 70 233 297 - 600
Arising during the year 4 53 29 1,189 1,275
Utilised during the year (8) (39) (15) - (62)
Reversed unused - (25) - - (25)
At 31 March 2020 66 222 311 1,189 1,788

Expected timing of cash flows: 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000

In one year or less 352 257
Between one and five years 223 96
Over five years 1,213 247

1,788 600

Contingent liabilities relating to legal claims are shown in note 25.

23. Cash and cash equivalents
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£000 £000
At 1 April 2019 82,440 23,529
Net change in the year (24,359) 58,911
At 31 March 2020 58,081 82,440

Broken down into:
Cash at commercial banks and in hand 25 23
Cash with Government Banking Service 58,056 82,417
Cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP and Cash Flow Statement 58,081 82,440

24. Capital commitments

25. Contingent liabilities
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

£000 £000
Contingent NHS Resolution legal claims - -

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

Cash and cash equivalents represents cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution with a short term maturity
period of three months or less from the date of the acquisition of the investment.

Commitments under capital expenditure contracts, which relate to property, plant and equipment, at the statement of
financial position date were £13,502,000  (2018/19 - £9,727,000).  

NHS Resolution is carrying provisions as at 31 March 2020 in relation to Existing Liabilities Scheme and in relation to
Clinical Negligence Scheme on behalf of the Trust of £167.0m (2018/19 - £169.6m).

Legal claims relate to employee and public liability claims.

Other provisions relate to the estimated clinicians' pension tax. An equal amount due from NHSE is included in
Receivables. 

Two loans are repayable to the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care. The first loan of £17 million, was entered into
in the year ended 31 March 2006. It is repayable over a 20 year period, ending 30 March 2026, by equal quarterly
instalments and the interest rate of the loan is fixed at 4.55% per annum. The second loan of £10 million, was entered into
in the year ended 31 March 2007, and is repayable over a 25 year period, ending 30 March 2032, by equal quarterly
instalments and the interest rate of the loan is fixed at 5.05% per annum.

Other loans
Loans of £21m were received from both Hitachi Capital and Siemens Bank in the year ended 31 March 2019.. The loans
are repayable over a 12 year period ending September 2030, in equal quarterly instalments commencing December 2020.  

A loan of £4.7m has been received from a supplier (£1m in 2018/19 and £3.7m in 2019/20). The loan is repayable over an
11 year period ending March 2029.  

A loan of £5.5m has been received from Salix in the year ended 31 March 2020. An additional £0.9m is due to be received
in 2020/21, and the loan is repayable over a 7 year period ending October 2027.
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26. Related party transactions

Directors' remuneration and other benefits are disclosed within the operating expenditure, note 5.1.

Income Expenditure Receivables Payables
£000 £000 £000 £000

2019/20
Department of Health (excludes PDC dividend) 16,863 - 98 -
Health Education England 17,389 - 1,032 -
NHS England (Includes Bristol North Somerset and
South Gloucester) 122,121 - 7,564 62
NHS Devon CCG 326,982 275 4,551 1,169
NHS Somerset CCG 4,257 - - 228
Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust 5,982 1,616 2,128 409

2018/19
Department of Health (excludes PDC dividend) 21,784 50 121 -
Health Education England 17,369 42 1,772 31
NHS England (Includes Bristol North Somerset and
South Gloucester) 128,792 - 20,441 32
NHS North East West Devon CCG 289,858 78 3,948 957
NHS Somerset CCG 4,383 - - 60
NHS South Devon and Torbay CCG 17,415 - 84 51
Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust 5,419 1,267 811 517

During the year the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust has had a significant number of material transactions
with the Department of Health and Social Care ("DoHSC"), and with other entities for which the DoHSC is regarded as the
parent of those entities. Income from activity - by source (note 3.1) and the operating expense (note 5) provides details of
revenue transactions with those entities.  Below are considered to be the significant material transactions.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

The Trust is under the common control of the Board of Directors.  

The Trust is a public benefit corporation established under the NHS Act 2006. The Department of Health has the power to
control the Trust and therefore can be considered to be the Trust's parent. The Trust's Accounts are included within the
NHS Foundation Trust Consolidated Accounts, which are included within the Whole of Government Accounts. The
Department of Health is accountable to the Secretary of State for Health. The Trust's ultimate parent is therefore HM
Government.

The Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust is the Corporate Trustee of the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS
Foundation Trust General Charity ("Charity"), registered charity number 1061384, registered office Bowmoor House,
Barrack Road, Exeter, EX2 5DW. The Charity's objective is for any charitable purpose and purposes relating to the
National Health Service wholly or mainly for the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust. The Trust has received
during the year £58,000 (2018/19 - £58,000) revenue income, £850,000 grant income (2018/19 £318,000) and £1,498,000 
(2018/19 - £71,000) capital contributions from the Charity. At 31 March 2020 the Trust was due £588,000 (2018/19 -
£51,000) from the Charity. The Charity's most recent audited accounts were for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the
Charity held aggregated reserves of £2,812,000.
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26. Related party transactions

Directors' remuneration and other benefits are disclosed within the operating expenditure, note 5.1.

Income Expenditure Receivables Payables
£000 £000 £000 £000

2019/20
Department of Health (excludes PDC dividend) 16,863 - 98 -
Health Education England 17,389 - 1,032 -
NHS England (Includes Bristol North Somerset and
South Gloucester) 122,121 - 7,564 62
NHS Devon CCG 326,982 275 4,551 1,169
NHS Somerset CCG 4,257 - - 228
Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust 5,982 1,616 2,128 409

2018/19
Department of Health (excludes PDC dividend) 21,784 50 121 -
Health Education England 17,369 42 1,772 31
NHS England (Includes Bristol North Somerset and
South Gloucester) 128,792 - 20,441 32
NHS North East West Devon CCG 289,858 78 3,948 957
NHS Somerset CCG 4,383 - - 60
NHS South Devon and Torbay CCG 17,415 - 84 51
Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust 5,419 1,267 811 517

During the year the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust has had a significant number of material transactions
with the Department of Health and Social Care ("DoHSC"), and with other entities for which the DoHSC is regarded as the
parent of those entities. Income from activity - by source (note 3.1) and the operating expense (note 5) provides details of
revenue transactions with those entities.  Below are considered to be the significant material transactions.
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27. Financial instruments

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market risk

Currency risk

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to both a financial asset in one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument in another entity. IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, requires disclosure of the role that financial
instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the risks an entity faces in undertaking its activities. The
financial assets and liabilities of the Trust are generated by day to day operational activities rather than being held to
change the risks facing the Trust in undertaking its activities.

Credit risk arises when the Trust is exposed to the risk that a party is unable to meet its obligation to the Trust in respect of
financial assets due. 

Income from contracted activities with CCG and NHS England are based upon a nationally set tariff, which under Payment
by Results is paid to the Trust in twelve monthly instalments throughout the year; any performance in excess of agreed
targets is paid in accordance with the terms of the relevant contract. Payment by instalments allows the Trust to accurately
forecast cash inflows and through the preparation and review of cash flow forecasts, as well as the controls in place
governing the authorisation of expenditure, ensures that the Trust maintains sufficient funds to meet obligations as they fall
due.

Financial assets mainly comprise monies due from clinical commissioning groups (CCG) and NHS England for services
rendered by the Trust in fulfilment of service agreements, and cash balances held on deposit.  It is considered that financial 
assets due from these organisations pose a low credit risk as these entities are funded by HM Government. 

A significant proportion of the Trust's cash balances are held on deposit with the Government Banking Service, and as
such the credit risk on these balances is considered to be negligible. 

Liquidity risk arises if the Trust is unable to meet its obligations arising from financial liabilities. The Trust's financial
liabilities mainly arise from net operating costs, which are mainly incurred under legally binding annual service agreements
with CCG and NHS England, and liabilities incurred through expenditure on capital projects. Other liquidity risks are loans
repayable to the FTFF and commercial loan providers.

The Trust enters into legally binding contracts with both its customers and suppliers that stipulate the price to be paid. As
such it does not consider itself exposed to material other price risk.

Market risk arises when the Trust is exposed to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk.

Interest rate risk

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

The Trust does not enter into contracts where cash flows are determined by the use of a variable interest rate.

Other price risk 

The Trust receives income denominated in sterling. The Trust, on occasion, does enter in agreements to make payments
in non-sterling denominated currencies. Non-sterling payments are principally short term liabilities and for non-significant
amounts. Given this, the Trust does not consider that it is exposed to any material currency risk and therefore has elected
not to hedge its exposure.
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27. Financial instruments (continued)

27.1 Carrying value of financial assets 
Held at 

amortised 
cost
£000

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 37,635
Cash and cash equivalents at bank and in hand 82,440
Total at 31 March 2019 120,075

Held at 
amortised 

cost
£000

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 31,606
Cash and cash equivalents at bank and in hand 58,081
Total at 31 March 2020 89,687

An analysis of any impairment of financial assets is provided in note 19.1.

27.2 Carrying value of financial liabilities
Held at 

amortised 
cost
£000

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 11,323
Other borrowings 43,042
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 39,873
Total at 31 March 2019 94,238

Held at 
amortised 

cost
£000

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 10,049
Other borrowings 52,196
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 42,348
Total at 31 March 2020 104,593

27.3 Fair value

28. Third party assets

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

The Trust held £110 cash at bank and in hand at 31 March 2020 (2018/19 - £145) relating to monies held on behalf of 
patients.  

For all of the financial assets and liabilities at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 the fair value is equal to book value.
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27. Financial instruments (continued)

27.1 Carrying value of financial assets 
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amortised 
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

The Trust held £110 cash at bank and in hand at 31 March 2020 (2018/19 - £145) relating to monies held on behalf of 
patients.  

For all of the financial assets and liabilities at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 the fair value is equal to book value.
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29.

IFRS 16 Leases will replace IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease and other interpretations and
is applicable in the public sector for periods beginning 1 April 2021. The standard provides a single accounting model for lessees,
recognising a right of use asset and obligation in the statement of financial position for most leases: some leases are exempt through
application of practical expedients explained below. For those recognised in the statement of financial position the standard also requires
the remeasurement of lease liabilities in specific circumstances after the commencement of the lease term. For lessors, the distinction
between operating and finance leases will remain and the accounting will be largely unchanged. 

On transition to IFRS 16 on 1 April 2021, the Trust will apply the standard retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying
the standard recognised in the income and expenditure reserve at that date. For existing operating leases with a remaining lease term of
more than 12 months and an underlying asset value of at least £5,000, a lease liability will be recognised equal to the value of remaining
lease payments discounted on transition at the trust’s incremental borrowing rate. The trust’s incremental borrowing rate will be a rate
defined by HM Treasury. Currently this rate is 1.27% but this may change between now and adoption of the standard. The related right of
use asset will be measured equal to the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments. 

HM Treasury revised the implementation date for IFRS 16 in the UK public sector to 1 April 2021 on 19 March 2020. Due to the need to
reassess lease calculations, together with uncertainty on expected leasing activity from April 2021 and beyond, a quantification of the
expected impact of applying the standard in 2021/22 is currently impracticable. However, the Trust does expect this standard to have a
material impact on non-current assets, liabilities and depreciation. 

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2019/20

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

IFRS 16 - Leases

Accounting standards issued and not adopted

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the 2019/20 Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual
(GAM) issued by Department of Health. The accounting policies contained in that manual follow International Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and HM Treasury's Financial Reporting Manual to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to NHS foundation trusts.
Below is a list of recent standards issued but not yet adopted in the NHS.  

IFRS 16 changes the definition of a lease compared to IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The Trust will apply this definition to new leases only and will
grandfather its assessments made under the old standards of whether existing contracts contain a lease.
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